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One.Report to Shareholders

Ladies and gentlemen:

In 2021, industrial production and consumer confidence gradually recovered. The economy conspicuously revived, owing to the 
increasing COVID-19 vaccination rate worldwide, eased lockdown measures, and support of a full-fledged government stimulus 
policy. IMF forecasted the global economic growth rate for 2021 to be 5.9%. In addition, the pandemic substantially changed 
the life pattern worldwide. Online operation became normal for enterprises, individuals, education, and the government, sending 
the semi-conductor industry into an upward spiral. Driven by robust semi-conductor demands, an interrupted supply chain, and 
increased average selling price, the production value increased by 26% year on year, making 2021 a year of booming growth, 
opportunities, and challenges for Taiwan's semi-conductor industry.

Looking back at 2021, the Company’s operating performance constantly grew, thanks to the universal presence of 5G 
smartphones, substantial improvement in performance and resolution of the photo-taking function a mobile phone has, expansion 
of market share of light sensors embedded in mobile devices, and sales growth in the market for security control and automotive 
applications. In response to the already tight capacity and yet increasing business opportunities coming from customers, VisEra 
has commenced the construction of a new plant in Longtan, which is expected to start phase 1 mass production in 2022 and in 

doing so, inject long-term business momentum .
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Financial Performance

The Company’s revenues in 2021 were NTD 9.029 billion, an increase of 30% compared to NTD 6.946 billion in the previous year; 
the gross profit was 40%, a decrease of 5% compared to the previous year, mainly due to the upfront investment cost incurred by 
the construction of a new plant to expand capacity; profit after tax was NTD 2.165 billion, an increase of 4% compared to NTD 2.091 
billion in the previous year. The earnings per share were NTD 7.41.

Technology Development

We relentlessly devoted ourselves to advanced technology development with respect to image sensors and micro-optical 
components in order to consolidate our role as a market leader. In 2021, we successfully mass-produced 0.61μm image sensors 
with 0.2 billion pixels, the image sensor with the highest resolution in the global market. We moved forward to pursue more miniature 
pixel sizes to develop 0.56μm image sensors. Meanwhile, we also engaged in the development of several key technologies, 
including 1) developing narrow band optical coating technology, which is used for the application of different spectral bands; 2) 
developing micro-optical components, which are developed using advanced optical display technology, so as to help customers 
improve their display performance; and 3) developing metasurface-structured micro-optical components to support AR/VR 
applications that require compact optical components, so as to maintain the momentum for long-term technology development

Future Outlook

Although COVID-19 is expected to continue through 2022, the wide availability of vaccines and oral medication will help ease the 
pandemic. Despite the presence of some uncertainties, e.g. inflation, interest rate spike, political factors of China, the restructured 
supply chain and robust consumption demands are likely to maintain the global economic growth. Looking forward, benefiting 
from thriving new applications such as optical sensing for human-machine communication driven by 5G, the Company is in an 
advantageous position in the industrial trend. With our core technology with respect to wafer-level optoelectronics integration, we 
have helped customers realize product innovation. In the future, we will advance our critical competitivity to create a sustainable 
corporate value for shareholders.

We wish you

Good health and good luck.

Chairman: Robert Kuan Accounting Supervisor: Kevin TsaiManager: S.C. Hsin
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I. Date of Incorporation:

December 1, 2003

II. Coporate History:

Two. Company Profile

Year Milestones

2003 · VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. was founded, providing color filter services
· Paid-in capital NTD 204,000 thousand

2005

· Approved by the Science Park Bureau to invest in the establishment of a wafer-level color filter manufacturing 
plant in the Hsinchu Science Park

· Purchased color filter production equipment from TSMC and leased part of TSMC’s plant and plant facilities to 
engage in the manufacturing of color filters and micro-lenses

· Issuance of common stock worth NTD 496,000 thousand to increase cash capital. After the capital increase, the 
paid-up capital amounted to NTD 700,000 thousand

2006

· The color filter and micro-lens plant was officially put into operation and started mass production
· The color filters and micro-lenses for automotive image sensors obtained the ISO quality certification
· Issuance of common stock worth NTD 766,000 thousand to increase cash capital. After the capital increase, the 

paid-up capital amounted to NTD 1,466,000 thousand

2007
· Issuance of common stock worth NTD 1,260,000 thousand to increase cash capital. Employee profit sharing 

to increase capital by NTD 98,097 thousand. After the capital increase, the paid-up capital amounted to NTD 
2,824,097 thousand

2008
· Employee profit sharing to increase capital by NTD 29,083 thousand. After the capital increase, the paid-up 

capital amounted to NTD 2,853,180 thousand
· The Company owned plant in Hsinchu was officially put into operation

2009
· Mass production of 8” backside illumination (BSI) color filters and micro-lenses
· Employee profit sharing to increase capital by NTD 5,797 thousand. After the capital increase, the paid-up capital 

amounted to NTD 2,858,977 thousand

2010 · Mass production of 12” color filters and micro-lenses

2011 · Employee profit sharing to increase capital by NTD 17,327 thousand. After the capital increase, the paid-up 
capital amounted to NTD 2,876,304 thousand

2012
· Mass production of first RGBC sensor of 12” color filter film and micro-lenses
· Employee profit sharing to increase capital by NTD 35,227 thousand. After the capital increase, the paid-up 

capital amounted to NTD 2,911,531 thousand

2015 · Investment and development of on-chip multi-film technology

TW
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Year Milestones

2016 · Mass production of 12” 1.1μm color filters and 16 million pixel image sensors

2017 · Mass production of on-chip multi-film (OCMF)

2018 · Mass production of optical finger print sensors (OFP)
· Mass production of proximity light sensors

2019

· Mass production of 12” 0.8μm color filters and 48 million pixel image sensors
· Development of ambient optical sensing components to apply on-chip multi-film (OCMF) technology to 

smartphones
· Completed the development of optical biochips and obtained the ISO 13485 medical supply chain certification

2020

· Mass production of 12-inch 0.7μm colors filter and 64-million pixel image sensors
· Mass production of new generation ambient light sensors
· Set a production record for the year to 1.5 million pieces of equivalent 8” wafers
· Taipei Exchange approved the Company’s shares to be offered to the public.

2021

· The Company’s shares were traded on the Emerging Stock Market.
· Pioneered the launch of the 12-inch 0.61μm image sensors with a specially optical-structured color filter
· Winner of the 6th Taiwan Mittelstand Award
· Issuance of new shares in the amount of NTD 21,240 thousand resulting from exercise of employee stock 

options. After the capital increase, the paid-up capital amounted to NTD 2,932,771 thousand.
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Chairman
(and Chief 
Executive Officer)

President

Business 
Development 
Organization

Audit

Three.Corporate Governance Report

I. Organization and main departments

(II) Responsibilities of main departments:

(ǀ)Organizational Chart

Name of department Responsibilities

• Formulate the Company's medium and long-term business development strategy.
• Implement the Board of Directors’ resolutions and sustainable development goals.
• Supervise the business performance and budget management of the subordinate units.

• Better the management system and organizational structure.
• Supervise the business performance of the subordinate units.
• Management of the annual business plan, investment plan, and budget.

• The Audit is an independent and objective unit that contributes and adds value to the organization 
through consultation services.

• Assesses and improves effectiveness of risk control and corporate governance practices.
• Provides reasonable assurance to the management about the accomplishment of various control 

targets, including: operational performance and efficiency, reliability of financial report, asset security, 
and compliance.

• Monitors market trends, price changes, and new technologies launched by peers; keeps the 
management informed of market trends and technological changes.

• Devises solutions and helps customers resolve issues concerning to product and technical system 
application.

• Produces promotional materials for special production procedures, and thereby convey the value, 
advantage, and application of various technologies owned by the Company.

• Explores customers for existing products offered by the Company, and assists customers in the 
development and mass production of new products.

• Markets a diverse range of services to support customers’ business activities, and increases 
customers’ revenue contribution to the Company.

• Issues quotation forms and manages customers’ orders.
• Answers customers’ inquiries concerning delivery date and shipping status.

Shareholders’ Meeting

Board of Directors
Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

Audit

Chairman and CEO

President Office

Financial
organization

Head of Legal 
and Corporate 

Governance

Business
Development 
Organization

Color Filter
Organization

Wafer Level 
Optical 

Organization

Resource
Planning

Organization

Human
Resource

Department

Quality
Assurance
Department

Information 
Technology
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Color Filter 
Organization

• Responsible for the management of production procedures, manufacturing, equipment, and inter-
department coordination.

• Planning, preparation, and coordination of production capacity.
• Executes total control over production procedures to meet customers’ product requirements, and 

thereby improve customer satisfaction.
• Maintenance, servicing, and ongoing improvement of production and measuring equipment.
• Improvement of yields for various production procedures.

Wafer Level Optical 
Organization

• Responsible for the development of new products and new process technologies for mass production.
• Responsible for the development of advanced modules for mass production.
• Maintains productive interaction with customers, learns customers’ requirements, and solves 

customers’ problems.
• Planning, preparation, and coordination of production capacity.
• Improvement of multi-film yield.
• Responsible for the implementation of multi-film production equipment.
• Provides customers with production specifications, procedures, and controls for various products.

Resource Planning 
Organization

• Oversees procurement, logistics, plant affairs, capacity improvement, and new plant construction.
• Purchase of raw materials, supplies, and equipment.
• Capacity calculation and productivity improvement.
• Enforcement and assessments of safety and health, and environmental protection issues.
• Assessment and execution of plant affairs raised by various departments.
• Ensures compliance with the Company’s work safety and environmental protection rules and relevant 

laws and regulations.
• Planning and preparation of new plants and production capacity.

Human Resource 
Department

• Makes annual human resource capacity plans.
• Designs the compensation/welfare system and ensures compliance with laws and regulations.
• Establishes employee training program and executes deal assessment.
• Management of employee relations and labor-management relations.

Quality Assurance 
Department

• Leads the Quality Engineering Department, Reliability Engineering Department, and Quality System 
and Customer Quality Assurance Department.

• Project management of major abnormalities related to FAB quality issues.
• Enforces quality culture and strategies throughout the Company.
• Planning, promote, and assessment of activities for various departments under the Quality & Reliability 

Assurance Division.
• Coordinates plants, divisions, and departments within the Company to assist the Quality & Reliability 

Assurance Division in various initiatives.
• Represents the Company in negotiating quality-/reliability-related matters with customers.

Information 
Technology

• Provides good computers and network operation platform to improve operating efficiency and quality.
• Development and design of an e-commerce system for improved customer satisfaction.
• Establishment of a cybersecurity system to ensure security of information used within the Company.
• Responsible for the integration, use, and promotion of information technologies within the Company.

Financial 
organization

• Performs administrative tasks such as operational planning, organization, guidance, coordination, 
control, and evaluation for subordinate departments.

• Oversees funding and supervises/reviews financial and accounting practices to ensure compliance 
with internal control and regulations.

• Reviews annual budget and operational performance, and proposes recommendations for financial/
taxation/investment/funding decisions.

• Oversees details concerning the convention of shareholder’s meeting.

Legal

• Reviews and drafts contracts or related legal documents.
• Handles submission, review, reward, and management of proposals pertaining to intellectual property 

rights.
• Assists various departments with compliance matters and offers recommendations.
• Serves secretarial duties for the Board of Directors and Audit Committee, and oversees board meeting 

affairs and audit committee meeting affairs.
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II. Background information of directors, supervisors, the President, vice presidents, assistant vice 
presidents, and heads of various departments and branches 

Position
Nationality 
or place of 
registration

Name
Gender
Age

Date elected 
(appointed)
(Note 1) Tenure

Date first elected
(Note 1)

Shareholding when elected Current shareholding
Shareholding of 
spouse and underage 
children

Shares held by proxy Main career (academic) achievements
Concurrent duties in the 
Company and in other 
companie

Spouse or relatives of second 
degree or closer acting as 
manager, director or supervisor

Remarks

Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Position Name Relation

Chairman R.O.C.

TSMC(Note 2) - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
Robert Kuan (Note 3) Male

51-60 years old March 4, 2021 May 16, 2021 - - 154,600 0.05 - - - -

Master of Materials Science and Engineering, National Tsing Hua 
University
TSMC-Plant Manager
SSMC -VP of Operations

CEO of the Company - - - Note 6

Directors R.O.C.

TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
George Liu (Note 3)

Male
61-70 years old March 4, 2021 December 3, 

2015 - - - - - - - -

Master of Electrical Engineering, Arizona State University
TSMC-Senior Head of Department
Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation - Vice President
Intel Corporation - Director

TSMC-Senior Head of 
Department - - - -

Directors R.O.C.
TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
C.S. Yoo (Note 3)

Male
61-70 years old June14, 2019 November 1, 

2018 - - - - - - - - Ph.D., Worcester Polytechnic Institute
TSMC-Vice President TSMC-Vice President - - - -

Directors R.O.C.

TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
Sylvia Fang (Note 4) Female

51-60 years old June 19, 2020 June 19, 2020 - - - - - - - -

Master of Comparative Law, The University of Iowa
Attorney in Taiwan
TSMC-Vice President and Chief Legal Officer
Taiwan International Patent & Law Office - Senior Legal Specialist

Note 7 - - - -

Directors R.O.C.
TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
Diane Kao (Note 3)

Female
51-60 years old March 4, 2021 June 19, 2020 - - - - - - - - MBA, University of California, Berkeley; TSMC-Senior Head of 

Department
TSMC-Senior Head of 
Department - - - -

Supervisor R.O.C. Wendell Huang
(Note 5)

Male
61-70 years old June14, 2019 3 years June 15, 2012 - - - - - - - - MBA, Cornell University

TSMC - Vice President and CFO Note 8 - - - -

Supervisor R.O.C. Morris Cheng
(Note 5)

Male
41-50 years old June 19, 2020 3 years June 19, 2020 - - - - 14,000 0.00 - -

Ph.D. in Law, University of California, Berkeley
Attorney in Taiwan and USA
TSMC - Head of Department
Taiwan Hsinchu District Court - Judge

TSMC - Head of Department - - - -

Independent 
Director R.O.C. Laura Huang

(Note 3)
Female
61-70 years old March 4, 2021 3 years March 4, 2021 - - - - - - - -

MBA, University of Missouri
UBS - Director and President/Head of Taiwan Region, Ultra High Net 
Worth Department
Merrill Lynch - Director and President
China Development Financial Holding Corporation - Senior VP/Head 
of Investment Banking

- - - - -

Independent 
Director R.O.C. Emma Chang

(Note 3)
Female
51-60 years old March 4, 2021 3 years March 4, 2021 - - - - - - - -

Master of Law, University of Washington
MediaTek Inc. - Head of Legal Affairs and Intellectual Property 
Department
Standard Chartered Bank - Chief Legal Officer
TSMC-Deputy Head of Legal

- - - - -

Independent 
Director R.O.C.

Peng-Heng Chang 
(Note 3) Male

61-70 years old March 4, 2021 3 years March 4, 2021 - - - - - - - -

Ph.D. in Materials Science & Engineering, Purdue University
Motech Industries Inc. - Chairman
TSMC-Vice President
WSMC - Vice President

Note 9 - - - -

Note 1: Month/Day/Year.
Note 2: Abbreviation of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“TSMC” hereinafter).
Note 3: Service commenced following the director election held during the extraordinary shareholder's meeting dated March 4, 2021.
Note 4: Mr. C.S. Yoo and Madam Sylvia Fang departed from duty as director representatives on March 4, 2021; the change of shareholding reflected 

information as of the time of departure.
Note 5: The Company assembled the Audit Committee on March 4, 2021. Hence supervisors Mr. Wendell Huang and Mr. Morris Cheng were discharged 

from duty by default. Change of shareholding reflected information as of the time of departure.
Note 6: The Chairman concurrently serving as the CEO of the Company is solely responsible for 1) matters regarding operational judgment, operation 

management, and crisis management; 2) exercising professional knowledge of the international market, so as to demonstrate his/her leadership 
and decision-making competence to adopt the Company’s operations to market trends; 3) determining the Company's annual financial budget, 
final accounting plan, earnings distribution plan, and loss make-up plan; 4) implementing corporate governance, so as to strike an operational 
balance among all stakeholders; 5) ensuring operational planning that will achieve sound management; and 6) being accountable to the Board 
of Directors, organizing and implementing all resolutions and regulations resolved by the Board of Directors, fulfilling the criteria set forth by the 
Board of Directors, and reporting the implementation status to the Board of Directors. The Company has also set a post for president. The President 

(I) Background information of directors and supervisors

Three
C

orporate G
overnance R

eport

12



February 28, 2022; shares; %

Position
Nationality 
or place of 
registration

Name
Gender
Age

Date elected 
(appointed)
(Note 1) Tenure

Date first elected
(Note 1)

Shareholding when elected Current shareholding
Shareholding of 
spouse and underage 
children

Shares held by proxy Main career (academic) achievements
Concurrent duties in the 
Company and in other 
companie

Spouse or relatives of second 
degree or closer acting as 
manager, director or supervisor

Remarks

Shares % Shares % Shares % Shares % Position Name Relation

Chairman R.O.C.

TSMC(Note 2) - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
Robert Kuan (Note 3) Male

51-60 years old March 4, 2021 May 16, 2021 - - 154,600 0.05 - - - -

Master of Materials Science and Engineering, National Tsing Hua 
University
TSMC-Plant Manager
SSMC -VP of Operations

CEO of the Company - - - Note 6

Directors R.O.C.

TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
George Liu (Note 3)

Male
61-70 years old March 4, 2021 December 3, 

2015 - - - - - - - -

Master of Electrical Engineering, Arizona State University
TSMC-Senior Head of Department
Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation - Vice President
Intel Corporation - Director

TSMC-Senior Head of 
Department - - - -

Directors R.O.C.
TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
C.S. Yoo (Note 3)

Male
61-70 years old June14, 2019 November 1, 

2018 - - - - - - - - Ph.D., Worcester Polytechnic Institute
TSMC-Vice President TSMC-Vice President - - - -

Directors R.O.C.

TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
Sylvia Fang (Note 4) Female

51-60 years old June 19, 2020 June 19, 2020 - - - - - - - -

Master of Comparative Law, The University of Iowa
Attorney in Taiwan
TSMC-Vice President and Chief Legal Officer
Taiwan International Patent & Law Office - Senior Legal Specialist

Note 7 - - - -

Directors R.O.C.
TSMC - - 3 years - 253,120,000 86.94 213,619,000 72.81 - - - - - - - - - -

Representative:
Diane Kao (Note 3)

Female
51-60 years old March 4, 2021 June 19, 2020 - - - - - - - - MBA, University of California, Berkeley; TSMC-Senior Head of 

Department
TSMC-Senior Head of 
Department - - - -

Supervisor R.O.C. Wendell Huang
(Note 5)

Male
61-70 years old June14, 2019 3 years June 15, 2012 - - - - - - - - MBA, Cornell University

TSMC - Vice President and CFO Note 8 - - - -

Supervisor R.O.C. Morris Cheng
(Note 5)

Male
41-50 years old June 19, 2020 3 years June 19, 2020 - - - - 14,000 0.00 - -

Ph.D. in Law, University of California, Berkeley
Attorney in Taiwan and USA
TSMC - Head of Department
Taiwan Hsinchu District Court - Judge

TSMC - Head of Department - - - -

Independent 
Director R.O.C. Laura Huang

(Note 3)
Female
61-70 years old March 4, 2021 3 years March 4, 2021 - - - - - - - -

MBA, University of Missouri
UBS - Director and President/Head of Taiwan Region, Ultra High Net 
Worth Department
Merrill Lynch - Director and President
China Development Financial Holding Corporation - Senior VP/Head 
of Investment Banking

- - - - -

Independent 
Director R.O.C. Emma Chang

(Note 3)
Female
51-60 years old March 4, 2021 3 years March 4, 2021 - - - - - - - -

Master of Law, University of Washington
MediaTek Inc. - Head of Legal Affairs and Intellectual Property 
Department
Standard Chartered Bank - Chief Legal Officer
TSMC-Deputy Head of Legal

- - - - -

Independent 
Director R.O.C.

Peng-Heng Chang 
(Note 3) Male

61-70 years old March 4, 2021 3 years March 4, 2021 - - - - - - - -

Ph.D. in Materials Science & Engineering, Purdue University
Motech Industries Inc. - Chairman
TSMC-Vice President
WSMC - Vice President

Note 9 - - - -

is responsible for taking charge of operational management work (such as sales marketing, R&D, and production and manufacturing), organizing 
and implementing the Company’s annual business plan, and implementing and supervising the investment plan. They complement one another 
because such an organizational design is an embodiment of a hierarchy of authority that can improve overall operational efficiency. A majority of 
members of the Board of Directors do not concurrently serve as the Company’s employee or manager. The Board of Directors has three seats 
for independent directors, who compose each functional committee, which thoroughly discusses important issues before submitting suggestions 
to the Board of Directors. Such an organizational design is capable of implementing the spirit of corporate governance and exhibiting overall 
operating performance. The Company expects to elect one additional Independent Director in 2023.

Note 7: TSMC-Vice President and Chief Legal Officer; TSMC North America/TSMC Japan Limited/TSMC Arizona Corporation/TSMC Development Inc./
TSMC Partners, Ltd./TSMC Design Technology Canada Inc./TSMC Global Ltd.-Director; and TSMC (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. - Supervisor. 

Note 8: TSMC - Vice President and CFO; TSMC Europe B.V/TSMC Desgin Technology Japan, Inc./TSMC Korea Limited/TSMC Arizona Corporation/
WaferTech, LLC/ TSMC Global Ltd. - Directors; TSMC (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. - Supervisor; TSMC Technology, Inc.-Chairman; TSMC Development, Inc.-
Chairman and President; TSMC Partners, Ltd. - Director and President.

Note 9: MediaTek Inc. - Independent Director; Ruiyang Optoelectronics - Representative of Corporate Director; Chi-Kuang Solar Energy - Chairman; Ruiri 
Optoelectronics - Representative of Corporate Director; and Big Sun Energy Technology Inc. - Representative of Corporate Director.  
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Major shareholders of corporate shareholders

Where the major shareholders of a corporate 
shareholder are also a corporate shareholder

June 23, 2021

Name of corporate 
shareholder Major shareholders of corporate shareholders Shares Ratio (%)

Taiwan 
Semiconductor 
Manufacturing Co., 
Ltd.

Citibank in its capacity as Master Custodian for Depository Receipts of 
TSMC 20.52

National Development Fund, Executive Yuan 6.38
Citibank (Taiwan) in its capacity as Master Custodian for Investment Account 
of GIC Pte Ltd. (Singapore) 2.42

Citibank (Taiwan) in its capacity as Master Custodian for Investment Account 
of Norges Bank 1.48

JP Morgan Chase Bank in its Capacity as Master Custodian for PGIA 
Progress International Equity Index 1.17

New Labor Pension Fund 1.03
JP Morgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch in its capacity as Master Custodian for 
Investment Account of Vanguard FTSE Emerging Markets ETF 0.95

Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 0.84
Standard Chartered Bank in its Capacity as Master Custodian for iShares 
Emerging Markets ETF 0.81

JP Morgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch in its Capacity as Master Custodian 
for Investment Account of Europacific Growth Fund - A Group of 14 Trustees 
including David Fisher

0.79

Name of corporate entity Corporate entity's major shareholders Shares Ratio (%)

Fubon Life Insurance 
Co., Ltd.

Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. 100.00
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Disclosure of information on professional qualifications of directors and supervisors and on the 
independence of independent directors:

                  Criteria
Name

Professional qualifications and experience
Number of positions as 
independent director in 
other public companies

TSMC
Representative: 
Robert Kuan
(Note 1)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• Master of Materials Science and Engineering, National Tsing Hua University
• TSMC-Plant Manager
• SSMC -VP of Operations

Incumbent:
• The Company’s Chairman and CEO

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

TSMC
Representative: 
George Liu
(Note 1)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• Master of Electrical Engineering, Arizona State University
• Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation - Vice President
• Intel Corporation - Director

Incumbent:
• TSMC-Senior Head of Department

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

TSMC
Representative: 
C.S. Yoo
(Note 2)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• Ph.D., Worcester Polytechnic Institute

Incumbent:
• TSMC-Vice President

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

TSMC
Representative:
Sylvia Fang
(Note 2)

Professional qualification: Attorney in Taiwan
Main career (academic) achievements:

• Master of Comparative Law, The University of Iowa
• Taiwan International Patent & Law Office - Senior Legal Specialist
• Taiwan Association for Trade Secrets Protection (TTSP) - Director

Incumbent:
• TSMC-Vice President and Chief Legal Officer
• TSMC North America/TSMC Japan Limited/TSMC Arizona Corporation/TSMC Development Inc./TSMC Partners,  

Ltd./TSMC Design Technology Canada Inc./TSMC Global Ltd.-Director.
• TSMC (Nanjing) Co., Ltd. - Supervisor

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

TSMC
Representative: 
Diane Kao
(Note 1)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• MBA, University of California, Berkeley

Incumbent:
• TSMC-Senior Head of Department

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

Wendell Huang
 (Note 3)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• MBA, Cornell University
• ING Barings - Financial Vice President
• Chase Manhattan - Financial Vice President
• Bankers Trust - Financial Vice President

Incumbent:
• TSMC - Financial Vice President, CFO, and Spokesperson
• TSMC - Vice President and CFO

 (No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

Morris Cheng 
(Note 3)

Professional qualification: Attorney in Taiwan and the United States
Main career (academic) achievements:

• Ph.D. in Law, University of California, Berkeley
• Taiwan Hsinchu District Court - Judge

Incumbent:
• TSMC - Head of the Legal Affairs and Legal Compliance Department

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

Independence   There did not exist a relationship among the Company’s directors, among supervisors, or among directors 
and supervisors that violates the independence requirements specified in the Securities and Exchange Act.

Name of corporate 
shareholder Major shareholders of corporate shareholders Shares Ratio (%)

Taiwan 
Semiconductor 
Manufacturing Co., 
Ltd.

Citibank in its capacity as Master Custodian for Depository Receipts of 
TSMC 20.52

National Development Fund, Executive Yuan 6.38
Citibank (Taiwan) in its capacity as Master Custodian for Investment Account 
of GIC Pte Ltd. (Singapore) 2.42

Citibank (Taiwan) in its capacity as Master Custodian for Investment Account 
of Norges Bank 1.48

JP Morgan Chase Bank in its Capacity as Master Custodian for PGIA 
Progress International Equity Index 1.17

New Labor Pension Fund 1.03
JP Morgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch in its capacity as Master Custodian for 
Investment Account of Vanguard FTSE Emerging Markets ETF 0.95

Fubon Life Insurance Co., Ltd. 0.84
Standard Chartered Bank in its Capacity as Master Custodian for iShares 
Emerging Markets ETF 0.81

JP Morgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch in its Capacity as Master Custodian 
for Investment Account of Europacific Growth Fund - A Group of 14 Trustees 
including David Fisher

0.79
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                  Criteria
Name

Professional qualifications and experience
Number of positions as 
independent director in 
other public companies

Laura Huang
 (Note 1)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• MBA, University of Missouri
• UBS - Director and President/Head of Taiwan Region, Ultra High Net Worth Department
• Merrill Lynch - Director and President
• China Development Financial Holding Corporation - Senior VP/Head of Investment Banking

Incumbent: 
Serving as the Company’s chairman of the Audit Committee, with accounting and professional financial background.

• Having more than 5 years of work experience in commerce, law, finance, or other professional areas that fits the 
business needs of the Company (refer to their major education and experience as stated above)

• A graduate in accounting, finance, and business related disciplines.
• Possess professional certificates such as Taiwan Senior Salesperson and various qualifications granted by Hong 

Kong Securities and Futures Commission (SFC).
(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

Emma Chang
 (Note 1)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• Master of Law, University of Washington
• MediaTek Inc. - Head of Legal Affairs and Intellectual Property Department
• Standard Chartered Bank - Chief Legal Officer
• TSMC-Deputy Head of Legal

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

0

Peng-Heng Chang 
(Note 1)

Main career (academic) achievements:
• Ph.D. in Materials Science & Engineering, Purdue University
• Motech Industries Inc. - Chairman
• TSMC-Vice President
• WSMC - Vice President

Incumbent:
• Having more than 5 years of work experience in commerce, law, finance, or other professional areas that fits the 

business needs of the Company (refer to their major education and experience as stated above)
• The Company’s Remuneration Committee - Chairman
• MediaTek Inc. - Independent Director
• Ruiyang Optoelectronics - Representative of Corporate Director
• Chi-Kuang Solar Energy - Chairman
• Ruiri Optoelectronics - Representative of Corporate Director
• Big Sun Energy Technology Inc. - Representative of Corporate Director

(No occurrence of any of the circumstances stated in Article 30 of the Company Act)

1

Note 1: Service commenced following the director election held during the extraordinary shareholder's meeting dated March 4, 2021.
Note 2: Mr. C.S. Yoo and Madam Sylvia Fang departed from duty as director representatives on March 4, 2021.
Note 3: The Company assembled the Audit Committee on March 4, 2021. Hence supervisors Mr. Wendell Huang and Mr. Morris Cheng   

were discharged from duty by default.

(I) Diversification of Board of Directors:
The Company’s directors are selected based on its business operations, operating dynamics, and development needs in 
accordance with Article 23 of “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles”, which include, without being limited to, the following 
two general standards:

I. Basic requirements and values: Gender, age, nationality, and culture.

II. Professional knowledge and skills: 
A professional background (e.g., law, accounting, industry, finance, marketing, or technology), professional skills, and industry 
experience. The Board of Directors as a whole shall possess the following capabilities: Ability to make judgments about operations; 
ability to perform accounting and financial analysis; business management ability; crisis management ability; industrial knowledge; 
Knowledge of international markets; leadership; and ability to make policy decisions, so as to achieve the ideal of corporate 
governance.

Independence   
The Company’s three independent directors qualify for the independence requirements set forth in 
the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public 
Companies”
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(II) Independence of Board of Directors:
The Company has 6 directors, of which 3 are independent directors, accounting for no less than half of the director seats. Each 
independent director satisfies the independence requirements set forth in the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent 
Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies”, and there is no relationship as a spouse or second-degree relative among 
directors, which is in compliance with the regulations specified in Paragraph 3 and Paragraph 4, Article 26-3 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act.

Independence   
The Company’s three independent directors qualify for the independence requirements set forth in 
the “Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public 
Companies”

Implementation of the diversification policy with regard to Board of Directors members is stated as follows:

I. Basic requirements and values: The Company’s Board of Directors is assembled based on the Company’s scale of operation and 
management, taking into account practical operation. Members are all Taiwanese nationals; only one director concurrently serves 
as an employee. The Company also values gender equality, in that 3 out of the 6 seats of directors are female, constituting 50% of 
the members of the Board of Directors. As regards the dispersion of age range, 3 directors are aged between 51 - 60 years old and 
another 3 directors are aged 61-70 years old. The Board of Directors has an even dispersion of gender and age.

II.Professional knowledge and skills: 

Industrial knowledge and experience Professional capability

Semi-conductor 
industry

Optoelectronics 
industry

Finance and 
management

Finance and 
securities

Operational 
judgment

Operational 
management

Crisis 
management

Industrial 
knowledge

Knowledge of 
the international 
markets

Leadership 
and 
decision-making

Finance and 
accounting Law

TSMC
Representative: 
Robert Kuan

As shown 
on the left

TSMC
Representative: 
George Liu

As shown 
on the left

TSMC
Representative: 
Diane Kao

As shown 
on the left

Independent Director
Laura Huang

As shown 
on the left

Independent Director
Emma Chang

As shown 
on the left

Independent Director
Peng-Heng Chang 

As shown 
on the left

Diversification 
item

Name of 
director
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Position Nationality Name Gender
Date elected 
(appointed)
(Note 1)

No. of shares held Shareholding of spouse and 
underage children Shares held by proxy

Main career (academic) 
achievements

Concurrent duties in the Company 
and in other companies

Manager who is a spouse or a 
second-degree relative

Remarks
Shares % Shares % Shares % Position Name Relation

Chairman and CEO R.O.C Robert Kuan Male May 16, 
2021 154,600 0.05 - - - -

Master of Materials Science and Engineering, National Tsing Hua 
University
TSMC-Plant Manager
SSMC -VP of Operations

- - - - -

President R.O.C S.C. Hsin Male March 15, 
2011 - - - - - -

Master of Physics, National Tsing Hua University
TSMC - Head of Department
Philips Taiwan - Manager

- - - - -

Vice President and CFO/
Accounting Supervisor R.O.C Kevin Tsai Male July 10, 

2006 - - 592,500 0.20 - -
Bachelor of Accounting, Soochow University
WIN Semiconductors - CFO
TSMC-Department Manager
TI-Acer Inc. - Department Manager

- - - - -

Vice President R.O.C H.J. Tsai Male November 12, 
2010 335,060 0.11 - - - -

Master of Materials Science, National Tsing Hua University
Zhongwei Semi- - Department Manager
TSMC-Manager

- - - - -

Vice President R.O.C K.P. Lin Male March 6,
 2020 26,736 0.01 50,000 0.02 - - Bachelor of Chemical Engineering, National Tsing Hua University

TSMC - Chief Engineer - - - - -

Vice President R.O.C W.R. Huang Male March 6, 
2020 - - - - - -

Bachelor of Industrial Engineering, National Tsing Hua University
HOYA Microelectronics Taiwan CO., Ltd. - Vice President
TSMC - Deputy Head of Department

- - - - -

Vice President R.O.C J.C. Hsieh Male February
23, 2022 32,981 0.01 - - - - Master of Chemical Engineering, National Cheng Kung University

TSMC-Project Manager - - - - Note 2

Assistant Vice President R.O.C C.C. Chen Male June 1, 
2011 100 0.00 391 0.00 - - Master of Materials Science, National Taiwan University - - - - -

Assistant Vice President R.O.C Ben Fun Male July 1, 
2011 170 0.00 - - - -

PhD in Industrial Engineering and Engineering Management, 
National Tsing Hua University
GlobalFoundries - Deputy Head of Department
TSMC-Department Manager

- - - - -

Audit Supervisor R.O.C Meng-shan 
Wu Female June19, 

2020 6,000 0.00 - - - -
Bachelor of Accounting, Chung Yuan University
GIS-KY Internal Audit
Micron Technology, Inc. - Internal IT Audit

- - - - -

Head of Corporate 
Governance R.O.C Chia-hui Lin Female August 11, 

2021 - - - - - - Master of Laws, Boston University
FIH Co., Ltd. - Senior Manager - - - - Note 3

Note 1: Month/Day/Year.
Note 2: Mr. J.C. Hsieh was promoted to Vice President on February 23, 2022 with the approval of the Board of Directors.
Note 3: Ms. Chia-hui Lin was promoted to the Head of Corporate Governance on August 11, 2021 with the approval of the Board of Directors.

 (II) Background information on the President, vice presidents, assistant vice presidents, and heads of various departments and branches
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Position Nationality Name Gender
Date elected 
(appointed)
(Note 1)

No. of shares held Shareholding of spouse and 
underage children Shares held by proxy

Main career (academic) 
achievements

Concurrent duties in the Company 
and in other companies

Manager who is a spouse or a 
second-degree relative

Remarks
Shares % Shares % Shares % Position Name Relation

Chairman and CEO R.O.C Robert Kuan Male May 16, 
2021 154,600 0.05 - - - -

Master of Materials Science and Engineering, National Tsing Hua 
University
TSMC-Plant Manager
SSMC -VP of Operations

- - - - -

President R.O.C S.C. Hsin Male March 15, 
2011 - - - - - -

Master of Physics, National Tsing Hua University
TSMC - Head of Department
Philips Taiwan - Manager

- - - - -

Vice President and CFO/
Accounting Supervisor R.O.C Kevin Tsai Male July 10, 

2006 - - 592,500 0.20 - -
Bachelor of Accounting, Soochow University
WIN Semiconductors - CFO
TSMC-Department Manager
TI-Acer Inc. - Department Manager

- - - - -

Vice President R.O.C H.J. Tsai Male November 12, 
2010 335,060 0.11 - - - -

Master of Materials Science, National Tsing Hua University
Zhongwei Semi- - Department Manager
TSMC-Manager

- - - - -

Vice President R.O.C K.P. Lin Male March 6,
 2020 26,736 0.01 50,000 0.02 - - Bachelor of Chemical Engineering, National Tsing Hua University

TSMC - Chief Engineer - - - - -

Vice President R.O.C W.R. Huang Male March 6, 
2020 - - - - - -

Bachelor of Industrial Engineering, National Tsing Hua University
HOYA Microelectronics Taiwan CO., Ltd. - Vice President
TSMC - Deputy Head of Department

- - - - -

Vice President R.O.C J.C. Hsieh Male February
23, 2022 32,981 0.01 - - - - Master of Chemical Engineering, National Cheng Kung University

TSMC-Project Manager - - - - Note 2

Assistant Vice President R.O.C C.C. Chen Male June 1, 
2011 100 0.00 391 0.00 - - Master of Materials Science, National Taiwan University - - - - -

Assistant Vice President R.O.C Ben Fun Male July 1, 
2011 170 0.00 - - - -

PhD in Industrial Engineering and Engineering Management, 
National Tsing Hua University
GlobalFoundries - Deputy Head of Department
TSMC-Department Manager

- - - - -

Audit Supervisor R.O.C Meng-shan 
Wu Female June19, 

2020 6,000 0.00 - - - -
Bachelor of Accounting, Chung Yuan University
GIS-KY Internal Audit
Micron Technology, Inc. - Internal IT Audit

- - - - -

Head of Corporate 
Governance R.O.C Chia-hui Lin Female August 11, 

2021 - - - - - - Master of Laws, Boston University
FIH Co., Ltd. - Senior Manager - - - - Note 3

February 28, 2022; Unit: shares/% (II) Background information on the President, vice presidents, assistant vice presidents, and heads of various departments and branches

Annual Report 
2021

Three
C

orporate G
overnance R

eport

19



III. Compensation paid to directors, supervisors, the President, and vice presidents in 2021
(I) Compensation to directors 

Position Name

Directors' compensation
Sum of A, B, C, and D as a 
percentage of net income

Compensation received as employee Sum of A, B, C, D, E, F, and 
G as a percentage of net 
income

Compensation 
from parent 
company 
or business 
investments 
other than 
subsidiaries

Compensation (A) Severance payment and 
pension (B) Director remuneration (C) Fees for services rendered 

(D)
Salaries, bonuses, special 
allowances etc. (E)

Severance payment and 
pension (F) Employee remuneration (G)

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company
All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company All companies included 
in the financial report The 

Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial reportAmount paid 

in cash
Amount paid 
in shares

Amount paid 
in cash

Amount 
paid in 
shares

Chairman

TSMC

2,971 2,971 - - 2,674 2,674 - - 0.26% 0.26% 6,640 6,640 - - 13,568 - 13,568 -
25,853

1.19%

25,853

1.19%
None

Representative:
Robert Kuan

Directors

TSMC

Representative:
George Liu

Directors
TSMC

Representative:
C.S. Yoo (Note)

Directors
TSMC

Representative:
Sylvia Fang (Note)

Directors
TSMC

Representative:
Diane Kao

Independent 
Director Laura Huang

Independent 
Director Emma Chang

Independent 
Director Peng-Heng Chang

Compensation received by director for providing service to any company included in the financial statements (e.g. consultancy service without the title 
of an employee) in the last year, except those disclosed in the above table: None

Range  o f  compensa t i on  pa id  to  d i rec to rs
Sum o f  f i r s t  4  compensa t i ons  (A+B+C+D) Sum o f  f i r s t  7  compensa t i ons  (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  f i nanc ia l  r epo r t  H The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  f i nanc ia l  r epo r t  I

Below NT$ 1,000,000
TSMC TSMC TSMC

Represen ta t i ve :  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  
D iane  Kao ;  Lau ra  Huang ;Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  
Chang .

TSMC

Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan ;  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  D iane  
Kao ;  Lau ra  Huang ;  Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  Chang .

Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan ;  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  D iane  
Kao ;  Lau ra  Huang ;  Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  Chang .

Represen ta t i ve :  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  D iane  Kao ;  
Lau ra  Huang ;Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  Chang .

NT$ 1,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 2,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 2,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 3,500,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 3,500,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 5,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 5,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 10,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 10,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 15,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 15,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 30,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan

NT$ 30,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 50,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 50,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 100,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 100,000,000 and above - - - -

To ta l A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons

Director Compensation Bracket Table

Name of
director

Three
C

orporate G
overnance R

eport

20



Unit: NTD thousand; %

 

Position Name

Directors' compensation
Sum of A, B, C, and D as a 
percentage of net income

Compensation received as employee Sum of A, B, C, D, E, F, and 
G as a percentage of net 
income

Compensation 
from parent 
company 
or business 
investments 
other than 
subsidiaries

Compensation (A) Severance payment and 
pension (B) Director remuneration (C) Fees for services rendered 

(D)
Salaries, bonuses, special 
allowances etc. (E)

Severance payment and 
pension (F) Employee remuneration (G)

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company
All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The 
Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial report

The Company All companies included 
in the financial report The 

Company

All companies 
included in the 
financial reportAmount paid 

in cash
Amount paid 
in shares

Amount paid 
in cash

Amount 
paid in 
shares

Chairman

TSMC

2,971 2,971 - - 2,674 2,674 - - 0.26% 0.26% 6,640 6,640 - - 13,568 - 13,568 -
25,853

1.19%

25,853

1.19%
None

Representative:
Robert Kuan

Directors

TSMC

Representative:
George Liu

Directors
TSMC

Representative:
C.S. Yoo (Note)

Directors
TSMC

Representative:
Sylvia Fang (Note)

Directors
TSMC

Representative:
Diane Kao

Independent 
Director Laura Huang

Independent 
Director Emma Chang

Independent 
Director Peng-Heng Chang

Compensation received by director for providing service to any company included in the financial statements (e.g. consultancy service without the title 
of an employee) in the last year, except those disclosed in the above table: None

Note: Mr. C.S. Yoo and Madam Sylvia Fang departed from duty as director representatives on March 4, 2021.

Range  o f  compensa t i on  pa id  to  d i rec to rs
Sum o f  f i r s t  4  compensa t i ons  (A+B+C+D) Sum o f  f i r s t  7  compensa t i ons  (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  f i nanc ia l  r epo r t  H The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  f i nanc ia l  r epo r t  I

Below NT$ 1,000,000
TSMC TSMC TSMC

Represen ta t i ve :  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  
D iane  Kao ;  Lau ra  Huang ;Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  
Chang .

TSMC

Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan ;  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  D iane  
Kao ;  Lau ra  Huang ;  Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  Chang .

Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan ;  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  D iane  
Kao ;  Lau ra  Huang ;  Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  Chang .

Represen ta t i ve :  George  L iu ;  C .S .  Yoo ;  Sy l v ia  Fang ;  D iane  Kao ;  
Lau ra  Huang ;Emma Chang ;  and  Peng-Heng  Chang .

NT$ 1,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 2,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 2,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 3,500,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 3,500,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 5,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 5,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 10,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 10,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 15,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 15,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 30,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  Kuan

NT$ 30,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 50,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 50,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 100,000,000 (non-inclusive) - - - -

NT$ 100,000,000 and above - - - -

To ta l A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  8  pe rsons
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(II) Supervisors' compensation:

Pos i t i on Name 

Superv i so rs '  compensa t i on
Sum of A, B, and C as a 
percentage of net income Compensa t i on  

f rom pa ren t  
company  o r  
bus iness  
i nves tmen ts  
o the r  t han  
subs id ia r i es

Compensa t i on  (A ) Remunera t i on  (B ) Fees  fo r  se rv i ces  rende red  (C )

The
Company

A l l  compan ies  
i nc luded  i n  t he  
f i nanc ia l  r epo r t

The  
Company

A l l  compan ies  
i nc luded  i n  t he  
f i nanc ia l  r epo r t

The
Company

A l l  compan ies  
i nc luded  i n  t he  
f i nanc ia l  r epo r t

The  
Company

A l l  compan ies  
i nc luded  i n  t he  
f i nanc ia l  r epo r t

Superv i so r
Wende l l
Huang

- - - - - - - - None

Superv i so r
Mor r i s  
Cheng

- - - - - - - - None

Name o f  supe rv i so r
Range  o f  compensa t i on
pa id  to  supe rv i so rs

Sum o f  t he  f i r s t  3  compensa t i ons  (A+B+C)

The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  f i nanc ia l  
r epo r t  D

Below NT$ 1,000,000 Wende l l  Huang ,  Mor r i s  Cheng Wende l l  Huang ,  Mor r i s  Cheng

NT$ 1,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 2,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 2,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 3,500,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 3,500,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 5,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 5,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 10,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 10,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 15,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 15,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 30,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 30,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 50,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 50,000,000 ( inc lus ive)  -  NT$ 100,000,000 (non- inc lus ive) - -

NT$ 100,000,000 and above - -

To ta l A to ta l  o f  2  pe rsons A to ta l  o f  2  pe rsons

Note: The Company assembled an Audit Committee on March 4, 2021, hence supervisors Mr. Wendell Huang and Mr. Morris Cheng were discharged 
from duty by default.

Compensation Bracket Table
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December 31, 2021; Unit: NTD thousand; %

Note 1: Represents pension contributions made in accordance with laws.
Note 2: Mr. J.C. Hsieh was promoted to Vice President on February 23, 2022 with the approval of the Board of Directors.

(III) Compensation to the President and vice presidents

Pos i t i on
Name

Sa la ry  (A )

Seve rance  paymen t

and  pens ion

(B )  (No te  1 )

Bonus  and  spec ia l  
a l l owances  (C )

Emp loyee  remunera t i on  (D )
Sum o f  A ,  B ,  C ,  and  D  
as  a  pe rcen tage  o f  ne t  
i ncome (%)

Compensa t i on  
f rom pa ren t  
company  o r  
bus iness  
i nves tmen ts  
o the r  t han  
subs id ia r i es

The  
Company

A l l
compan ies  
i nc luded
in  the  
f i nanc ia l  
r epo r t

The
Company

A l l
compan ies
inc luded
in  the  
f i nanc ia l  
r epo r t

The
Company

A l l
compan ies
inc luded
in  the
f i nanc ia l
repo r t

The
Company

A l l  compan ies
inc luded  i n  t he
f i nanc ia l  r epo r t

The  
Company

A l l
compan ies  
i nc luded
in  the
f i nanc ia l  
r epo r tAmoun t

pa id  i n  
cash

Amoun t
pa id  i n
sha res

Amoun t  
pa id  i n  
cash

Amoun t
pa id  i n  
sha res

Cha i rman
and  CEO
Rober t  Kuan

22 ,009 22 ,009 680 680 12 ,736 12 ,736 51 ,245 - 51 ,245 -
86 ,670

4 .00%

86 ,670

4 .00%
None

Pres iden t
S .C .  Hs in

Vice  P res iden t
Kev in  Tsa i

V i ce  P res iden t
H .J .  Tsa i

V i ce  P res iden t
K .P.  L in

Vice  P res iden t
W.R .  Huang

Vice  P res iden t
J .C .  Hs ieh

No te  2

Range of  compensat ion to
the President  and vice presidents

The Company Al l  companies included in the 
f inancial  repor t

Below NT$ 1,000,000 - -

NT$ 1,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 2,000,000 (non-inclusive) - -

NT$ 2,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 3,500,000 (non-inclusive) - -

NT$ 3,500,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 5,000,000 (non-inclusive) - -

NT$ 5,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 10,000,000 (non-
inclusive)

- -

NT$ 10,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 15,000,000 (non-
inclusive)

Kevin Tsai ,  H.J.  Tsai ,
K .P.  L in ,  W.R.  Huang

Kevin Tsai ,  H.J.  Tsai ,
K .P.  L in ,  W.R.  Huang

NT$ 15,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 30,000,000 (non-
inclusive)

S.C.  Hsin,  Rober t  Kuan S.C.  Hsin,  Rober t  Kuan

NT$ 30,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 50,000,000 (non-
inclusive)

- -

NT$ 50,000,000 (inclusive) - NT$ 100,000,000 (non-
inclusive)

- -

NT$ 100,000,000 and above - -

Total A total  of  6  persons A total  of  6  persons

Compensation Bracket Table
Names of  President  
and vice presidents
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December 31, 2021; Unit: NTD thousand; %

Pos i t i on Name Amoun t  pa id  i n  
sha res

Amoun t  pa id  i n  
cash To ta l To ta l  as  a  pe rcen tage  o f  

ne t  i ncome (%)

Ch ie f  execu t i ve  o f f i ce r Rober t  Kuan

- 70 ,775
(No te )

70 ,775
(No te ) 3 .27

Pres iden t S .C .  Hs in

Vice  P res iden t

Kev in  Tsa i

H .J .  Tsa i

K .P.  L in

W.R.  Huang

J .C .  Hs ieh

Ass i s tan t  V i ce  
P res iden t

C .C .  Chen

Ben  Fun

Head  o f  Co rpo ra te  
Gove rnance Ch ia -hu i  L in

Note: Ms. Chia-hui Lin was promoted to the Head of Corporate Governance on August 11, 2021 with the approval of the Board of 
Directors.

(IV)Names of managers entitled to employee remuneration and amount entitled:

(V)Amount of compensation paid in the last 2 years by the Company and all companies included in the consolidated financial statements 
to the Company's directors, supervisors, President, and Vice Presidents, and their respective percentages to standalone or consolidated 
net income, as well as the policies, standards, and packages by which they were paid, the procedures through which compensations were 
determined, and their association with business performance and future risks.

1.Directors', supervisors', President's, and vice presidents' compensations paid in the last two years as a percentage to net 
income

2.Compensation policies, standards, packages, and procedures, and association with business performance and future risks

Remuneration for the Company's directors and supervisors has been outlined in the Articles of Incorporation; payment of 
which is resolved by the Board of Directors and reported in shareholders’ meeting. Compensation for the President and vice 
presidents include salary, bonus, and employee remuneration; compensation packages are determined based on the role, 
responsibilities, and contribution of each individual while taking into consideration the peer level and overall performance of 
the Company. Compensations for directors, supervisors, the President, and vice presidents have all been determined after 
taking into consideration the Company's future prospects and risks. Compensations are positively correlated with business 
performance, and have been properly balanced against sustainability and risks.

2020
To ta l  compensa t i on  as  a  pe rcen tage  o f  ne t  i ncome

2021
To ta l  compensa t i on  as  a  pe rcen tage  o f  ne t  i ncome

Pos i t i on The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  
f i nanc ia l  r epo r t The  Company A l l  compan ies  i nc luded  i n  t he  

f i nanc ia l  r epo r t

D i rec to rs - - 0 .26% 0.26%

Superv i so r - - - -

P res iden t  and  v i ce  
p res iden ts 4 .11% 4.11% 4.00% 4.00%
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The Board of Directors convened a total of 4 regular meetings and 2 extraordinary meetings in 2021; details of directors’ and 
supervisors' attendance are shown below:

IV. Corporate governance

(I) Functionality of the Board of Directors

Pos i t i on Name
No.  o f  i n -
pe rson  
a t tendance

Requ i red  
a t tendance

Number  o f  
p roxy  
a t tendance

Percen tage  o f  
i n -pe rson  
a t tendance  (%)

Remarks

Cha i rman

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  
Rober t  Kuan

6 6 0 100%
Duty commenced at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

Di rec to rs

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  
George L iu

5 6 1 83%
Duty commenced at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  
C.S.  Yoo

1 1 0 100%

Duty commenced on June 
14,  2019
Departed f rom duty at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  
Sy lv ia  Fang

1 1 0 100%

Duty commenced on June 
19,  2020
Departed f rom duty at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  
Diane Kao

6 6 0 100%
Duty commenced at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

Superv i so r

Wendel l  
Huang 1 1 0 100%

Duty commenced on June 
14,  2020
Departed f rom duty at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

Morr is  Cheng 1 1 0 100%

Duty commenced on June 
19,  2020
Departed f rom duty at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

I ndependen t  
D i rec to r

Laura Huang 5 5 0 100%
Duty commenced at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

Emma Chang 5 5 0 100%
Duty commenced at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.

Peng-Heng 
Chang 5 5 0 100%

Duty commenced at  the 
ext raord inary shareholders ’ 
meet ing dated March 4,  
2021.
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Other  mandatory d isc losures:

I .  For  board of  d i rectors meet ings that  meet  any of  the fo l lowing descr ip t ions,  s tate the date,  sess ion,  
the d iscussed mot ions,  independent  d i rectors ’ op in ions and how the Company has responded to such 
opin ions.

( I )  Condi t ions descr ibed in  Ar t ic le  14-3 of  the Secur i t ies and Exchange Act :  None.
( I I )  Any other  documented object ions or  reservat ions ra ised by independent  d i rector  against  board 

resolut ion in  re lat ion to mat ters other  than those descr ibed above:  None.

I I .  Disc losure regard ing avoidance of  in terest -conf l ic t ing mot ions,  inc luding the names of  d i rectors con 
cerned,  the mot ions,  the nature of  conf l ic t ing in terests ,  and the vot ing process:  Chai rman Robert  Kuan 
recused h imsel f  f rom the d iscussion of ,  and vot ing on,  h is  compensat ion.

Date  o f  Boa rd  
mee t ing

(Mon th /Day /Year )
Name o f  d i rec to r Mo t ion Na tu re  o f  con f l i c t i ng  

i n te res t Pa r t i c i pa t i on  i n  vo t i ng

March  12 ,  2021
TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  
Kuan

･  Managers ’  pe r fo rmance  i n  
2020  and  sa la ry  ra i se  i n  
2021 ,  w i th  a  f i xed  amoun t  o f  
compensa t i on .

･  Managers ’  pe r fo rmance  eva l -
ua t i on  i t ems  fo r  2021 .

Invo l v ing  the  pe rsona l  
i n te res t  o f  a  manager  
concu r ren t l y  se rv ing  as  a  
d i rec to r

O the r  d i rec to rs  p resen t  ap -
p roved  the  mo t ion  as  i t  was  
p roposed

June  22 ,  2021
TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  
Kuan

･  Managers ’  bonus  p lan
･  Emp loyee  compensa t i on  i n  

cash  fo r  managers  o f  2020
･  To  ren t  a  sma l l  passenger  ca r

Invo l v ing  the  pe rsona l  
i n te res t  o f  a  manager  
concu r ren t l y  se rv ing  as  a  
d i rec to r

O the r  d i rec to rs  p resen t  ap -
p roved  the  mo t ion  as  i t  was  
p roposed

Augus t  11 ,  2021
TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  
Kuan

･  Managers ’  bonus  p lan

Invo l v ing  the  pe rsona l  
i n te res t  o f  a  manager  
concu r ren t l y  se rv ing  as  a  
d i rec to r

O the r  d i rec to rs  p resen t  ap -
p roved  the  mo t ion  as  i t  was  
p roposed

November  11 ,  
2021

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  
Kuan

･  Managers ’  bonus  p lan
･  Managers ’  pe r fo rmance  eva l -

ua t i on  i t ems  fo r  2022 .

Invo l v ing  the  pe rsona l  
i n te res t  o f  a  manager  
concu r ren t l y  se rv ing  as  a  
d i rec to r

O the r  d i rec to rs  p resen t  ap -
p roved  the  mo t ion  as  i t  was  
p roposed

Februa ry  23 ,  
2022

TSMC
Represen ta t i ve :  Rober t  
Kuan

･  Managers ’  bonus  p lan
･  Po l i cy  on  managers  pe r -

fo rmance  eva lua t i on  and  
remunera t i on ;  pe r fo rmance  
eva lua t i on  resu l t s  f o r  2022 ;  
sa la ry  ra i se  and  f i xed  amoun t  
o f  compensa t i on .

Invo l v ing  the  pe rsona l  
i n te res t  o f  a  manager  
concu r ren t l y  se rv ing  as  a  
d i rec to r

O the r  d i rec to rs  p resen t  ap -
p roved  the  mo t ion  as  i t  was  
p roposed

I I I .  TWSE/TPEx l is ted companies are requi red to d isc lose the cyc le,  durat ion,  scope,  method,  and deta i ls  
of  board per formance sel f  (or  peer)  evaluat ions per formed,  and complete Table 2 sect ion (2)  Execu-
t ion of  Board Per formance Evaluat ion:  See table below.

IV.  Enhancements to  the func t iona l i t y  o f  the Board of  D i rec to rs in  the cur rent  and the most  recent  year  
(e.g.  es tab l ishment  o f  Audi t  Commi t tee,  improvement  o f  in fo rmat ion t ransparency etc .) ,  and progress 
of  such enhancements:  To ef fec t ive ly  estab l ish a Board governance system and sound moni to r ing 
func t ion,  the Company has fo rmulated the “Regulat ions Govern ing Board Meet ings”.  A l l  impor tant  mo -
t ions are d isc losed on the Market  Obser vat ion Post  System to fu l ly  d isc lose in fo rmat ion and protec t  
shareho lders’  in te rest .  In  addi t ion,  the Company has estab l ished three posts o f  independent  d i rec -
to rs ,  who compose the Audi t  Commi t tee and the Remunerat ion Commit tee,  so as to fu l f i l l  the sp i r i t  o f  
corporate governance.
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(II) Implementation status of review of Board of Directors’ performance

On June 22, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the proposed “Regulations Governing Performance Evaluation of the Board 
of Directors” and disclosed it on the Company’s website. It stipulates that at each first quarter, an evaluation shall be conducted 
to assess the performance for the previous year of the Board of Directors, members of the Board of Directors, and the functional 
committees, and that the evaluation results shall be submitted to the Board of Directors as a reference for determining their 
remuneration, or for selection or nomination of directors.

Evaluat ion 
f requency

Annual ly

Evaluat ion 
per iod

January 1 through December 31,  2021

Evaluat ion 
scope

Board of  Di rectors;  members of  the Board of  Di rectors;  and funct ional  commit tees

Evaluat ion 
method

Sel f -evaluat ion,  both by the Board of  Di rectors as a whole,  and by each Board of  
Di rectors member

Evaluat ion 
contents

I .  I tems used to evaluate the Board of  Di rectors ’ per formance 
inc ludes the fo l lowing f ive aspects:
( I )   The extent  of  par t ic ipat ion in  the Company’s  operat ions
( I I )   Improvement  in  the Board’s  decis ion-making qual i ty
( I I I )   Composi t ion and st ructure of  the Board of  Di rectors
( IV)   E lect ion of  d i rectors and thei r  cont inuous educat ion
(V)   In ternal  contro l

I I .  I tems used to evaluate the Board members ’ per formance inc lude 
the fo l lowing s ix  aspects:
( I )  Grasp the Company’s  goals  and tasks
( I I )  Understanding of  a  d i rector ’s  dut ies
( I I I )  The extent  of  par t ic ipat ion in  the Company’s  operat ions
( IV)  In ternal  re lat ionship management  and communicat ion
(V)  Di rectors ’ profess ion and cont inuous educat ion
(VI)  In ternal  contro l

I I I .  I tems used to evaluate the funct ional  commit tees’ per formance 
inc lude the fo l lowing f ive aspects:

( I )  The extent  of  par t ic ipat ion in  the Company’s  operat ions
( I I )  Understanding of  the funct ional  commit tee’s  dut ies
( I I I )  Improvement  in  the funct ional  commit tee’s  decis ion-making 
( IV)  qual i ty
(V)  Composi t ion of  the funct ional  commit tee and e lect ion of  
(VI)  commit tee members
(VI I )  In ternal  contro l
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(III) Operating status of the Audit Committee:

The Company established the Audit Committee to strengthen corporate governance and board functions. Its main functions 
include the selection (and dismissal), independence, and performance of certified public accountants, the fair presentation 
of financial reports, the management of the existing or potential risks of the Company, and the supervision of the effective 
implementation of internal control systems of the Company.

The Audit Committee meets regularly on a quarterly basis and, within its terms of reference, may invite the managers of relevant 
departments, internal audit officers, certified public accountants, attorneys, or other personnel of the Company to attend the 
meeting as non-voting participants and provide pertinent and necessary information.

The Audit Committee is responsible to review the following major matters:
• The adoption of or amendments to the internal control system pursuant to Article 14-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act;
• Assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system;
• The adoption or amendment, pursuant to Article 36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act, of the procedures for handling 

financial or business activities of a material nature, such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives trading, loaning of 
funds to others, and endorsements or guarantees for others;

• Matters in which a director is an interested party;
• Material asset or derivatives transactions;
• Material lending funds, endorsements or guarantees;
• Offering or issuance of any equity-type securities;
• Hiring or dismissal of an attesting CPA, or the compensation given thereto;
• Appointment or discharge of financial, accounting, or internal auditing officers;
• Annual and semi-annual financial reports;
• Proposal of business report, profit distribution or loss appropriation;
• Other significant matters as stipulated by the Company, laws and regulations, or competent authorities.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings (A) in 2021 and up to the publication date of this annual report; attendance by 
independent directors is shown as follows:

1. Summary of the Audit Committee’s major tasks for the given year (e.g. reviewing the financial statements, verifying the 
effectiveness of the internal control system, and so on).

2. The Audit Committee held 5 meetings (A) in 2021 and up to the publication date of this annual report; attendance by 
independent directors is shown as follows:

Posi t ion Name
Number of  
in-person 
at tendance (B)

Number of  proxy 
at tendance

Percentage of  
in-person 
at tendance (%)

Remarks

I ndependen t  
D i rec to r

Laura 
Huang 5 0 100 Convener

Emma 
Chang 5 0 100

Peng-Heng 
Chang 5 0 100

As for the performance evaluation of the Board of Directors of 2021, the self-evaluation by each director was conducted in 
January 2022 in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors”, with 15 pieces 
of effective questionnaires collected. Self-evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors as a whole averaged 4.82 
points (with 5 points being the highest score); the self-evaluation of the performance of individual directors averaged 4.9 points 
(with 5 points being the highest score). Both indicate that the Board of Directors functioned well. The self-evaluation of the 
performance of the functional committees averaged 4.96 points (with 5 points being the highest score), indicating a high degree 
of independent directors’ recognition for the operation of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
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Note: Month/Day/Year.

Other  mandatory d isc losures:

I .  In the event of any of the fol lowing in the audit  committee, the dates of audit  committee meetings,
sessions, contents of motions, the dissenting opinion, qualified opinion, or significant suggestions of the 
independent director, resolutions of the audit committee meetings, and the Company’s response to audit 
members’ opinion should be specified.

(I) Matters described in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

(II) Any other resolutions that were approved by two-thirds of Board members but not approved by the 
Audit Committee other than those described above: None.

I I .  I f  there  is  independent  d i rec tors ’ avo idance o f  mot ions  in  conf l i c t  o f  in teres t ,  the  independent 
directors’ names, contents of motions, causes for avoidance and voting should be specif ied: None.

Board  o f  D i rec to rs
mee t ing  da te  (no te )

and  sess ion
Mot ion Reso lu t i on  o f  t he  

Aud i t  Commi t tee

The  Company ’s  response  
to  Aud i t  Commi t tee
 members ’  op in ion

March  12 ,  2021
1s t  mee t i ng  o f  t he  1s t  
sess ion

･  Aud i t  t he  e f fec t i veness  o f  t he  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem 
and  i t s  imp lemen ta t i on  fo r  2020 ,  as  we l l  as  the  i n te r -
na l  con t ro l  s ta temen t .

･  Aud i t  t he  bus iness  repo r t ,  f i nanc ia l  s ta temen ts ,  ea rn -
i ngs  d i s t r i bu t i on  p roposa l  f o r  2020 .

･  Rev iew  the  cap i ta l  budge t  expend i tu re .

Approved  by  a l l  
commi t tee  mem-
bers  as  p roposed

Approved  by  a l l  d i rec to rs  
p resen t  as  p roposed

June  22 ,  2021
2nd  mee t ing  o f  t he  1s t  
sess ion

･  Rev iew  the  ren t i ng  o f  p lan t  and  p lan t  f ac i l i t i es .
･  Rev iew  the  cap i ta l  budge t  expend i tu re .
･  Rev iew  the  ren t i ng  o f  a  sma l l  passenger  ca r.
･  Rev iew  the  “Se l f -assessmen t  Fo rm fo r  P repa ra t i on  o f  

F inanc ia l  S ta temen ts ” .

App roved  by  a l l  
commi t tee  mem-
bers  as  p roposed

Approved  by  a l l  d i rec to rs  
p resen t  as  p roposed

Augus t  11 ,  2021
3rd  mee t ing  o f  t he  1s t
 sess ion

･  Rev iew the  e f fec t i veness  o f  t he  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem 
and  i t s  imp lemen ta t i on ,  as  we l l  as  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  
s ta temen t ,  f o r  t he  pe r iod  be tween  Ju l y  1 ,  2020  and  
June  30 ,  2021 .

･  Rev iew  the  cap i ta l  budge t  expend i tu re .
･  Rev iew  the  “Assessmen t  Fo rm o f  F inanc ia l  S ta temen ts  

P repa ra t i on  Ab i l i t y ” .

App roved  by  a l l  
commi t tee  mem-
bers  as  p roposed

Approved  by  a l l  d i rec to rs  
p resen t  as  p roposed

November  11 ,  2021
4 th  mee t ing  o f  t he  1s t  
sess ion

･  Rev iew the  rev i s ion  o f  t he  i n te rna l  Con t ro l  Sys tem and  
the  Imp lemen ta t i on  Ru les  fo r  I n te rna l  Aud i t i ng .

･  Rev iew  the  aud i t  p lan  fo r  2022 .
･  Rev iew  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  s ta temen t  f o r  t he  pe r iod  

be tween  Oc tobe r  1 ,  2020  and  Sep tember  30 ,  2021 .
･  Rev iew  the  cap i ta l  budge t  expend i tu re .
･  Rev iew  the  “Assessmen t  Fo rm o f  F inanc ia l  S ta temen ts  

P repa ra t i on  Ab i l i t y ” .
･  Rev iew  the  underwr i t i ng  o f  t he  common sha res  to  

wh ich  the  subsc r i p t i on  r i gh t  has  been  abandoned  by  
the  o r i g ina l  sha reho lde r.

･  Rev iew  the  fee  fo r  CPAs  p rov id ing  a t tes ta t i on  se rv i ce .

Approved  by  a l l  
commi t tee  mem-
bers  as  p roposed

Approved  by  a l l  d i rec to rs  
p resen t  as  p roposed

Februa ry  23 ,  2022
5 th  mee t ing  o f  t he  1s t  
sess ion

･  Aud i t  t he  bus iness  repo r t ,  f i nanc ia l  s ta temen ts ,  ea rn -
i ngs  d i s t r i bu t i on  p roposa l  f o r  2021 .

･  Rev iew  the  amendmen ts  to  “P rocedures  fo r  t he  Acqu i -
s i t i on  o r  D i sposa l  o f  Asse ts ” .

･  Rev iew  the  cap i ta l  budge t  expend i tu re .
･  Rev iew  the  p roposa l  t ha t  sugges ts  no t  f o rmu la t i ng  

ope ra t i ng  p rocedures  fo r  supe rv i s ion  and  mon i to r i ng  
o f  subs id ia r i es .

･  Rev iew  the  i t ems  fo r  supe rv i s ion  and  mon i to r i ng  o f  
subs id ia r i es  tha t  w i l l  be  added  to  t he  aud i t  p lan  fo r  
2022 .

･  Aud i t  t he  e f fec t i veness  o f  t he  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem 
and  i t s  imp lemen ta t i on ,  as  we l l  as  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  
s ta temen t ,  f o r  2021 .

Approved  by  a l l  
commi t tee  mem-
bers  as  p roposed

Approved  by  a l l  d i rec to rs  
p resen t  as  p roposed
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(IV) Supervisors' involvement in Board of Directors meetings:

III. Communications between independent directors and the Company's chief internal auditor and CPA (e.g. the items, methods and 
results of the audits of corporate finance or operations, etc.)

1. The Company’s chief internal auditor regularly submits a report to the independent directors, communicates with them at 
any time by phone, mail, or text message whenever necessary, and be present at the Audit Committee meeting to provide 
suggestions and explanation when a committee member requires so.

2. The Company’s CPAs explain matters pertaining to review or audit of the financial statements to independent directors, 
either face to face or in writing; independent directors may respond in the same manner. If need be, full communication may 
be made by phone, mail, or text message at any time.

3. The Company’s independent directors did not express any specific opinion on the matters communicated between them and 
the chief internal auditor or the CPAs.

Other  mandatory d isc losures:

1. Composition and duties of supervisors: The Company already established the Audit Committee on March 
4, 2021, which assumed supervisors’ duties. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the annual 
f inancial statements, monitoring the Company’s business and f inancial condit ions, and may request a 
report from the Board of Directors and exercise any authorities vested in it by law.

2. Superv isors '  communicat ion wi th employees and shareholders:  Superv isors may communicate wi th 
employees, shareholders, or stakeholders directly whenever deemed necessary.

3. Communication between supervisors and internal/external auditors: Audit report and tracking report are 
prepared and submitted by the chief internal auditor, and forwarded to supervisors before the end of the 
month following the audit. The chief internal auditor responds to supervisors' queries in a timely manner, 
and the both parties have been able to communicate with each other in a productive manner. The chief 
internal auditor also maintains open communication with CPAs, and complies with instruct ions of the 
authority by providing CPAs with copies of next year's audit plan, progress report of previous year's audit 
plan, and reports of internal control defects identified as well as improvements made during the year once 
they have been filed.

4. Opinions expressed by supervisors in board meetings; state the date and type of the meeting held, the 
discussed motion, the board's resolution, and how the Company had responded to supervisors' opinions: 
None

The Board meetings were convened a total of 4 regular meetings and 2 extraordinary meetings in 2021; details of supervisors' 
attendance are shown below:

Posi t ion Name No. of  in-person 
at tendance

Number of  proxy 
at tendance

Percentage of  
in-person 
at tendance (%)

Remarks

Superv i so r

Wendel l  
Huang 1 0 100%

March 4,  2021
Departed f rom duty at  an 
e lect ion at  an ext raord inary 
shareholders ’ meet ing.

Morr is  
Cheng 1 0 100%

March 4,  2021
Departed f rom duty at  an 
e lect ion at  an ext raord inary 
shareholders ’ meet ing.
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Deviation and causes of deviation of the Company’s actual governance from Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies

Assessment

Actual  governance Deviat ion and causes of  
deviat ion f rom Corporate 
Governance Best  Pract ice 
Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx 
L is ted Companies

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

I .  Has the Company establ ished and d isc losed i ts  corporate governance pr inc ip les 
based on “Corporate Governance Best  Pract ice Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx L is ted 
Companies”?

The Company has establ ished and disclosed i ts own “Corporate Governance Best Pract ice Pr incip les” in accor-
dance wi th the “Corporate Governance Best Pract ice Pr incip les for  TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”,  and always 
abides by regulat ions st ipulated therein to disclose the var ious informat ion.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

I I .  Sharehold ing st ructure and shareholders ’ in terests

i .  Has the Company implemented a set  of  in ternal  procedures to handle share-
holders ’ suggest ions,  quer ies,  d isputes,  and l i t igat ions?

The Company has establ ished i ts own “Rules of  Procedure for  Shareholders Meet ings”.  In addi t ion,  abiding by 
the “Corporate Governance Best Pract ice Pr incip les”,  the Company has establ ished a spokesperson system to 
deal  wi th re levant matters and set  a post  of  stock affa i rs personnel  to handle the submissions and concerns of ,  or  
d isputes between, the shareholders.  Yet,  the Company maintains a harmonious relat ionship wi th shareholders and 
has so far  not  had any disputes wi th them.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i .  Is  the Company constant ly  in formed of  the ident i t ies of  i ts  major  shareholders 
and the u l t imate contro l ler?

The  Company  has  a  good  g rasp  o f  t he  sha reho ld ing  s ta tus  o f  ma jo r  sha reho lde rs ,  d i rec to rs ,  and  managers  
by  re fe renc ing  the  sha reho lde r  reg i s te r  on  the  book  c losu re  da te  tha t  i s  p rov ided  by  the  s tock  agen t .  I n  
add i t i on ,  t he  Company  f i l es  t he  sha reho ld ing  changes  o f  i ns ide rs  (d i rec to rs ,  managers ,  and  sha reho lde rs  
ho ld ing  no  l ess  than  10  pe rcen t  o f  t he  Company ’s  sha res )  w i th  t he  compe ten t  au tho r i t y  t h rough  i t s  des igna t -
ed  Marke t  Obse rva t i on  Pos t  Sys tem on  a  mon th l y  bas i s .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i i .  Has the Company establ ished and implemented r isk management  pract ices and 
f i rewal ls  for  companies i t  is  a ff i l ia ted wi th?

The  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  “Opera t i ng  P rocedures  fo r  Transac t i ons  w i th  Re la ted  Pa r t y,  Spec i f i ed  
Company  o r  I ns t i t u t i on ,  and  Group  En t i t y ” ,  “Endorsemen t  and  Guaran tee  P rocedures ” ,  “Lend ing  Funds  to  
O the r  Pa r t i es  P rocedures ” ,  and  “P rocedures  fo r  t he  Acqu is i t i on  o r  D i sposa l  o f  Asse ts ”  -  a l l  a im  to  es tab l i sh  
an  app rop r ia te  r i sk  con t ro l  mechan ism and  f i r ewa l l .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

iv.  Has the Company establ ished in ternal  pol ic ies that  prevent  ins iders f rom t rading 
secur i t ies against  non-publ ic  in format ion?

The  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  “P rocedures  fo r  t he  P reven t i on  o f  I ns ide r  Trad ing ”  t ha t  p roh ib i t s  i ns ide rs  
f rom t rad ing  secu r i t i es  aga ins t  non -pub l i c  i n fo rma t ion ,  t o  avo id  v io la t i ng  the  regu la t i ons  gove rn ing  i ns ide r  
t rad ing .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

I I I .  Composi t ion and responsib i l i t ies of  the Board of  Di rectors

i .  Has the board devised and implemented pol ic ies to  ensure d ivers i ty  of  i ts  mem-
bers?

The  Company  has  taken  in to  accoun t  t he  d i ve rs i t y  among  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  members  i n  acco rdance  w i th  the  
“Corpo ra te  Gove rnance  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ”  and  the  “Regu la t i on  Govern ing  the  E lec t i on  o f  D i rec to rs ” .  
I ncumben t  d i rec to rs  a re  a l l  p ro fess iona l s  i n  a reas  such  as  f i nance ,  l aw,  accoun t i ng ,  i ndus t r y,  and  techno lo -
gy,  ev idenc ing  a  d i ve rs i f i ed  compos i t i on  among  Board  members .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i .  Apar t  f rom the Remunerat ion Commit tee and Audi t  Commit tee,  has the Compa-
ny assembled other  funct ional  commit tees at  i ts  own d iscret ion?

The Company has establ ished the Remunerat ion Commit tee and the Audi t  Commit tee on March 4,  2021 and wi l l  
fur ther p lan the establ ishment of  other s imi lar  funct ional  commit tees according to business needs. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i i .  Has the Company establ ished a set  of  po l ic ies and assessment  too ls  for  eval -
uat ing board per formance,  and conducted per formance evaluat ion on a year ly  
basis? Are per formance evaluat ion resul ts  repor ted to the Board of  Di rectors 
and used as reference for  compensat ion and nominat ion decis ions?

To implement corporate governance and improve i ts Board’s funct ions,  the Company has establ ished var ious 
performance goals to enhance the Board’s operat ing eff ic iency.  The Company already formulated i ts  “Regulat ions 
Governing Performance Evaluat ion of  Board of  Directors” ,  by which i t  completed the performance evaluat ion of  the 
Board of  Directors of  2021 in January 2022 and submit ted the evaluat ion resul ts to the Board of  Directors to serve 
as a reference, both for  d iscussion and determinat ion of  the remunerat ion for  the Board of  Directors of  2021, and 
for  re-nominat ion of  d i rectors in future Board elect ions.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

iv.  Are external  audi tors ’ independence assessed on a regular  basis?

The Company’s Audi t  Commit tee regular ly reviews the independence of  the independent audi tors and reports the 
resul t  to the Board of  Directors.  The nearest  evaluat ion resul ts submit ted by the Audi t  Commit tee to the Board of  
Directors were on November 11,  2021.
The Company’s Audi t  Commit tee regular ly evaluates the independent audi tor ’s independence and sui tabi l i ty  every 
year by means of  e i ther demanding that  the independent audi tors provide a “Statement of  Independence”,  or  by 
formulat ing the “Assessment Form of  Independent Audi tor ’s Independence and Sui tabi l i ty” ,  against  which al l  i tems 
that  might impact independence are evaluated one af ter  another.  Af ter  evaluat ion,  the Company bel ieves i t  t rue 
that  the independent audi tors have no business or f inancial  re lat ionship wi th the Company, except the fees for  
their  at testat ion and taxat ion service,  evidencing the requirement for  independence and sui tabi l i ty.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

IV.  Has the TWSE/TPEx l is ted company a l located adequate number of  competent  cor
porate governance staff  and appointed a corporate governance off icer  to  oversee 
corporate governance affa i rs  ( inc luding but  not  l imi ted to prov id ing d i rectors/su-
perv isors wi th the in format ion needed to per form thei r  dut ies,  ass is t ing d i rectors/
superv isors wi th compl iance issues,  convent ion of  board meet ings and shareholder  
meet ings,  and preparat ion of  board/shareholder  meet ing minutes)?

The Company has appointed Chia-hui  L in,  Head of  Legal ,  to be the Head of  Corporate Governance, who is re-
sponsible for  handl ing corporate governance affa i rs and providing the Board of  Directors and i ts members wi th al l  
informat ion needed.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion
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Assessment

Actual  governance Deviat ion and causes of  
deviat ion f rom Corporate 
Governance Best  Pract ice 
Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx 
L is ted Companies

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

I .  Has the Company establ ished and d isc losed i ts  corporate governance pr inc ip les 
based on “Corporate Governance Best  Pract ice Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx L is ted 
Companies”?

The Company has establ ished and disclosed i ts own “Corporate Governance Best Pract ice Pr incip les” in accor-
dance wi th the “Corporate Governance Best Pract ice Pr incip les for  TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”,  and always 
abides by regulat ions st ipulated therein to disclose the var ious informat ion.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

I I .  Sharehold ing st ructure and shareholders ’ in terests

i .  Has the Company implemented a set  of  in ternal  procedures to handle share-
holders ’ suggest ions,  quer ies,  d isputes,  and l i t igat ions?

The Company has establ ished i ts own “Rules of  Procedure for  Shareholders Meet ings”.  In addi t ion,  abiding by 
the “Corporate Governance Best Pract ice Pr incip les”,  the Company has establ ished a spokesperson system to 
deal  wi th re levant matters and set  a post  of  stock affa i rs personnel  to handle the submissions and concerns of ,  or  
d isputes between, the shareholders.  Yet,  the Company maintains a harmonious relat ionship wi th shareholders and 
has so far  not  had any disputes wi th them.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i .  Is  the Company constant ly  in formed of  the ident i t ies of  i ts  major  shareholders 
and the u l t imate contro l ler?

The  Company  has  a  good  g rasp  o f  t he  sha reho ld ing  s ta tus  o f  ma jo r  sha reho lde rs ,  d i rec to rs ,  and  managers  
by  re fe renc ing  the  sha reho lde r  reg i s te r  on  the  book  c losu re  da te  tha t  i s  p rov ided  by  the  s tock  agen t .  I n  
add i t i on ,  t he  Company  f i l es  t he  sha reho ld ing  changes  o f  i ns ide rs  (d i rec to rs ,  managers ,  and  sha reho lde rs  
ho ld ing  no  l ess  than  10  pe rcen t  o f  t he  Company ’s  sha res )  w i th  t he  compe ten t  au tho r i t y  t h rough  i t s  des igna t -
ed  Marke t  Obse rva t i on  Pos t  Sys tem on  a  mon th l y  bas i s .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i i .  Has the Company establ ished and implemented r isk management  pract ices and 
f i rewal ls  for  companies i t  is  a ff i l ia ted wi th?

The  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  “Opera t i ng  P rocedures  fo r  Transac t i ons  w i th  Re la ted  Pa r t y,  Spec i f i ed  
Company  o r  I ns t i t u t i on ,  and  Group  En t i t y ” ,  “Endorsemen t  and  Guaran tee  P rocedures ” ,  “Lend ing  Funds  to  
O the r  Pa r t i es  P rocedures ” ,  and  “P rocedures  fo r  t he  Acqu is i t i on  o r  D i sposa l  o f  Asse ts ”  -  a l l  a im  to  es tab l i sh  
an  app rop r ia te  r i sk  con t ro l  mechan ism and  f i r ewa l l .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

iv.  Has the Company establ ished in ternal  pol ic ies that  prevent  ins iders f rom t rading 
secur i t ies against  non-publ ic  in format ion?

The  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  “P rocedures  fo r  t he  P reven t i on  o f  I ns ide r  Trad ing ”  t ha t  p roh ib i t s  i ns ide rs  
f rom t rad ing  secu r i t i es  aga ins t  non -pub l i c  i n fo rma t ion ,  t o  avo id  v io la t i ng  the  regu la t i ons  gove rn ing  i ns ide r  
t rad ing .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

I I I .  Composi t ion and responsib i l i t ies of  the Board of  Di rectors

i .  Has the board devised and implemented pol ic ies to  ensure d ivers i ty  of  i ts  mem-
bers?

The  Company  has  taken  in to  accoun t  t he  d i ve rs i t y  among  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  members  i n  acco rdance  w i th  the  
“Corpo ra te  Gove rnance  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ”  and  the  “Regu la t i on  Govern ing  the  E lec t i on  o f  D i rec to rs ” .  
I ncumben t  d i rec to rs  a re  a l l  p ro fess iona l s  i n  a reas  such  as  f i nance ,  l aw,  accoun t i ng ,  i ndus t r y,  and  techno lo -
gy,  ev idenc ing  a  d i ve rs i f i ed  compos i t i on  among  Board  members .

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i .  Apar t  f rom the Remunerat ion Commit tee and Audi t  Commit tee,  has the Compa-
ny assembled other  funct ional  commit tees at  i ts  own d iscret ion?

The Company has establ ished the Remunerat ion Commit tee and the Audi t  Commit tee on March 4,  2021 and wi l l  
fur ther p lan the establ ishment of  other s imi lar  funct ional  commit tees according to business needs. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

i i i .  Has the Company establ ished a set  of  po l ic ies and assessment  too ls  for  eval -
uat ing board per formance,  and conducted per formance evaluat ion on a year ly  
basis? Are per formance evaluat ion resul ts  repor ted to the Board of  Di rectors 
and used as reference for  compensat ion and nominat ion decis ions?

To implement corporate governance and improve i ts Board’s funct ions,  the Company has establ ished var ious 
performance goals to enhance the Board’s operat ing eff ic iency.  The Company already formulated i ts  “Regulat ions 
Governing Performance Evaluat ion of  Board of  Directors” ,  by which i t  completed the performance evaluat ion of  the 
Board of  Directors of  2021 in January 2022 and submit ted the evaluat ion resul ts to the Board of  Directors to serve 
as a reference, both for  d iscussion and determinat ion of  the remunerat ion for  the Board of  Directors of  2021, and 
for  re-nominat ion of  d i rectors in future Board elect ions.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

iv.  Are external  audi tors ’ independence assessed on a regular  basis?

The Company’s Audi t  Commit tee regular ly reviews the independence of  the independent audi tors and reports the 
resul t  to the Board of  Directors.  The nearest  evaluat ion resul ts submit ted by the Audi t  Commit tee to the Board of  
Directors were on November 11,  2021.
The Company’s Audi t  Commit tee regular ly evaluates the independent audi tor ’s independence and sui tabi l i ty  every 
year by means of  e i ther demanding that  the independent audi tors provide a “Statement of  Independence”,  or  by 
formulat ing the “Assessment Form of  Independent Audi tor ’s Independence and Sui tabi l i ty” ,  against  which al l  i tems 
that  might impact independence are evaluated one af ter  another.  Af ter  evaluat ion,  the Company bel ieves i t  t rue 
that  the independent audi tors have no business or f inancial  re lat ionship wi th the Company, except the fees for  
their  at testat ion and taxat ion service,  evidencing the requirement for  independence and sui tabi l i ty.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

IV.  Has the TWSE/TPEx l is ted company a l located adequate number of  competent  cor
porate governance staff  and appointed a corporate governance off icer  to  oversee 
corporate governance affa i rs  ( inc luding but  not  l imi ted to prov id ing d i rectors/su-
perv isors wi th the in format ion needed to per form thei r  dut ies,  ass is t ing d i rectors/
superv isors wi th compl iance issues,  convent ion of  board meet ings and shareholder  
meet ings,  and preparat ion of  board/shareholder  meet ing minutes)?

The Company has appointed Chia-hui  L in,  Head of  Legal ,  to be the Head of  Corporate Governance, who is re-
sponsible for  handl ing corporate governance affa i rs and providing the Board of  Directors and i ts members wi th al l  
informat ion needed.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion
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Assessment

Actual  governance Deviat ion and causes of  
deviat ion f rom Corporate 
Governance Best  Pract ice 
Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx 
L is ted Companies

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

V. Has the Company prov ided proper  communicat ion channels and created dedicated 
sect ions on i ts  websi te  to  address corporate socia l  responsib i l i ty  issues that  are of  
s ign i f icant  concern to s takeholders ( inc luding but  not  l imi ted to shareholders,  em-
ployees,  customers and suppl iers)?

The Company has created a dedicated sect ion on i ts websi te for  stakeholders to serve as a communicat ion chan-
nel  between i t  and stakeholders. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

VI .Does the Company engage a share t ransfer  agency to handle shareholder  meet ing 
affa i rs?

The Company has commissioned the Agency Department of  CTBC Bank as the stock t ransfer agent,  which is 
responsible for  handl ing shareholder service and shareholder meet ing affa i rs. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

VI I .  In format ion d isc losure No s igni f icant  deviat ion

v.  Has the Company establ ished a websi te  to  d isc lose f inancia l ,  bus iness,  and 
corporate governance-re lated in format ion? The Company has created own websi te (ht tp: / /www.viseratech.com/) to disclose informat ion on i ts business,  

f inance, and corporate governance. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

v i .  Has the Company adopted other  means to d isc lose in format ion (e.g.  Engl ish 
websi te ,  ass ignment  of  dedicated personnel  to  co l lect  and d isc lose corporate 
in format ion,  implementat ion of  a  spokesperson system, and broadcast ing of  
investor  conferences v ia the company websi te)?

The Company has designated dedicated personnel  to col lect  and disclose the Company’s informat ion and imple-
mented the spokesperson system and the act ing spokesperson system as required. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

v i i .  Does the Company publ ish and make off ic ia l  f i l ing of  annual  f inancia l  repor t  
wi th in two months af ter  the end of  an account ing per iod,  and publ ish/ f i le  Q1,  
Q2 and Q3 f inancia l  repor ts  a long wi th the month ly  business per formance be-
fore the requi red due dates?

The Company makes publ ic announcements and reports in accordance wi th Art ic le 36 of  Secur i t ies and Exchange 
Act and Regulat ions Governing the Appl icable Scope of  Special  Circumstances for  the Publ ic Announcement and 
Fi l ing of  Financial  Reports and Operat ional  Status Reports by Publ ic Companies.
The Company’s f inancial  statements for  2021 were approved for  publ icat ion and announcement by the Board of  
Directors wi th in two months af ter  the end of  the f iscal  year;  i t  a lso announced and f i led i ts  f inancial  statements 
for  each two quarters and i ts business performance for  each month wi th in the speci f ied due dates.  The Company 
bel ieves i tsel f  to have sat isf ied the requirements for  a TWSE/TPEx l is ted company.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

VI I I .  Does the Company have other  in format ion that  enables a bet ter  understanding of  
the Company’s  corporate governance pract ices ( inc luding but  not  l imi ted to em-
ployee r ights,  employee care,  investor  re lat ions,  suppl ier  re lat ions,  s takeholders ’ 
in terests ,  cont inu ing educat ion of  d i rectors/superv isors,  implementat ion of  r isk 
management  pol ic ies and r isk measurements,  implementat ion of  customer pol icy,  
and l iab i l i ty  insurance for  d i rectors and superv isors)?

1. Employee r ights:  The Company ensures employees’ legal  r ights by adher ing to the Labor Standards Act  and i ts 
personnel  regulat ions.  I t  a lso regular ly holds labor-management meet ings to harmonize i ts  labor re lat ions.

2.  Employee care:  The Company upholds the phi losophy of  a f r iendly workplace in recrui t ing and retain ing ta lents.  
I t  s t r ives to provide a good work environment:  Apart  f rom the establ ishment of  the Employee Benef i ts Commit-
tee,  to which i t  regular ly contr ibutes employee benef i t  funds,  i t  a lso contr ibutes a certa in amount of  employee 
ret i rement funds as required by law, purchases group insurance for  employees, and arranges heal th check-up 
for  them, so as to maximize the employees’ benef i ts i t  can provide.

3.  Investor re lat ion:  The Company has a spokesperson system and an act ing spokesperson system, through which 
i t  communicates wi th outs iders.  Aside f rom updat ing i ts  operat ing resul ts,  the Company also assigns dedicated 
personnel  to disclose i ts informat ion on the Market Observat ion Post System as required by law.

4.  Suppl ier  re lat ions:  Through act iv i t ies such as suppl ier  audi t /suppl ier  evaluat ion/raw mater ia l  supply and demand 
tracking/contractor meet ing/qual i ty  improvement meet ing and ongoing exchange of  opinions wi th the manage-
ment,  the Company works c losely wi th key suppl iers and contractors,  and maintains product ive relat ionships 
that  would ensure bet ter  performance in the future.

5.  Stakeholders’ interests:  The Company has maintained a smooth communicat ion channel  wi th employees, cus-
tomers,  suppl iers,  and contractors,  and respects and upholds their  legal  r ights.  Stakeholders may communicate 
their  opinions to the Company at  any t ime. The Company values their  opinions and wi l l  use them as reference 
for  future work implementat ion.

6.  Cont inuing educat ion of  d i rectors and supervisors:  The Company has establ ished the Audi t  Commit tee to as-
sume the dut ies of  supervisors.  Al l  the Company’s di rectors are experts in certa in area; they also regular ly take 
part  in cont inuing educat ion courses as required by law and have obtained cert i f icates.

7.  Risk management pol ic ies,  pract ices,  and r isk assessment standards:  The Company has establ ished internal  
pol ic ies in accordance wi th laws to manage and assess r isks.

8.  Execut ion of  customer pol icy:  The Company has assigned a dedicated uni t  to handle customers’ complaints and 
issues.  The uni t  is  responsible for  appropr iately addressing issues that  concern customers,  and in doing so,  
maintains a good relat ionship wi th customers,  thereby creat ing prof i ts  for  the Company.

9.  Purchase of  l iabi l i ty  insurance for  d i rectors:  The Company has purchased l iabi l i ty  insurance for  i ts  d i rectors in 
order to reduce and diversi fy the r isk of  causing s igni f icant  losses to shareholders due to di rectors ’ errors or  
negl igence.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

IX.  Please expla in the improvements made,  based on the la test  Corporate Governance Evaluat ion re
sul ts  publ ished by TWSE Corporate Governance Center,  and propose enhancement  measures for  any 
issues that  are yet  to  be rect i f ied:  Not  appl icable.
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Assessment

Actual  governance Deviat ion and causes of  
deviat ion f rom Corporate 
Governance Best  Pract ice 
Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx 
L is ted Companies

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

V. Has the Company prov ided proper  communicat ion channels and created dedicated 
sect ions on i ts  websi te  to  address corporate socia l  responsib i l i ty  issues that  are of  
s ign i f icant  concern to s takeholders ( inc luding but  not  l imi ted to shareholders,  em-
ployees,  customers and suppl iers)?

The Company has created a dedicated sect ion on i ts  websi te for  stakeholders to serve as a communicat ion chan-
nel  between i t  and stakeholders. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

VI .Does the Company engage a share t ransfer  agency to handle shareholder  meet ing 
affa i rs?

The Company has commissioned the Agency Department of  CTBC Bank as the stock t ransfer agent,  which is 
responsible for  handl ing shareholder service and shareholder meet ing affa i rs. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

VI I .  In format ion d isc losure No s igni f icant  deviat ion

v.  Has the Company establ ished a websi te  to  d isc lose f inancia l ,  bus iness,  and 
corporate governance-re lated in format ion? The Company has created own websi te (ht tp: / /www.viseratech.com/) to disclose informat ion on i ts business,  

f inance, and corporate governance. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

v i .  Has the Company adopted other  means to d isc lose in format ion (e.g.  Engl ish 
websi te ,  ass ignment  of  dedicated personnel  to  co l lect  and d isc lose corporate 
in format ion,  implementat ion of  a  spokesperson system, and broadcast ing of  
investor  conferences v ia the company websi te)?

The Company has designated dedicated personnel  to col lect  and disclose the Company’s informat ion and imple-
mented the spokesperson system and the act ing spokesperson system as required. No s igni f icant  deviat ion

v i i .  Does the Company publ ish and make off ic ia l  f i l ing of  annual  f inancia l  repor t  
wi th in two months af ter  the end of  an account ing per iod,  and publ ish/ f i le  Q1,  
Q2 and Q3 f inancia l  repor ts  a long wi th the month ly  business per formance be-
fore the requi red due dates?

The Company makes publ ic announcements and reports in accordance wi th Art ic le 36 of  Secur i t ies and Exchange 
Act and Regulat ions Governing the Appl icable Scope of  Special  Circumstances for  the Publ ic Announcement and 
Fi l ing of  Financial  Reports and Operat ional  Status Reports by Publ ic Companies.
The Company’s f inancial  statements for  2021 were approved for  publ icat ion and announcement by the Board of  
Directors wi th in two months af ter  the end of  the f iscal  year;  i t  a lso announced and f i led i ts  f inancial  statements 
for  each two quarters and i ts business performance for  each month wi th in the speci f ied due dates.  The Company 
bel ieves i tsel f  to have sat isf ied the requirements for  a TWSE/TPEx l is ted company.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

VI I I .  Does the Company have other  in format ion that  enables a bet ter  understanding of  
the Company’s  corporate governance pract ices ( inc luding but  not  l imi ted to em-
ployee r ights,  employee care,  investor  re lat ions,  suppl ier  re lat ions,  s takeholders ’ 
in terests ,  cont inu ing educat ion of  d i rectors/superv isors,  implementat ion of  r isk 
management  pol ic ies and r isk measurements,  implementat ion of  customer pol icy,  
and l iab i l i ty  insurance for  d i rectors and superv isors)?

1. Employee r ights:  The Company ensures employees’ legal  r ights by adher ing to the Labor Standards Act  and i ts 
personnel  regulat ions.  I t  a lso regular ly holds labor-management meet ings to harmonize i ts  labor re lat ions.

2.  Employee care:  The Company upholds the phi losophy of  a f r iendly workplace in recrui t ing and retain ing ta lents.  
I t  s t r ives to provide a good work environment:  Apart  f rom the establ ishment of  the Employee Benef i ts Commit-
tee,  to which i t  regular ly contr ibutes employee benef i t  funds,  i t  a lso contr ibutes a certa in amount of  employee 
ret i rement funds as required by law, purchases group insurance for  employees, and arranges heal th check-up 
for  them, so as to maximize the employees’ benef i ts i t  can provide.

3.  Investor re lat ion:  The Company has a spokesperson system and an act ing spokesperson system, through which 
i t  communicates wi th outs iders.  Aside f rom updat ing i ts  operat ing resul ts,  the Company also assigns dedicated 
personnel  to disclose i ts informat ion on the Market Observat ion Post System as required by law.

4.  Suppl ier  re lat ions:  Through act iv i t ies such as suppl ier  audi t /suppl ier  evaluat ion/raw mater ia l  supply and demand 
tracking/contractor meet ing/qual i ty  improvement meet ing and ongoing exchange of  opinions wi th the manage-
ment,  the Company works c losely wi th key suppl iers and contractors,  and maintains product ive relat ionships 
that  would ensure bet ter  performance in the future.

5.  Stakeholders’ interests:  The Company has maintained a smooth communicat ion channel  wi th employees, cus-
tomers,  suppl iers,  and contractors,  and respects and upholds their  legal  r ights.  Stakeholders may communicate 
their  opinions to the Company at  any t ime. The Company values their  opinions and wi l l  use them as reference 
for  future work implementat ion.

6.  Cont inuing educat ion of  d i rectors and supervisors:  The Company has establ ished the Audi t  Commit tee to as-
sume the dut ies of  supervisors.  Al l  the Company’s di rectors are experts in certa in area; they also regular ly take 
part  in cont inuing educat ion courses as required by law and have obtained cert i f icates.

7.  Risk management pol ic ies,  pract ices,  and r isk assessment standards:  The Company has establ ished internal  
pol ic ies in accordance wi th laws to manage and assess r isks.

8.  Execut ion of  customer pol icy:  The Company has assigned a dedicated uni t  to handle customers’ complaints and 
issues.  The uni t  is  responsible for  appropr iately addressing issues that  concern customers,  and in doing so,  
maintains a good relat ionship wi th customers,  thereby creat ing prof i ts  for  the Company.

9.  Purchase of  l iabi l i ty  insurance for  d i rectors:  The Company has purchased l iabi l i ty  insurance for  i ts  d i rectors in 
order to reduce and diversi fy the r isk of  causing s igni f icant  losses to shareholders due to di rectors ’ errors or  
negl igence.

No s igni f icant  deviat ion

IX.  Please expla in the improvements made,  based on the la test  Corporate Governance Evaluat ion re
sul ts  publ ished by TWSE Corporate Governance Center,  and propose enhancement  measures for  any 
issues that  are yet  to  be rect i f ied:  Not  appl icable.
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(V) Disclose the composition, responsibilities, and functioning of remuneration committee, if available: 

1. In order to implement corporate governance and establish a sound remuneration system for directors and managers, on 
March 4, 2021, the Company established the Remuneration Committee in accordance with Article 14-6 of the Securities and 
Exchange Act and the Regulations Governing the Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the Remuneration Committee 
of a Company Whose Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange. The committee comprises 
three members, who are appointed by the Board of Directors through a resolution. At least one of them is the Company’s 
independent director. The Remuneration Committee members shall select an independent director to serve as the convener 
and chairperson of their meetings, and as a representative of the Remuneration Committee when dealing with outsiders. 
The committee shall exercise the due care of a good administrator to loyally perform the following powers and duties, and 
shall submit its suggestions to the Board of Directors for discussion:

(1) Establishment the overall compensation policies of the Company.
(2) Establishment and regular review of directors' and managers' performance, as well as remuneration policies, systems, 

standards, and structures.
(3) Regular assessment and determination of the remuneration for directors and managers.

2. Information on Remuneration Committee members

February 28, 2022

Independence The  Company ’s  t h ree  i ndependen t  d i rec to rs  qua l i f y  f o r  t he  i ndependence  requ i remen ts  se t  f o r th  i n  t he  “Regu la t i ons  Gov -
e rn ing  Appo in tmen t  o f  I ndependen t  D i rec to rs  and  Comp l iance  Ma t te rs  f o r  Pub l i c  Compan ies ” .

T i t l e

Cr i t e r i a Pro fess iona l  qua l i f i ca t i ons  
and  expe r ience

Independen t  
D i rec to r

Laura 
Huang

Main  ca ree r  (academic )  ach ievemen ts :
•  MBA,  Un ive rs i t y  o f  M issou r i
•  UBS -  D i rec to r  and  Pres iden t /Head  o f  Ta iwan  Reg ion ,  U l t ra  H igh  Ne t  Wor th  

Depar tmen t
•  Mer r i l l  Lynch  -  D i rec to r  and  P res iden t
•  Ch ina  Deve lopmen t  F inanc ia l  Ho ld ing  Corpo ra t i on  -  Sen io r  VP /Head  o f  

I nves tmen t  Bank ing

Incumben t :  Se rv ing  as  the  Company ’s  cha i rman  o f  t he  Aud i t  Commi t tee ,  w i th  
accoun t i ng  and  p ro fess iona l  f i nanc ia l  backg round .

•  Hav ing  more  than  5  yea rs  o f  wo rk  expe r ience  i n  commerce ,  l aw,  f i nance ,  
o r  o the r  p ro fess iona l  a reas  tha t  f i t s  t he  bus iness  needs  o f  t he  Company  
( re fe r  t o  t he i r  ma jo r  educa t i on  and  expe r ience  as  s ta ted  above )

•  A g radua te  i n  accoun t i ng ,  f i nance ,  and  bus iness  re la ted  d i sc ip l i nes .
•  Possess  p ro fess iona l  ce r t i f i ca tes  such  as  Ta iwan  Sen io r  Sa lespe rson  and  

va r i ous  qua l i f i ca t i ons  g ran ted  by  Hong  Kong  Secu r i t i es  and  Fu tu res  Com-
miss ion  (SFC) .

-

I ndependen t  
D i rec to r

Emma 
Chang

Main  ca ree r  (academic )  ach ievemen ts :
•  Mas te r  o f  Law,  Un ive rs i t y  o f  Wash ing ton
•  Med iaTek  Inc .  -  Head  o f  Lega l  A f fa i r s  and  In te l l ec tua l  P rope r t y  Depar tmen t
•  S tandard  Char te red  Bank  -  Ch ie f  Lega l  O f f i ce r
•  TSMC-Depu ty  Head  o f  Lega l

-

I ndependen t  
D i rec to r

Peng-
Heng 
Chang 

Main  ca ree r  (academic )  ach ievemen ts :
•  Ph .D .  i n  Ma te r i a l s  Sc ience  &  Eng inee r ing ,  Pu rdue  Un ive rs i t y
•  Mo tech  Indus t r i es  Inc .  -  Cha i rman
•  TSMC-Vice  P res iden t
•  WSMC -  V i ce  P res iden t

Incumben t :
•  The  Company ’s  Remunera t i on  Commi t tee  -  Cha i rman
•  Med iaTek  Inc .  -  I ndependen t  D i rec to r
•  Ru iyang  Op toe lec t ron i cs  -  Represen ta t i ve  o f  Co rpo ra te  D i rec to r
•  Ch i -Kuang  So la r  Ene rgy  -  Cha i rman
•  Ru i r i  Op toe lec t ron i cs  -  Represen ta t i ve  o f  Co rpo ra te  D i rec to r
•  B ig  Sun  Energy  Techno logy  Inc .  -  Represen ta t i ve  o f  Co rpo ra te  D i rec to r

1

Name

Number  o f  pub l i c  compan ies  fo r  wh ich  the  
commi t tee  member  concu r ren t l y  se rves  i n  
t he i r  remunera t i on  commi t tees .
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3. Status of operation of the Remuneration Committee

(1) The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises three members.
(2) Service tenure of the current committee: Between March 4, 2021 and March 3, 2024. As of 2021 and up to the 

publication date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee held a total of 5 meetings [A]; the attendance by 
committee members is stated as follows:

          

Other  mandatory d isc losures:

I .  I f  t he  Boa rd  o f  D i r ec to r s  dec l i nes  t o  adop t  o r  mod i f y  a  r ecommenda t i on  o f  t he  remune ra t i on 
commi t tee,  i t  shou ld  spec i fy  the date  o f  the meet ing,  sess ion,  content  o f  the mot ion,  reso lu t ion 
by the Board of  Di rectors,  and the Company’s  response to the remunerat ion commit tee’s  opin ion 
(e .g . ,  t he  remunera t ion  passed  by  the  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  exceeds  the  recommenda t ion  o f  the 
remunera t i on  commi t t ee ,  t he  c i r cums tances  and  cause  f o r  t he  d i f f e rence  sha l l  be  spec i f i ed ) :  
None.

I I .  Reso lu t i ons  o f  t he  remunera t i on  commi t t ee  ob jec ted  t o  by  members  o r  sub jec t  t o  a  qua l i f i ed 
op in ion  and  reco rded  o r  dec la red  i n  w r i t i ng ,  t he  da te  o f  t he  mee t i ng ,  sess ion ,  con ten t  o f  t he 
mot ion,  a l l  members ’ op in ions,  and the response to members ’ op in ion should be speci f ied:  None.

Posi t ion Name Number of  in-per-
son at tendance [B]

Number of  proxy 
at tendance

Percentage of  in-per-
son at tendance (%)
[B/A]

Remarks

Convener

Peng-Heng 
Chang 5 0 100

Commi t tee  
member

Laura 
Huang 5 0 100

Emma 
Chang 5 0 100
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(VI) Fulfillment of Sustainable Development; Deviations from the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies; and Causes for Such Deviations

Promoted I tems

Execu t i on  p rog ress Dev ia t i ons  f rom Sus ta in -
ab le  Deve lopmen t  Bes t  
P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  
TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Com-
pan ies  and  the  causes  
the re fo r

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

I .  Does the company establish a governance structure and set up an exclusively (or concurrently) 
dedicated uni t  to  promote susta inable development? Is  such uni t  be ing deal t  wi th  by h igh 
level  management  as author ized by the Board of  Di rectors? How is  i t  superv ised by the 
Board of  Di rectors?

I n  2021 ,  t he  Company  es tab l i shed  the  “ESG Sus ta inab le  Deve lopmen t  P romot ion  Commi t tee ” ,  t he  h ighes t  dec i s ion -mak-
ing  body  w i th in  t he  Company  w i th  respec t  t o  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t .  The  commi t tee  i s  cha i red  by  the  P res iden t  who ,  
t oge the r  w i th  a  rep resen ta t i ve  and  va r i ous  h igh - l eve l  managemen t  possess ing  d i f f e ren t  expe r t i se ,  rev iews  the  Company ’s  
co re  ope ra t i ng  capab i l i t i es  and  se ts  up  the  med ium-  and  l ong - te rm sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  p lan .
Th rough  qua r te r l y  mee t i ngs  and  workshops  es tab l i shed  to  cove r  d i f f e ren t  i ssues ,  t he  “ESG Sus ta inab le  Deve lopmen t  P ro -
mo t ion  Commi t tee ”  i den t i f i es  the  sus ta inab i l i t y  i ssues  tha t  a re  re levan t  t o  t he  Company ’s  ope ra t i ons  and  conce rn  s take -
ho lde rs .  The  commi t tee  a l so  fo rmu la tes  a  response  s t ra tegy  and  work ing  po l i cy,  and  fu r the r  t racks  the  imp lemen ta t i on  
pe r fo rmance  to  ensu re  tha t  t he  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  s t ra tegy  i s  i nco rpo ra ted  i n to  the  Company ’s  da i l y  ope ra t i ons .  
The  managemen t  rep resen ta t i ve  regu la r l y  repo r t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  on  the  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  imp lemen ta -
t i on  pe r fo rmance  and  fu tu re  work  p lan .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I .  Has the Company conducted a r isk assessment  on envi ronmenta l ,  soc ia l ,  and corporate 
governance issues that  are re levant  to  i ts  operat ions,  and implemented r isk management  
pol ic ies or  s t rategies based on pr inc ip les of  mater ia l i ty?

I n  2021 ,  t he  Company ’s  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  app roved  the  fo rmu la t i on  o f  t he  “R isk  Managemen t  Po l i cy  and  P rocedures ” ,  t he  
h ighes t  l eve l  gu ide l i nes  on  r i sk  managemen t  w i th in  t he  Company.  Upho ld ing  i t s  bus iness  v i s i on  and  the  l ong - te rm sus ta in -
ab i l i t y  accoun tab i l i t y  i t  ho lds  to  soc ie t y  and  the  i ndus t r y,  t he  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  En te rp r i se  R isk  Managemen t  
(ERM) ,  wh ich ,  by  eva lua t i ng  the  f requency  o f  r i sk  even ts  occu r rence  and  the  ex ten t  o f  ope ra t i ona l  impac t  t hey  have ,  
de f i nes  the  r i sk  con t ro l  p r i o r i t y  and  r i sk  l eve l s ,  and  adop ts  a  r i sk  managemen t  po l i cy  co r respond ing  to  t he  r i sk  l eve l s  
de f i ned .  Re levan t  po l i c i es  and  p rocedures ,  managemen t  scope ,  o rgan iza t i ona l  s t ruc tu re ,  and  ope ra t i ng  s ta tus  have  been  
d i sc losed  on  the  Company ’s  webs i te .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I I .  Envi ronmenta l  issues

(I) Has the Company developed an appropriate environmental management system, given 
i ts  d is t inct ive character is t ics?

The  Company  v iews  po l l u t i on  p reven t i on  as  one  o f  i t s  t op  p r i o r i t i es ,  and  i s  ded i ca ted  to  p romot ing  env i ronmen ta l  sus ta in -
ab i l i t y,  g reen  p roduc t i on ,  and  bu i l d ing  i t s  repu ta t i on  as  the  ro le  mode l  i n  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on .  The  Company  adop ted  
ISO 14001  -  Env i ronmen ta l  Managemen t  Sys tem in  t he  ea r l y  s tage  o f  p lan t  cons t ruc t i on  and  l a te r  adop ted  ISO 50001  
-  Ene rgy  Managemen t  Sys tem in  2014 .  S ince  then ,  t he  Company  has  been  mak ing  annua l  improvemen ts  and  tak ing  the  
i n i t i a t i ve  to  m in im ize  the  env i ronmen ta l  impac ts  o f  i t s  p roduc t i on  and  ope ra t i ona l  ac t i v i t i es  f rom an  env i ronmen ta l ,  ene rgy  
managemen t ,  and  regu la to ry  pe rspec t i ve .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

(I I) Is the Company committed to achieving eff icient use of resources, and using renewable 
mater ia ls  that  produce less impact  on the envi ronment?

1 .  Low ca rbon  manu fac tu r i ng :  The  Company  con t i nues  to  adop t  t he  bes t  t echno log ies  to  reduce  g reenhouse  gas  em iss ion ,  
and  s t r i ves  to  become the  i ndus t r y ’s  ro le  mode l  i n  l ow  ca rbon  manu fac tu r i ng .

2 .  Use  o f  renewab le  ene rgy :  The  Company  adop ts  the  use  o f  so la r  power  sys tem and  i s  cons tan t l y  sea rch ing  fo r  oppo r tu -
n i t i es  to  make  use  o f  renewab le  ene rgy.

3 .  Improv ing  ene rgy  e f f i c i ency :  The  Company  i n t roduces  new ene rgy  conse rva t i on  measures  each  yea r  and  takes  p ro -ac -
t i ve  ene rgy  ac t i ons  to  ra i se  ene rgy  e f f i c i ency.

4. Resil ience to cl imate change: The Company has response and preventive measures in place to mitigate cl imate change risks.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Does the Company assess potent ia l  r isks and oppor tuni t ies associated wi th c l imate 
change,  and under take measures in  response to c l imate issues?

The  Company  ac t i ve l y  suppor t s  g reen  ene rgy,  ca rbon  reduc t i on ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on  t rends  th roughou t  t he  
wor ld ,  and  fu l f i l l s  i t s  env i ronmen ta l  du t i es  as  Ea r th ’s  res iden t .  The  Company  g i ves  tho rough  cons ide ra t i on  to  env i ronmen-
ta l  p ro tec t i on ,  i n  t ha t  i t  has  ac t i ve l y  pu rchased  l oca l  renewab le  ene rgy,  i nves ted  resou rces  to  deve lop  g reen  mach ine ry,  
i n t roduced  new-genera t i on  ene rgy -e f f i c i en t  mach ine ry,  and  s t r i ved  to  ach ieve  the  g reen  ob jec t i ve  o f  doub l i ng  i t s  ene rgy  
e f f i c i ency  fo r  each  un i t  p roduc t  p roduced .  Meanwh i l e ,  i t  a l so  p lans  and  cons t ruc ts  g reen  bu i l d ings ,  execu tes  p ro jec t s  
rega rd ing  ene rgy  and  wa te r  conse rva t i on  and  ca rbon  reduc t i on ,  and  ra i ses  the  g round  l eve l  o f  bu i l d ings .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( IV)  Does the Company mainta in s tat is t ics on greenhouse gas emiss ion,  water  usage,  and 
tota l  waste vo lume in the last  two years,  and implement  pol ic ies a imed at  reducing en-
ergy,  carbon,  greenhouse gas,  water  and waste?

The  Company  comp le ted  the  assessmen t  o f  p roduc t  l i f e  cyc le ,  ca rbon  foo tp r i n t ,  and  wa te r  f oo tp r i n t  and  managed  to  ob ta in  
t h i rd -pa r t y  ce r t i f i ca t i on  i n  2019 .  The  Company  has  been  ce r t i f i ed  w i th  i n te rna t i ona l  s tanda rds  i nc lud ing  ISO 14040 ,  ISO 
14067 ,  and  ISO 14046 .  The  Company  makes  p ro -ac t i ve  a t temp t  a t  m in im iz ing  env i ronmen ta l  f oo tp r i n t  o f  i t s  p roduc t ,  and  
con t i nues  to  en fo rce  g reen  ac t i ons  i nc lud ing  g reenhouse  gas  reduc t i on ,  ene rgy  conse rva t i on ,  wa te r  conse rva t i on ,  was te  
reduc t i on ,  resou rce  recyc l i ng / reuse ,  and  po l l u t i on  p reven t i on  th roughou t  t he  Company.
1 .  Greenhouse  gas  reduc t i on  and  ene rgy  managemen t
The  Company  imp lemen ted  a  g reenhouse  gas  se l f - su rvey  sys tem in  2013  tha t  enab led  i t  t o  comp le te  scope  1  and  scope  
2  g reenhouse  gas  su rveys  annua l l y  f o r  t he  p rev ious  yea r.  Su rvey  resu l t s  a re  ve r i f i ed  by  an  ex te rna l  pa r t y  acco rd ing  to  
ISO 14064-1  s tanda rds  and  repo r ted  back  to  t he  pa ren t  company  fo r  conso l i da t i on .  Greenhouse  gas  em iss ion  pe r  un i t  o f  
p roduc t  i n  2021  and  2020  was  45 .89% and  59 .5% lower  t han  the  2018  l eve l ,  whe reas  PFCs  emiss ion  pe r  un i t  o f  p roduc t  
was  93 .03% and  38 .4% lower  t han  the  2018  l eve l .
2 .  Wa te r  resou rce  managemen t :

 (1 )   Resource  r i sk  managemen t :  The  Company  execu tes  c l ima te  r i sk  m i t i ga t i on  so lu t i ons  and  takes  p rog ress i ve  s teps  
to  conse rve  wa te r  and  ad jus t  t o  wa te r  sho r tage .  Wate r  usage  pe r  un i t  o f  p roduc t  i n  2021  and  2020  was  34 .72% and  
41 .18% lower  t han  the  2018  l eve l .

 ( 2 )   Divers i f ied water  resources:  The Company cont inues to cut  down product ion water  usage and recycle water  through 
in tegrat ion of  in ternal  and external  resources.  The Company recycled 88% of  product ion wastewater  in  2021 and 2020.

 ( 3 )  Deve lopment  o f  t reatment  technology:  Advanced water  t reatment  technolog ies  are  be ing adopted to  ensure e ffec t ive 
remova l  o f  TMAH and  o the r  po l l u tan ts  i n  was tewa te r.  TMAH concen t ra t i on  o f  was tewa te r  d i scha rged  was  measured  
to  be  9 .09mg/L i n  2021  and  12mg/L i n  2020 .

3 .  Was te  managemen t :
(1 )   Reduc t i on  a t  t he  sou rce :  Supp l i e rs  a re  be ing  reques ted  to  supp ly  chemica l  mach ine ry  o f  l ow  consumpt ion ,  wh ich  

he lps  reduce  was te  a t  t he  sou rce .  Vo lume o f  ou tsou rced  was te  d i sposa l  pe r  un i t  o f  wa fe r  i n  2021  and  2020  was  
0 .09kg  and  0 .09kg ,  respec t i ve l y,  l ess  than  the  2018  l eve l .

(2 )   C i r cu la r  economy :  The  Company  i s  cons tan t l y  i n  sea rch  o f  new was te  recyc l i ng  techno logy  to  i nc rease  the  vo lume 
o f  was te  recyc led  and  reused .  I n  2021  and  2020 ,  t he  Company  recyc led  55% and  54%,  respec t i ve l y,  and  l and f i l l ed  
0 .1% and  0 .24%,  respec t i ve l y,  o f  was te .

(3 )   Aud i t  and  counse l i ng :  The  Company  pe r fo rms  aud i t  and  j o in t  eva lua t i on /counse l i ng  acco rd ing  to  Was te  Manage-
men t  Se rv i ce  P rov ide r  Eva lua t i on  S tandards  fo r  H igh - tech  Indus t r y.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on
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(VI) Fulfillment of Sustainable Development; Deviations from the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx 
Listed Companies; and Causes for Such Deviations

Promoted I tems

Execu t i on  p rog ress Dev ia t i ons  f rom Sus ta in -
ab le  Deve lopmen t  Bes t  
P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  
TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Com-
pan ies  and  the  causes  
the re fo r

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

I .  Does the company establish a governance structure and set up an exclusively (or concurrently) 
dedicated uni t  to  promote susta inable development? Is  such uni t  be ing deal t  wi th  by h igh 
level  management  as author ized by the Board of  Di rectors? How is  i t  superv ised by the 
Board of  Di rectors?

I n  2021 ,  t he  Company  es tab l i shed  the  “ESG Sus ta inab le  Deve lopmen t  P romot ion  Commi t tee ” ,  t he  h ighes t  dec i s ion -mak -
ing  body  w i th in  t he  Company  w i th  respec t  t o  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t .  The  commi t tee  i s  cha i red  by  the  P res iden t  who ,  
t oge the r  w i th  a  rep resen ta t i ve  and  va r i ous  h igh - l eve l  managemen t  possess ing  d i f f e ren t  expe r t i se ,  rev iews  the  Company ’s  
co re  ope ra t i ng  capab i l i t i es  and  se ts  up  the  med ium-  and  l ong - te rm sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  p lan .
Th rough  qua r te r l y  mee t i ngs  and  workshops  es tab l i shed  to  cove r  d i f f e ren t  i ssues ,  t he  “ESG Sus ta inab le  Deve lopmen t  P ro -
mo t ion  Commi t tee ”  i den t i f i es  t he  sus ta inab i l i t y  i ssues  tha t  a re  re levan t  t o  t he  Company ’s  ope ra t i ons  and  conce rn  s take -
ho lde rs .  The  commi t tee  a l so  fo rmu la tes  a  response  s t ra tegy  and  work ing  po l i cy,  and  fu r the r  t racks  the  imp lemen ta t i on  
pe r fo rmance  to  ensu re  tha t  t he  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  s t ra tegy  i s  i nco rpo ra ted  i n to  the  Company ’s  da i l y  ope ra t i ons .  
The  managemen t  rep resen ta t i ve  regu la r l y  repo r t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  on  the  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  imp lemen ta -
t i on  pe r fo rmance  and  fu tu re  work  p lan .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I .  Has the Company conducted a r isk assessment  on envi ronmenta l ,  soc ia l ,  and corporate 
governance issues that  are re levant  to  i ts  operat ions,  and implemented r isk management  
pol ic ies or  s t rategies based on pr inc ip les of  mater ia l i ty?

I n  2021 ,  t he  Company ’s  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  app roved  the  fo rmu la t i on  o f  t he  “R isk  Managemen t  Po l i cy  and  P rocedures ” ,  t he  
h ighes t  l eve l  gu ide l i nes  on  r i sk  managemen t  w i th in  t he  Company.  Upho ld ing  i t s  bus iness  v i s i on  and  the  l ong - te rm sus ta in -
ab i l i t y  accoun tab i l i t y  i t  ho lds  to  soc ie t y  and  the  i ndus t r y,  t he  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  En te rp r i se  R isk  Managemen t  
(ERM) ,  wh ich ,  by  eva lua t i ng  the  f requency  o f  r i sk  even ts  occu r rence  and  the  ex ten t  o f  ope ra t i ona l  impac t  t hey  have ,  
de f i nes  the  r i sk  con t ro l  p r i o r i t y  and  r i sk  l eve l s ,  and  adop ts  a  r i sk  managemen t  po l i cy  co r respond ing  to  t he  r i sk  l eve l s  
de f i ned .  Re levan t  po l i c i es  and  p rocedures ,  managemen t  scope ,  o rgan iza t i ona l  s t ruc tu re ,  and  ope ra t i ng  s ta tus  have  been  
d i sc losed  on  the  Company ’s  webs i te .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I I .  Envi ronmenta l  issues

(I) Has the Company developed an appropriate environmental management system, given 
i ts  d is t inct ive character is t ics?

The  Company  v iews  po l l u t i on  p reven t i on  as  one  o f  i t s  t op  p r i o r i t i es ,  and  i s  ded i ca ted  to  p romot ing  env i ronmen ta l  sus ta in -
ab i l i t y,  g reen  p roduc t i on ,  and  bu i l d ing  i t s  repu ta t i on  as  the  ro le  mode l  i n  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on .  The  Company  adop ted  
ISO 14001  -  Env i ronmen ta l  Managemen t  Sys tem in  t he  ea r l y  s tage  o f  p lan t  cons t ruc t i on  and  l a te r  adop ted  ISO 50001  
-  Ene rgy  Managemen t  Sys tem in  2014 .  S ince  then ,  t he  Company  has  been  mak ing  annua l  improvemen ts  and  tak ing  the  
i n i t i a t i ve  to  m in im ize  the  env i ronmen ta l  impac ts  o f  i t s  p roduc t i on  and  ope ra t i ona l  ac t i v i t i es  f rom an  env i ronmen ta l ,  ene rgy  
managemen t ,  and  regu la to ry  pe rspec t i ve .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

(I I) Is the Company committed to achieving eff icient use of resources, and using renewable 
mater ia ls  that  produce less impact  on the envi ronment?

1 .  Low ca rbon  manu fac tu r i ng :  The  Company  con t i nues  to  adop t  t he  bes t  t echno log ies  to  reduce  g reenhouse  gas  em iss ion ,  
and  s t r i ves  to  become the  i ndus t r y ’s  ro le  mode l  i n  l ow  ca rbon  manu fac tu r i ng .

2 .  Use  o f  renewab le  ene rgy :  The  Company  adop ts  the  use  o f  so la r  power  sys tem and  i s  cons tan t l y  sea rch ing  fo r  oppo r tu -
n i t i es  to  make  use  o f  renewab le  ene rgy.

3 .  Improv ing  ene rgy  e f f i c i ency :  The  Company  i n t roduces  new ene rgy  conse rva t i on  measures  each  yea r  and  takes  p ro -ac -
t i ve  ene rgy  ac t i ons  to  ra i se  ene rgy  e f f i c i ency.

4. Resil ience to cl imate change: The Company has response and preventive measures in place to mitigate cl imate change risks.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Does the Company assess potent ia l  r isks and oppor tuni t ies associated wi th c l imate 
change,  and under take measures in  response to c l imate issues?

The  Company  ac t i ve l y  suppor t s  g reen  ene rgy,  ca rbon  reduc t i on ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on  t rends  th roughou t  t he  
wor ld ,  and  fu l f i l l s  i t s  env i ronmen ta l  du t i es  as  Ea r th ’s  res iden t .  The  Company  g i ves  tho rough  cons ide ra t i on  to  env i ronmen-
ta l  p ro tec t i on ,  i n  t ha t  i t  has  ac t i ve l y  pu rchased  l oca l  renewab le  ene rgy,  i nves ted  resou rces  to  deve lop  g reen  mach ine ry,  
i n t roduced  new-genera t i on  ene rgy -e f f i c i en t  mach ine ry,  and  s t r i ved  to  ach ieve  the  g reen  ob jec t i ve  o f  doub l i ng  i t s  ene rgy  
e f f i c i ency  fo r  each  un i t  p roduc t  p roduced .  Meanwh i l e ,  i t  a l so  p lans  and  cons t ruc ts  g reen  bu i l d ings ,  execu tes  p ro jec t s  
rega rd ing  ene rgy  and  wa te r  conse rva t i on  and  ca rbon  reduc t i on ,  and  ra i ses  the  g round  l eve l  o f  bu i l d ings .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( IV)  Does the Company mainta in s tat is t ics on greenhouse gas emiss ion,  water  usage,  and 
tota l  waste vo lume in the last  two years,  and implement  pol ic ies a imed at  reducing en-
ergy,  carbon,  greenhouse gas,  water  and waste?

The  Company  comp le ted  the  assessmen t  o f  p roduc t  l i f e  cyc le ,  ca rbon  foo tp r i n t ,  and  wa te r  f oo tp r i n t  and  managed  to  ob ta in  
t h i rd -pa r t y  ce r t i f i ca t i on  i n  2019 .  The  Company  has  been  ce r t i f i ed  w i th  i n te rna t i ona l  s tanda rds  i nc lud ing  ISO 14040 ,  ISO 
14067 ,  and  ISO 14046 .  The  Company  makes  p ro -ac t i ve  a t temp t  a t  m in im iz ing  env i ronmen ta l  f oo tp r i n t  o f  i t s  p roduc t ,  and  
con t i nues  to  en fo rce  g reen  ac t i ons  i nc lud ing  g reenhouse  gas  reduc t i on ,  ene rgy  conse rva t i on ,  wa te r  conse rva t i on ,  was te  
reduc t i on ,  resou rce  recyc l i ng / reuse ,  and  po l l u t i on  p reven t i on  th roughou t  t he  Company.
1 .  Greenhouse  gas  reduc t i on  and  ene rgy  managemen t
The  Company  imp lemen ted  a  g reenhouse  gas  se l f - su rvey  sys tem in  2013  tha t  enab led  i t  t o  comp le te  scope  1  and  scope  
2  g reenhouse  gas  su rveys  annua l l y  f o r  t he  p rev ious  yea r.  Su rvey  resu l t s  a re  ve r i f i ed  by  an  ex te rna l  pa r t y  acco rd ing  to  
ISO 14064-1  s tanda rds  and  repo r ted  back  to  t he  pa ren t  company  fo r  conso l i da t i on .  Greenhouse  gas  em iss ion  pe r  un i t  o f  
p roduc t  i n  2021  and  2020  was  45 .89% and  59 .5% lower  t han  the  2018  l eve l ,  whe reas  PFCs  emiss ion  pe r  un i t  o f  p roduc t  
was  93 .03% and  38 .4% lower  t han  the  2018  l eve l .
2 .  Wa te r  resou rce  managemen t :

 (1 )   Resource  r i sk  managemen t :  The  Company  execu tes  c l ima te  r i sk  m i t i ga t i on  so lu t i ons  and  takes  p rog ress i ve  s teps  
to  conse rve  wa te r  and  ad jus t  t o  wa te r  sho r tage .  Wate r  usage  pe r  un i t  o f  p roduc t  i n  2021  and  2020  was  34 .72% and  
41 .18% lower  t han  the  2018  l eve l .

 ( 2 )   Divers i f ied water  resources:  The Company cont inues to cut  down product ion water  usage and recycle water  through 
in tegrat ion of  in ternal  and external  resources.  The Company recycled 88% of  product ion wastewater  in  2021 and 2020.

 ( 3 )  Deve lopment  o f  t reatment  technology:  Advanced water  t reatment  technolog ies  are  be ing adopted to  ensure e ffec t ive 
remova l  o f  TMAH and  o the r  po l l u tan ts  i n  was tewa te r.  TMAH concen t ra t i on  o f  was tewa te r  d i scha rged  was  measured  
to  be  9 .09mg/L i n  2021  and  12mg/L i n  2020 .

3 .  Was te  managemen t :
(1 )   Reduc t i on  a t  t he  sou rce :  Supp l i e rs  a re  be ing  reques ted  to  supp ly  chemica l  mach ine ry  o f  l ow  consumpt ion ,  wh ich  

he lps  reduce  was te  a t  t he  sou rce .  Vo lume o f  ou tsou rced  was te  d i sposa l  pe r  un i t  o f  wa fe r  i n  2021  and  2020  was  
0 .09kg  and  0 .09kg ,  respec t i ve l y,  l ess  than  the  2018  l eve l .

(2 )   C i r cu la r  economy :  The  Company  i s  cons tan t l y  i n  sea rch  o f  new was te  recyc l i ng  techno logy  to  i nc rease  the  vo lume 
o f  was te  recyc led  and  reused .  I n  2021  and  2020 ,  t he  Company  recyc led  55% and  54%,  respec t i ve l y,  and  l and f i l l ed  
0 .1% and  0 .24%,  respec t i ve l y,  o f  was te .

(3 )   Aud i t  and  counse l i ng :  The  Company  pe r fo rms  aud i t  and  j o in t  eva lua t i on /counse l i ng  acco rd ing  to  Was te  Manage-
men t  Se rv i ce  P rov ide r  Eva lua t i on  S tandards  fo r  H igh - tech  Indus t r y.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on
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Promoted I tems

Execu t i on  p rog ress Dev ia t i ons  f rom Sus ta in -
ab le  Deve lopmen t  Bes t  
P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  
TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Com-
pan ies  and  the  causes  
the re fo r

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

IV.  Enforcement  of  publ ic  in terest

( I )  Has the Company developed i ts  pol ic ies and procedures in  accordance wi th laws and 
Internat ional  B i l l  o f  Human Rights?

The  Company  s t r i c t l y  ab ides  by  l abo r  l aws  and  regu la t i ons ,  w i th  wh ich  a l l  o f  i t s  i n te rna l  regu la t i ons  and  sys tems  com-
p l y.  “V i sEra  Corpo ra te  Soc ia l  Respons ib i l i t y  Po l i cy ”  and  “V i sEra  Supp l i e r  Code  o f  Conduc t ”  have  been  c rea ted  based  on  
“Respons ib le  Bus iness  A l l i ance  (RBA,  fo rmer l y  known  as  E ICC)  Code  o f  Conduc t ”  and  “Un i ted  Na t i ons  Gu id ing  P r inc ip les  
on  Bus iness  and  Human  R igh ts . ”  F rom 2021  onwards ,  t he  Company  requ i res  supp l i e rs  t o  s ign  the  “V i sEra  Supp l i e r  Code  
o f  Conduc t ”  i n  o rde r  f o r  t hem to  fu l f i l l  t he  requ i remen ts  o f  wo rke rs ’  human  r i gh ts ,  t e rms  o f  emp loymen t ,  wo rke rs ’  hea l th ,  
occupa t i ona l  sa fe t y  and  hea l th ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

(I I) Has the Company developed and implemented reasonable employee welfare measures 
( inc luding compensat ion,  leave of  absence and other  benef i ts) ,  and appropr ia te ly  
ref lected business per formance or  outcome in employees’ compensat ions?

The  Company  i s  commi t ted  to  ma in ta in ing  a  h igh  s tanda rd  o f  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y.  I t  be l i eves  tha t  t he  ma in te -
nance  o f  good  l abo r  re la t i ons  i s  t he  co rne rs tone  o f  t he  Company ’s  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  and  p romotes  the  fo l l ow ing  
emp loyee  we l fa re  measures :
1 .  Labo r  I nsu rance  and  Na t i ona l  Hea l th  I nsu rance :  A l l  emp loyees  o f  t he  Company  pa r t i c i pa te  i n  Labo r  I nsu rance  and  Na-

t i ona l  Hea l th  I nsu rance .
2 .  Group  Insu rance :  I n  add i t i on  to  t he  emp loyees  themse lves ,  t he i r  spouses ,  ch i l d ren  and  pa ren ts  a re  a l so  cove red ,  so  

tha t  co l l eagues  and  the i r  f am i l i es  can  be  p ro tec ted .
3 .  Emp loyee  we l fa re :  The  Company  makes  we l fa re  fund  con t r i bu t i ons  as  pe r  t he  “Emp loyee  We l fa re  Fund  Ac t , ”  and  

o rgan izes  an  emp loyee  we l fa re  commi t tee  to  hand le  emp loyee  we l fa re  ma t te rs .  I n  add i t i on  to  p rov id ing  emp loyees  
w i th  va r i ous  we l fa re  measures  and  cash  g i f t s  f o r  annua l  f es t i va l s ,  company  t r i ps ,  f am i l y  days ,  yea r -end  pa r t i es  and  
o the r  ac t i v i t i es  w i l l  be  o rgan ized  as  we l l  t o  ma in ta in  t he  f r i endsh ip  among  emp loyees ,  enhance  the  i n te rna l  cohes ion  
w i th in  t he  o rgan iza t i on ,  and  improve  the  mora le  a t  wo rk .  I n  response  to  t he  COVID-19  pandemic  i n  2021 ,  t he  Company  
cance l l ed  the  p lanned  ac t i v i t i es  such  as  emp loyee  tou rs ,  f am i l y  day,  and  company -w ide  yea r -end  pa r t y,  wh ich  were  
rep laced  w i th  bene f i t  f und  subs id ies  and  depar tmen t -w ide  yea r -end  pa r t i es .  Ac t i v i t i es  p lanned  fo r  2022  w i l l  depend  on  
how the  pandemic  deve lops .

4 .  Emp loyee  hea l th  p romot ion :  Va r ious  emp loyee  phys i ca l  examina t i ons  and  annua l  hea l th  check -ups  a re  p rov ided  wh ich  
a re  be t te r  t han  the  s ta tu to ry  requ i remen ts ,  and  app rop r ia te  hea l th  p romot ion  p rog rams  a re  p lanned  as  needed .  A hea l th  
cen te r  and  b reas t feed ing  rooms  have  been  se t  up ,  ded i ca ted  nu rs ing  pe rsonne l  a re  h i red ,  and  phys i c ians  a re  regu la r l y  
a r ranged  fo r  t o  v i s i t  t he  p lan t  t o  p rov ide  hea l th  consu l ta t i ons .  P ro fess iona l  psycho log i ca l  counse lo rs  a re  engaged  to  
t ake  ca re  o f  t he  men ta l  hea l th  o f  emp loyees .  Hea l th  p romot ion  cou rses  a re  o rgan ized  regu la r l y,  such  as  the  body -m ind  
cou rses .  B lood  dona t i on  ac t i v i t i es  a re  a r ranged ,  bo th  to  acce le ra te  me tabo l i sm and  to  do  cha r i t y.  Hea l th  l ec tu res  were  
suspended  due  to  t he  COVID-19  pandemic  i n  2021 ;  ons i t e  se rv i ces  p rov ided  by  phys i c ians  and  p ro fess iona l  psycho log -
i ca l  consu l tan ts  were  s t i l l  ava i l ab le .

5 .  Group  mea ls :  The  Company  has  a  can teen  and  co f fee  ba r  wh ich  p rov ide  va r i ous  mea ls  such  as  bu f fe t ,  f as t  f ood ,  and  
whea t  d i shes .  Lunch ,  d inne r  and  supper  a re  a l l  subs id i zed  by  the  Company.  The  Company  s ta r t s  p rov id ing  exo t i c  
cu i s ine  mea ls ,  wh ich  ma in l y  compr i se  na t i ve  cu i s ine  o f  t hose  fo re ign -na t i ona l  m ig ran t  wo rke rs ,  i n  o rde r  t o  comfo r t  t he i r  
homes ickness .

6 .  Bonus  sys tem:  The  Company  pays  bonuses  depend ing  on  pe r fo rmance  resu l t s .
7 .  C lub  ac t i v i t i es :  I n  o rde r  t o  encou rage  emp loyees  to  engage  i n  p rope r  l e i su re  ac t i v i t i es ,  va r i ous  c lubs  a re  o rgan ized  by  

emp loyees ,  and  the  Emp loyee  We l fa re  Commi t tee  p rov ides  budge t  subs id ies .
Emp loyee  compensa t i on  i s  de te rm ined  by  the  p rov i s ions  o f  t he  Company ’s  A r t i c l es  o f  I nco rpo ra t i on ,  wh ich  f i xes  i t  a t  no  
l ess  than  1% o f  annua l  ea rn ings .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Does the Company prov ide employees wi th a safe and heal thy work envi ronment?  
Are employees t ra ined regular ly  on safety  and heal th issues?

1 .  Fu l l y  f ea tu red  work  env i ronmen t :
•  The  p lan t  comp le ted  i n  2007  rece i ved  Award  o f  Exce l l ence  fo r  Green  P lan t  I n i t i a t i ve  w i th in  t he  sc ience  pa rk .
•  Sa fe  and  cons tan t - t empera tu re  c lean  room env i ronmen t .
•  We l l - l i t ,  comfo r tab le ,  and  access ib le  o f f i ce  env i ronmen t  where  emp loyees  may  commun ica te  eas i l y  w i th  each  o the r.
•  F i ve -s ta r  f i t ness  cen te r  f ea tu r i ng  commerc ia l -g rade  f i t ness  equ ipmen t ,  ae rob i cs  rooms ,  poo l  t ab le ,  and  tab le  tenn i s  

equ ipmen t .
•  Emp loyees  a re  en t i t l ed  to  ca r / scoo te r /b i cyc le  pa rk ing  l o t s .

2 .  P ro fess iona l  se rv i ces :  The  Company  has  a  hea l th  cen te r,  equ ipped  w i th  nu rs ing  p ro fess iona l s  t o  p rov ide  p ro fess iona l  
heal th consul tat ion and nurs ing serv ices;  a nursery room has a lso been created to cater  for  the needs of  work ing mothers.

3 .  Hea l th  even ts :  The  Company  o rgan izes  regu la r  hea l th  checkups  and  sc reen ings  tha t  a re  more  comprehens i ve  than  wha t  
t he  l aws  requ i re ,  t he reby  a l l ow ing  ea r l y  i den t i f i ca t i on  o f  hea l th  p rob lems .  Comp l imen ta ry  hea l th  semina rs ,  phys ique  
managemen t  cou rses ,  h i k i ng  even ts ,  and  massage  se rv i ces  a re  o rgan ized  fo r  emp loyees ’ bene f i t .  A l t hough  the  hea l th  
l ec tu res  were  cance l l ed  due  to  t he  COVID-19  pandemic ,  i n  2021 ,  t he  Company  s t i l l  t ook  ca re  o f  emp loyees  by  a r rang ing  
a  hea l th  check -up  fo r  t hem,  as  requ i red  by  l aw.

4 .  The  Company  comp l i es  w i th  l aws  and  makes  ongo ing  e f fo r t s  t o  p romote  emp loyees ’ sa fe t y  and  hea l th  awareness .  New 
rec ru i t s  a re  sub jec ted  to  sa fe t y  and  hea l th  t ra in ing  upon  commencemen t  o f  du ty,  and  a l l  emp loyees  a re  t ra ined  regu -
la r l y  on  evacua t i on  and  use  o f  f i r e  ex t i ngu i she rs  and  f i r e  hyd ran ts .  P rac t i ca l  CPR/AED t ra in ing  a re  a l so  a r ranged  fo r  
emp loyees ’ sa fe t y.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( IV)  Does the Company have means to communicate wi th employees on a regular  basis ,  
and in form them of  operat ional  changes that  may be of  s ign i f icant  impact?

The  Company  va lues  the  op in ions  o f  i t s  emp loyees  and  p rov ides  a  va r i e t y  o f  channe ls  t o  p romote  commun ica t i on  and  co -
o rd ina t i on  be tween  l abo r  and  cap i ta l .  A qua r te r l y  l abo r -cap i ta l  mee t i ng  i s  he ld  to  exp la in  t he  Company ’s  ope ra t i on  p ro f i l e  
t o  l abo r  rep resen ta t i ves  and  pa r t i c i pa te  i n  d i scuss ions  on  l abo r  cond i t i ons  and  we l fa re  ma t te rs .  Emp loyee  commun ica -
t i on  mee t ings  a re  he ld  qua r te r l y  f o r  d i rec t  and  two -way  i n te rac t i on  and  commun ica t i on .  Impor tan t  i n fo rma t ion  and  recen t  
even ts  a re  announced  th rough  the  i n te rna l  webs i te  (My  V isEra ) .  A channe l  f o r  emp loyee  g r i evances  has  been  es tab l i shed  
and  the  respons ib le  segmen t  and  the  Company ’s  t op  managemen t  w i l l  be  i n fo rmed  based  on  the  na tu re  o f  t he  g r i evanc -
es .  The re  i s  a l so  an  emp loyee  sugges t i on  box  to  a l l ow  emp loyees  to  g i ve  the i r  comments  abou t  wo rk  and  env i ronmen ta l  
i ssues  and  sugges t i ons .  Mu l t i p l e  channe ls  f o r  emp loyee  feedback  a re  ma in ta ined ,  vo i ces  o f  emp loyees  a re  l i s tened  to ,  
and  responses  and  commun ica t i on  a re  made  i n  a  t ime ly  manner  t o  p romote  l abo r -managemen t  ha rmony  and  ach ieve  w in -
w in  fo r  bo th  the  en te rp r i se  and  emp loyees .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on
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IV.  Enforcement  of  publ ic  in terest

( I )  Has the Company developed i ts  pol ic ies and procedures in  accordance wi th laws and 
Internat ional  B i l l  o f  Human Rights?

The  Company  s t r i c t l y  ab ides  by  l abo r  l aws  and  regu la t i ons ,  w i th  wh ich  a l l  o f  i t s  i n te rna l  regu la t i ons  and  sys tems  com-
p l y.  “V i sEra  Corpo ra te  Soc ia l  Respons ib i l i t y  Po l i cy ”  and  “V i sEra  Supp l i e r  Code  o f  Conduc t ”  have  been  c rea ted  based  on  
“Respons ib le  Bus iness  A l l i ance  (RBA,  fo rmer l y  known  as  E ICC)  Code  o f  Conduc t ”  and  “Un i ted  Na t i ons  Gu id ing  P r inc ip les  
on  Bus iness  and  Human  R igh ts . ”  F rom 2021  onwards ,  t he  Company  requ i res  supp l i e rs  t o  s ign  the  “V i sEra  Supp l i e r  Code  
o f  Conduc t ”  i n  o rde r  f o r  t hem to  fu l f i l l  t he  requ i remen ts  o f  wo rke rs ’  human  r i gh ts ,  t e rms  o f  emp loymen t ,  wo rke rs ’  hea l th ,  
occupa t i ona l  sa fe t y  and  hea l th ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

(I I) Has the Company developed and implemented reasonable employee welfare measures 
( inc luding compensat ion,  leave of  absence and other  benef i ts) ,  and appropr ia te ly  
ref lected business per formance or  outcome in employees’ compensat ions?

The  Company  i s  commi t ted  to  ma in ta in ing  a  h igh  s tanda rd  o f  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y.  I t  be l i eves  tha t  t he  ma in te -
nance  o f  good  l abo r  re la t i ons  i s  t he  co rne rs tone  o f  t he  Company ’s  sus ta inab le  deve lopmen t  and  p romotes  the  fo l l ow ing  
emp loyee  we l fa re  measu res :
1 .  Labo r  I nsu rance  and  Na t i ona l  Hea l th  I nsu rance :  A l l  emp loyees  o f  t he  Company  pa r t i c i pa te  i n  Labo r  I nsu rance  and  Na-

t i ona l  Hea l th  I nsu rance .
2 .  Group  Insu rance :  I n  add i t i on  to  t he  emp loyees  themse lves ,  t he i r  spouses ,  ch i l d ren  and  pa ren ts  a re  a l so  cove red ,  so  

tha t  co l l eagues  and  the i r  f am i l i es  can  be  p ro tec ted .
3 .  Emp loyee  we l fa re :  The  Company  makes  we l fa re  fund  con t r i bu t i ons  as  pe r  t he  “Emp loyee  We l fa re  Fund  Ac t , ”  and  

o rgan izes  an  emp loyee  we l fa re  commi t tee  to  hand le  emp loyee  we l fa re  ma t te rs .  I n  add i t i on  to  p rov id ing  emp loyees  
w i th  va r i ous  we l fa re  measu res  and  cash  g i f t s  f o r  annua l  f es t i va l s ,  company  t r i ps ,  f am i l y  days ,  yea r -end  pa r t i es  and  
o the r  ac t i v i t i es  w i l l  be  o rgan ized  as  we l l  t o  ma in ta in  t he  f r i endsh ip  among  emp loyees ,  enhance  the  i n te rna l  cohes ion  
w i th in  t he  o rgan iza t i on ,  and  improve  the  mora le  a t  wo rk .  I n  response  to  t he  COVID-19  pandemic  i n  2021 ,  t he  Company  
cance l l ed  the  p lanned  ac t i v i t i es  such  as  emp loyee  tou rs ,  f am i l y  day,  and  company -w ide  yea r -end  pa r t y,  wh ich  were  
rep laced  w i th  bene f i t  f und  subs id ies  and  depar tmen t -w ide  yea r -end  pa r t i es .  Ac t i v i t i es  p lanned  fo r  2022  w i l l  depend  on  
how the  pandemic  deve lops .

4 .  Emp loyee  hea l th  p romot ion :  Va r ious  emp loyee  phys i ca l  examina t i ons  and  annua l  hea l th  check -ups  a re  p rov ided  wh ich  
a re  be t te r  t han  the  s ta tu to ry  requ i remen ts ,  and  app rop r ia te  hea l th  p romot ion  p rog rams  a re  p lanned  as  needed .  A hea l th  
cen te r  and  b reas t feed ing  rooms  have  been  se t  up ,  ded i ca ted  nu rs ing  pe rsonne l  a re  h i red ,  and  phys i c ians  a re  regu la r l y  
a r ranged  fo r  t o  v i s i t  t he  p lan t  t o  p rov ide  hea l th  consu l ta t i ons .  P ro fess iona l  psycho log i ca l  counse lo rs  a re  engaged  to  
t ake  ca re  o f  t he  men ta l  hea l th  o f  emp loyees .  Hea l th  p romot ion  cou rses  a re  o rgan ized  regu la r l y,  such  as  the  body -m ind  
cou rses .  B lood  dona t i on  ac t i v i t i es  a re  a r ranged ,  bo th  to  acce le ra te  me tabo l i sm and  to  do  cha r i t y.  Hea l th  l ec tu res  were  
suspended  due  to  t he  COVID-19  pandemic  i n  2021 ;  ons i t e  se rv i ces  p rov ided  by  phys i c ians  and  p ro fess iona l  psycho log -
i ca l  consu l tan ts  were  s t i l l  ava i l ab le .

5 .  Group  mea ls :  The  Company  has  a  can teen  and  co f fee  ba r  wh ich  p rov ide  va r i ous  mea ls  such  as  bu f fe t ,  f as t  f ood ,  and  
whea t  d i shes .  Lunch ,  d inne r  and  supper  a re  a l l  subs id i zed  by  the  Company.  The  Company  s ta r t s  p rov id ing  exo t i c  
cu i s ine  mea ls ,  wh ich  ma in l y  compr i se  na t i ve  cu i s ine  o f  t hose  fo re ign -na t i ona l  m ig ran t  wo rke rs ,  i n  o rde r  t o  comfo r t  t he i r  
homes ickness .

6 .  Bonus  sys tem:  The  Company  pays  bonuses  depend ing  on  pe r fo rmance  resu l t s .
7 .  C lub  ac t i v i t i es :  I n  o rde r  t o  encou rage  emp loyees  to  engage  i n  p rope r  l e i su re  ac t i v i t i es ,  va r i ous  c lubs  a re  o rgan ized  by  

emp loyees ,  and  the  Emp loyee  We l fa re  Commi t tee  p rov ides  budge t  subs id ies .
Emp loyee  compensa t i on  i s  de te rm ined  by  the  p rov i s ions  o f  t he  Company ’s  A r t i c l es  o f  I nco rpo ra t i on ,  wh ich  f i xes  i t  a t  no  
l ess  than  1% o f  annua l  ea rn ings .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Does the Company prov ide employees wi th a safe and heal thy work envi ronment?  
Are employees t ra ined regular ly  on safety  and heal th issues?

1 .  Fu l l y  f ea tu red  work  env i ronmen t :
•  The  p lan t  comp le ted  i n  2007  rece i ved  Award  o f  Exce l l ence  fo r  Green  P lan t  I n i t i a t i ve  w i th in  t he  sc ience  pa rk .
•  Sa fe  and  cons tan t - t empera tu re  c lean  room env i ronmen t .
•  We l l - l i t ,  comfo r tab le ,  and  access ib le  o f f i ce  env i ronmen t  where  emp loyees  may  commun ica te  eas i l y  w i th  each  o the r.
•  F i ve -s ta r  f i t ness  cen te r  f ea tu r i ng  commerc ia l -g rade  f i t ness  equ ipmen t ,  ae rob i cs  rooms ,  poo l  t ab le ,  and  tab le  tenn i s  

equ ipmen t .
•  Emp loyees  a re  en t i t l ed  to  ca r / scoo te r /b i cyc le  pa rk ing  l o t s .

2 .  P ro fess iona l  se rv i ces :  The  Company  has  a  hea l th  cen te r,  equ ipped  w i th  nu rs ing  p ro fess iona l s  t o  p rov ide  p ro fess iona l  
heal th consul tat ion and nurs ing serv ices;  a nursery room has a lso been created to cater  for  the needs of  work ing mothers.

3 .  Hea l th  even ts :  The  Company  o rgan izes  regu la r  hea l th  checkups  and  sc reen ings  tha t  a re  more  comprehens i ve  than  wha t  
t he  l aws  requ i re ,  t he reby  a l l ow ing  ea r l y  i den t i f i ca t i on  o f  hea l th  p rob lems .  Comp l imen ta ry  hea l th  semina rs ,  phys ique  
managemen t  cou rses ,  h i k i ng  even ts ,  and  massage  se rv i ces  a re  o rgan ized  fo r  emp loyees ’ bene f i t .  A l t hough  the  hea l th  
l ec tu res  were  cance l l ed  due  to  t he  COVID-19  pandemic ,  i n  2021 ,  t he  Company  s t i l l  t ook  ca re  o f  emp loyees  by  a r rang ing  
a  hea l th  check -up  fo r  t hem,  as  requ i red  by  l aw.

4 .  The  Company  comp l i es  w i th  l aws  and  makes  ongo ing  e f fo r t s  t o  p romote  emp loyees ’ sa fe t y  and  hea l th  awareness .  New 
rec ru i t s  a re  sub jec ted  to  sa fe t y  and  hea l th  t ra in ing  upon  commencemen t  o f  du ty,  and  a l l  emp loyees  a re  t ra ined  regu -
la r l y  on  evacua t i on  and  use  o f  f i r e  ex t i ngu i she rs  and  f i r e  hyd ran ts .  P rac t i ca l  CPR/AED t ra in ing  a re  a l so  a r ranged  fo r  
emp loyees ’ sa fe t y.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( IV)  Does the Company have means to communicate wi th employees on a regular  basis ,  
and in form them of  operat ional  changes that  may be of  s ign i f icant  impact?

The  Company  va lues  the  op in ions  o f  i t s  emp loyees  and  p rov ides  a  va r i e t y  o f  channe ls  t o  p romote  commun ica t i on  and  co -
o rd ina t i on  be tween  l abo r  and  cap i ta l .  A qua r te r l y  l abo r -cap i ta l  mee t i ng  i s  he ld  to  exp la in  t he  Company ’s  ope ra t i on  p ro f i l e  
t o  l abo r  rep resen ta t i ves  and  pa r t i c i pa te  i n  d i scuss ions  on  l abo r  cond i t i ons  and  we l fa re  ma t te rs .  Emp loyee  commun ica -
t i on  mee t ings  a re  he ld  qua r te r l y  f o r  d i rec t  and  two -way  i n te rac t i on  and  commun ica t i on .  Impor tan t  i n fo rma t ion  and  recen t  
even ts  a re  announced  th rough  the  i n te rna l  webs i te  (My  V isEra ) .  A channe l  f o r  emp loyee  g r i evances  has  been  es tab l i shed  
and  the  respons ib le  segmen t  and  the  Company ’s  t op  managemen t  w i l l  be  i n fo rmed  based  on  the  na tu re  o f  t he  g r i evanc -
es .  The re  i s  a l so  an  emp loyee  sugges t i on  box  to  a l l ow  emp loyees  to  g i ve  the i r  comments  abou t  wo rk  and  env i ronmen ta l  
i ssues  and  sugges t i ons .  Mu l t i p l e  channe ls  f o r  emp loyee  feedback  a re  ma in ta ined ,  vo i ces  o f  emp loyees  a re  l i s tened  to ,  
and  responses  and  commun ica t i on  a re  made  i n  a  t ime ly  manner  t o  p romote  l abo r -managemen t  ha rmony  and  ach ieve  w in -
w in  fo r  bo th  the  en te rp r i se  and  emp loyees .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on
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(V)  Has the Company compl ied wi th laws and in ternat ional  s tandards wi th respect  to  
issues such as customers ’ heal th ,  safety  and pr ivacy,  market ing,  and label ing that  involve i ts  
products and serv ices,  and implemented consumer and customer protect ion pol ic ies and com-
pla int  procedures?

Not  app l i cab le  as  V i sEra  does  no t  p roduce  the  f i na l  p roduc ts . No t  app l i cab le .

(VI) Has the Company implemented a supplier management pol icy that regulates suppliers’ 
conducts wi th respect  to  envi ronmenta l  protect ion,  occupat ional  safety  and heal th or  work 
r ights /human r ights issues,  and t racked suppl iers ’ per formance on a regular  basis?

Plan t  a f f a i r s ,  qua l i t y  managemen t ,  and  sa les  teams  con t i nue  to  work  w i th  supp l i e rs  on  reso l v ing  va r i ous  i ssues :  
1 .  Res t r i c t i on  o f  Haza rdous  Subs tances :  V i sEra  p romotes  “g reen  pu rchase , ”  an  i n i t i a t i ve  tha t  requ i res  a l l  r aw  ma te r i a l  

supp l i e rs  t o  i ssue  s ta temen ts  assu r ing  tha t  t he i r  p roduc ts  con ta in  no  subs tances  tha t  a re  cons ide red  ha rmfu l  t o  t he  en -
v i ronmen t  o r  a re  banned  i n te rna t i ona l l y.  I n  do ing  so ,  t he  Company  ensu res  tha t  i t s  p roduc ts  comp ly  w i th  RoHS requ i re -
men ts  o f  i t s  cus tomers ,  such  as  those  i n  t he  EU.

2 .  “V i sEra  Supp l i e r  Code  o f  Conduc t “  has  been  c rea ted  based  on  “Respons ib le  Bus iness  A l l i ance  (RBA,  fo rmer l y  known  as  
E ICC)  Code  o f  Conduc t ”  and  “Un i ted  Na t i ons  Gu id ing  P r inc ip les  on  Bus iness  and  Human  R igh ts . ”  I t  r equ i res  supp l i e rs  
t o  con fo rm w i th  va r i ous  requ i remen ts  conce rn ing :  wo rke rs ’  human  r i gh ts ,  t e rms  o f  emp loymen t ,  wo rke rs ’  hea l th ,  occu -
pa t i ona l  sa fe t y  and  hea l th ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on .

3 .  Managemen t  o f  con f l i c t  m ine ra l s :  W i th  rega rds  to  t he  managemen t  o f  con f l i c t  m ine ra l s ,  V i sEra  Techno log ies  requ i res  
a l l  supp l i e rs  t o  p roh ib i t  aga ins t  us ing  “m ine ra l s  sou rced  f rom con f l i c t  r eg ions , ”  and  to  s ign  commi tmen t  t o  non -con f l i c t  
m ine ra l s  as  pe r  reques t  o f  V i sEra .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

V. Does the Company prepare i ts sustainabil i ty report or any report of non-f inancial information 
based on in ternat ional  repor t ing s tandards or  guidel ines? Are the above ment ioned repor ts  suppor ted 
by assurance or  the opin ion of  a  th i rd-par ty  cer t i f ier?

The  Company  has  a lways  been  commi t ted  to  h igh  s tanda rds  o f  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y,  and  s t r i ves  to  f u l f i l l  i t s  du -
t i es  as  a  co rpo ra te  c i t i zen .  The  Company  va lues  sound  emp loyee  re la t i ons ,  supp l i e r  managemen t ,  co rpo ra te  gove rnance ,  
commerc ia l  e th i cs ,  soc ia l  ca re ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on  as  the  founda t i on  fo r  sus ta inab le  g row th .  Be low  a re  the  7  
po l i c i es  tha t  V i sEra  Techno log ies  has  adop ted  towards  fu l f i l l i ng  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t i es :
1 .  Upho ld  i n teg r i t y  and  en fo rce  co rpo ra te  gove rnance .
2 .  Comp ly  w i th  and  ac t  w i th in  t he  con f i nes  o f  l aws ,  and  re f ra in  f rom v io la t i on .
3 .  Avo id  co r rup t i on  and  favo r i t i sm;  re f ra in  f rom b r i be ry  and  exp lo i t i ng  po l i t i ca l  a f f i l i a t i on .
4 .  P rov ide  a  sa t i s f y i ng  work  env i ronmen t ,  i nc lud ing  a t t rac t i ve  compensa t i ons  and  cha l l eng ing  works ,  t ha t  ca te r  f o r  em-

p loyees ’ phys i ca l  and  men ta l  needs .
5 .  Emphas ize  and  ac t i ve l y  reward  i nnova t i on .
6 .  En fo rce  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on  measures  i n  response  to  c l ima te  change .
7 .  Ca re  fo r  t he  l oca l  commun i t y  and  suppor t  educa t i ona l  and  cu l t u ra l  even ts  on  an  ongo ing  bas i s .
Be ing  ye t  t o  be  l i s ted  on  the  TWSE,  the  Company  has  no t  p repa red  a  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y  repo r t .  Neve r the less ,  
t o  f u l f i l l  gove rnmen t  requ i remen ts ,  t he  Company  w i l l  comp i l e  i t s  f i r s t  co rpo ra te  sus ta inab i l i t y  repo r t  t h i s  yea r  i n  acco r -
dance  w i th  t he  G loba l  Repor t i ng  In i t i a t i ves  (GRI )  and ,  as  requ i red  by  l aw,  w i l l  i nv i t e  a  th i rd -pa r t y  ce r t i f i e r  t o  a t tes t  i t s  
repo r t .

Adap ted  to  i n te rna t i ona l  
s tanda rds ;  imp lemen ted  
phase  by  phase .

VI. If the company has established sustainable development principles in accordance with “Sustainable Development 
Best  Pract ice Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx L is ted Companies” ,  p lease descr ibe i ts  current  pract ices and any deviat ions f rom 
those pr inc ip les:  The Company has establ ished a “Responsib le Business Al l iance Management  Handbook”  based on i ts  
current  pract ices,  and takes progress ive steps toward fu l f i l l ing i ts  corporate socia l  responsib i l i t ies.

VI I .  Other  importance in format ion that  fac i l i ta tes the understanding of  how wel l  susta inable development  is  
current ly  being implemented:

Volunteer  serv ices:  The Company has long been cooperat ing wi th local  government  agencies,  schools ,  and non-prof i t  or -
ganizat ions to suppor t  educat ion,  envi ronmenta l  protect ion,  and char i ty.  Through volunteer  serv ice,  we a im to br ing more 
posi t iv i ty  and hope to Taiwan’s soc iety.

Industry-academia col laborat ion:  The Company v iews educat ion as the most  wor thy investment  of  a l l .  Through indus-
t ry-academia col laborat ion,  we equip young students wi th the proper  knowledge to grow and gain employment  oppor tuni -
t ies.  At  VisEra,  we make i t  our  responsib i l i ty  to  nur ture the next  generat ion of  technology ta lents.

VI I I .  Descr ibe the cr i ter ia  under taken by any inst i tu t ion to cer t i fy  the Company’s  CSR repor t :  Not  appl icable.
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Promoted I tems

Execu t i on  p rog ress Dev ia t i ons  f rom Sus ta in -
ab le  Deve lopmen t  Bes t  
P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  
TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Com-
pan ies  and  the  causes  
the re fo r

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

(V)  Has the Company compl ied wi th laws and in ternat ional  s tandards wi th respect  to  
issues such as customers ’ heal th ,  safety  and pr ivacy,  market ing,  and label ing that  involve i ts  
products and serv ices,  and implemented consumer and customer protect ion pol ic ies and com-
pla int  procedures?

Not  app l i cab le  as  V i sEra  does  no t  p roduce  the  f i na l  p roduc ts . No t  app l i cab le .

(VI) Has the Company implemented a supplier management pol icy that regulates suppliers’ 
conducts wi th respect  to  envi ronmenta l  protect ion,  occupat ional  safety  and heal th or  work 
r ights /human r ights issues,  and t racked suppl iers ’ per formance on a regular  basis?

Plan t  a f f a i r s ,  qua l i t y  managemen t ,  and  sa les  teams  con t i nue  to  work  w i th  supp l i e rs  on  reso l v ing  va r i ous  i ssues :  
1 .  Res t r i c t i on  o f  Haza rdous  Subs tances :  V i sEra  p romotes  “g reen  pu rchase , ”  an  i n i t i a t i ve  tha t  requ i res  a l l  r aw  ma te r i a l  

supp l i e rs  t o  i ssue  s ta temen ts  assu r ing  tha t  t he i r  p roduc ts  con ta in  no  subs tances  tha t  a re  cons ide red  ha rmfu l  t o  t he  en -
v i ronmen t  o r  a re  banned  i n te rna t i ona l l y.  I n  do ing  so ,  t he  Company  ensu res  tha t  i t s  p roduc ts  comp ly  w i th  RoHS requ i re -
men ts  o f  i t s  cus tomers ,  such  as  those  i n  t he  EU.

2 .  “V i sEra  Supp l i e r  Code  o f  Conduc t “  has  been  c rea ted  based  on  “Respons ib le  Bus iness  A l l i ance  (RBA,  fo rmer l y  known  as  
E ICC)  Code  o f  Conduc t ”  and  “Un i ted  Na t i ons  Gu id ing  P r inc ip les  on  Bus iness  and  Human  R igh ts . ”  I t  r equ i res  supp l i e rs  
t o  con fo rm w i th  va r i ous  requ i remen ts  conce rn ing :  wo rke rs ’  human  r i gh ts ,  t e rms  o f  emp loymen t ,  wo rke rs ’  hea l th ,  occu -
pa t i ona l  sa fe t y  and  hea l th ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on .

3 .  Managemen t  o f  con f l i c t  m ine ra l s :  W i th  rega rds  to  t he  managemen t  o f  con f l i c t  m ine ra l s ,  V i sEra  Techno log ies  requ i res  
a l l  supp l i e rs  t o  p roh ib i t  aga ins t  us ing  “m ine ra l s  sou rced  f rom con f l i c t  r eg ions , ”  and  to  s ign  commi tmen t  t o  non -con f l i c t  
m ine ra l s  as  pe r  reques t  o f  V i sEra .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

V. Does the Company prepare i ts sustainabil i ty report or any report of non-f inancial information 
based on in ternat ional  repor t ing s tandards or  guidel ines? Are the above ment ioned repor ts  suppor ted 
by assurance or  the opin ion of  a  th i rd-par ty  cer t i f ier?

The  Company  has  a lways  been  commi t ted  to  h igh  s tanda rds  o f  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y,  and  s t r i ves  to  f u l f i l l  i t s  du -
t i es  as  a  co rpo ra te  c i t i zen .  The  Company  va lues  sound  emp loyee  re la t i ons ,  supp l i e r  managemen t ,  co rpo ra te  gove rnance ,  
commerc ia l  e th i cs ,  soc ia l  ca re ,  and  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on  as  the  founda t i on  fo r  sus ta inab le  g row th .  Be low  a re  the  7  
po l i c i es  tha t  V i sEra  Techno log ies  has  adop ted  towards  fu l f i l l i ng  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t i es :
1 .  Upho ld  i n teg r i t y  and  en fo rce  co rpo ra te  gove rnance .
2 .  Comp ly  w i th  and  ac t  w i th in  t he  con f i nes  o f  l aws ,  and  re f ra in  f rom v io la t i on .
3 .  Avo id  co r rup t i on  and  favo r i t i sm;  re f ra in  f rom b r i be ry  and  exp lo i t i ng  po l i t i ca l  a f f i l i a t i on .
4 .  P rov ide  a  sa t i s f y i ng  work  env i ronmen t ,  i nc lud ing  a t t rac t i ve  compensa t i ons  and  cha l l eng ing  works ,  t ha t  ca te r  f o r  em-

p loyees ’ phys i ca l  and  men ta l  needs .
5 .  Emphas ize  and  ac t i ve l y  reward  i nnova t i on .
6 .  En fo rce  env i ronmen ta l  p ro tec t i on  measures  i n  response  to  c l ima te  change .
7 .  Ca re  fo r  t he  l oca l  commun i t y  and  suppor t  educa t i ona l  and  cu l t u ra l  even ts  on  an  ongo ing  bas i s .
Be ing  ye t  t o  be  l i s ted  on  the  TWSE,  the  Company  has  no t  p repa red  a  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y  repo r t .  Neve r the less ,  
t o  f u l f i l l  gove rnmen t  requ i remen ts ,  t he  Company  w i l l  comp i l e  i t s  f i r s t  co rpo ra te  sus ta inab i l i t y  repo r t  t h i s  yea r  i n  acco r -
dance  w i th  t he  G loba l  Repor t i ng  In i t i a t i ves  (GRI )  and ,  as  requ i red  by  l aw,  w i l l  i nv i t e  a  th i rd -pa r t y  ce r t i f i e r  t o  a t tes t  i t s  
repo r t .

Adap ted  to  i n te rna t i ona l  
s tanda rds ;  imp lemen ted  
phase  by  phase .

VI. If the company has established sustainable development principles in accordance with “Sustainable Development 
Best  Pract ice Pr inc ip les for  TWSE/TPEx L is ted Companies” ,  p lease descr ibe i ts  current  pract ices and any deviat ions f rom 
those pr inc ip les:  The Company has establ ished a “Responsib le Business Al l iance Management  Handbook”  based on i ts  
current  pract ices,  and takes progress ive steps toward fu l f i l l ing i ts  corporate socia l  responsib i l i t ies.

VI I .  Other  importance in format ion that  fac i l i ta tes the understanding of  how wel l  susta inable development  is  
current ly  being implemented:

Volunteer  serv ices:  The Company has long been cooperat ing wi th local  government  agencies,  schools ,  and non-prof i t  or -
ganizat ions to suppor t  educat ion,  envi ronmenta l  protect ion,  and char i ty.  Through volunteer  serv ice,  we a im to br ing more 
posi t iv i ty  and hope to Taiwan’s soc iety.

Industry-academia col laborat ion:  The Company v iews educat ion as the most  wor thy investment  of  a l l .  Through indus-
t ry-academia col laborat ion,  we equip young students wi th the proper  knowledge to grow and gain employment  oppor tuni -
t ies.  At  VisEra,  we make i t  our  responsib i l i ty  to  nur ture the next  generat ion of  technology ta lents.

VI I I .  Descr ibe the cr i ter ia  under taken by any inst i tu t ion to cer t i fy  the Company’s  CSR repor t :  Not  appl icable.
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(VII) Enforcement of business integrity, deviation and causes of deviation from Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for 
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies:

Assessmen t

Ac tua l  gove rnance Dev ia t i on  and  causes  o f  
dev ia t i on  f rom E th i ca l  
Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  
Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  
fo r  TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  
Compan ies

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

I .  Es tab l i shmen t  o f  i n teg r i t y  po l i c i es  and  so lu t i ons

( I )  Has  the  Company  es tab l i shed  a  se t  o f  boa rd -app roved  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  po l i cy,  and  s ta ted  i n  i t s  Memorandum o r  
ex te rna l  co r respondence  abou t  t he  po l i ces  and  p rac t i ces  i t  imp lemen ts  to  ma in ta in  bus iness  i n teg r i t y?  A re  the  
Board  o f  D i rec to rs  and  the  sen io r  managemen t  commi t ted  to  f u l f i l l i ng  th i s  commi tmen t?

Based  on  the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  TWSE/GTSM L i s ted  Compan ies ” ,  t he  Company  
has  fo rmu la ted  i t s  own  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ” ,  wh ich  has  been  app roved  by  the  Board  
o f  D i rec to rs .  The  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  and  managemen t  f u l l y  unde rs tand  and  imp lemen t  t hose  p r i nc ip les ;  t hey  have  i nco rpo -
ra ted  those  p r i nc ip les  i n to  the i r  i n te rna l  managemen t  and  ex te rna l  bus iness  ac t i v i t i es .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I )  Has  the  Company  deve loped  sys temat i c  p rac t i ces  fo r  assess ing  i n teg r i t y  r i sks?  Does  the  Company  pe r fo rm regu la r  
ana l yses  and  assessmen ts  on  bus iness  ac t i v i t i es  t ha t  a re  p rone  to  h ighe r  r i sk  o f  d i shones ty,  and  imp lemen t  
p reven t i ons  aga ins t  d i shones t  conduc ts  t ha t  i nc lude  a t  l eas t  t he  measures  men t ioned  i n  Pa rag raph  2 ,  A r t i c l e  7  o f  
“E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Compan ies ”?

The  Company ’s  fo rmu la t i ng  the  “E th i ca l  Corpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ”  and  the  “Code  o f  E th i cs ”  ensu res  
i t s  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t .  The  Company  a l so  regu la r l y  ho lds  educa t i on  and  t ra in ings  on  co rpo ra te  gove rnance  
fo r  d i rec to rs ,  i r r egu la r l y  d i ssemina tes  co rpo ra te  e th i cs ,  spec i f i es  awards  and  d i sc ip l i na ry  ac t i ons  i n  i t s  “Work  Ru les ”  t o  
p reven t  emp loyees ’ conduc t i ng  une th i ca l  conduc t ,  and  imp lemen ts  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t  t h rough  i n te rna l  app rov -
a l  p rocess  and  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Has  the  Company  de f i ned  and  en fo rced  ope ra t i ng  p rocedures ,  behav io ra l  gu ide l i nes ,  pena l t i es ,  and  g r i evance  
sys tems  as  pa r t  o f  i t s  p reven t i ve  measures  aga ins t  d i shones t  conduc ts?  A re  the  above  measures  rev iewed  and  
rev i sed  on  a  regu la r  bas i s?

As  s ta ted  above .  The  Company  a l so  d i ssemina tes  “e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ”  i n te rna l l y ;  I n  add i t i on ,  t he  Company ’s  
i n te rna l  and  ex te rna l  webs i tes  bo th  p rov ide  a  channe l  f o r  wh is t l eb low ing /comp la in t /op in ion  submiss ions ,  wh ich  w i l l  be  
t ransmi t t ed  by  the i r  na tu re  to  t he  ded ica ted  depar tmen t  and  the  Company ’s  h ighes t - l eve l  manager.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I .  En fo rcemen t  o f  bus iness  i n teg r i t y

( I )  Does  the  Company  eva lua te  the  i n teg r i t y  o f  a l l  coun te rpa r t i es  i t  has  bus iness  re la t i onsh ips  w i th?  A re  the re  any  
i n teg r i t y  c l auses  i n  t he  ag reemen ts  i t  s i gns  w i th  bus iness  pa r tne rs?

A l l  o f  t he  Company ’s  t ransac t i on  coun te rpa r t i es  a re  sub jec t  t o  t h i s  supp l i e r  managemen t  mechan ism.  W i th  supp l i e rs  and  
con t rac to rs  a l ready  under  pa r tne rsh ip  w i th  t he  Company,  t he  Company  a l so  regu la r l y  aud i t s  and  assesses  them,  and  
i nc ludes  p rov i s ions  o f  bus iness  e th i cs  i n  t he  con t rac ts  w i th  t hem.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I )  Does  the  Company  have  a  un i t  t ha t  en fo rces  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  d i rec t l y  unde r  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs?  Does  th i s  
un i t  r epo r t  i t s  p rog ress  ( rega rd ing  imp lemen ta t i on  o f  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  po l i cy  and  p reven t i on  aga ins t  d i shones t  
conduc ts )  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  on  a  regu la r  bas i s  (a t  l eas t  once  a  yea r )?

To  fu l f i l l  t he  supe rv i s ion  respons ib i l i t i es  f o r  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ,  i t  i s  imp lemen ted  by  the  Lega l  and  the  HR 
un i t s .  The  head  o f  t he  Lega l  regu la r l y  repo r t s  t he  Company ’s  l ega l  comp l i ance  s ta tus  a t  a  managemen t  mee t i ng .  I n  add i -
t i on ,  i n te rna l  aud i t  pe rsonne l  make  regu la r  repo r t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  on  the  ou tcome o f  aud i t  ac t i v i t i es .  Managers  
o f  t he  Company,  pa r t i cu la r l y  t he  CEO and  CFO,  pe r fo rm du t i es  unde r  t he  supe rv i s ion  o f  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs ,  and  a re  
respons ib le  f o r  ensu r ing  tha t  any  f i nanc ia l  and  accoun t i ng  i n fo rma t ion  d i sc losed  by  V i sEra  Techno log ies  to  t he  au tho r i t y  
and  the  pub l i c  i s  comp le te ,  f a i r,  accu ra te ,  t ime ly,  and  easy - to -unders tand .  I n  2022 ,  t he  Company  c rea ted  the  Corpo ra te  
Gove rnance  Task  Fo rce ,  t he  imp lemen ta t i on  un i t ,  wh i ch  regu la r l y  repo r t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs .
Comp l iance  t ra in ing  i s  one  o f  t he  mos t  impor tan t  e lemen ts  o f  V i sEra ’s  comp l i ance  p lan .  Th rough  regu la r  i n t roduc t i on  o f  
regu la t i on  awareness  and  t ra in ing  cou rses ,  emp loyees  o f  V i sEra  a re  i n fo rmed  on  the  l a tes t  l aws  and  ru les  tha t  a re  mos t  
re levan t  t o  t hem.  Th i s  know ledge  he lps  en fo rce  emp loyees ’ commi tmen t  t o  bus iness  i n teg r i t y.  Each  yea r  eve ry  emp loyees  
rece i ves  a t  l eas t  0 .5  hou r  o f  t r a in ing  cou rses  (e -Lea rn ing )  on  e th i ca l  conduc t  and  l ega l  comp l i ance .  I n  2021 ,  t he  cou rse  
comp le t i on  ra te  was  100% (w i th  a  to ta l  o f  1 ,355  pe rsons ) .  Lega l  comp l i ance  t ra in ings  w i l l  s t i l l  be  p rov ided  i n  2022 .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Does  the  Company  have  any  po l i cy  t ha t  p reven ts  con f l i c t  o f  i n te res t ,  and  channe ls  t ha t  f ac i l i t a te  t he  repo r t  o f  
con f l i c t i ng  i n te res ts?

For  t hose  hav ing  a  pe rsona l  i n te res t  when  i nvo l v ing  i n  ce r ta in  bus iness  ac t i v i t i es ,  t hey  sha l l  r epo r t  t o  t he i r  supe rv i so r  and  
recuse  themse lves  f rom such  ac t i v i t i es  i n  o rde r  t o  p reven t  con f l i c t  o f  i n te res t .  When  any  mo t ion  where  a  d i rec to r ’s  i n te res t  
i n  a t  odds  w i th  t he i r  ob l i ga t i ons  to  t he  Company  i s  cons ide red ,  a l l  d i rec to rs  conce rned  recuse  themse lves  f rom cons ide r -
a t i on  and  vo t i ng  i n  acco rdance  w i th  t he  p r i nc ip le  f o r  avo idance  o f  con f l i c t  o f  i n te res t .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( IV )  Has the Company implemented effect ive account ing pol icy and in ternal  contro l  system to mainta in business in tegr i ty? 
Has  an  i n te rna l  o r  ex te rna l  aud i t  un i t  been  ass igned  to  dev i se  aud i t  p lans  based  on  the  ou tcome o f  i n teg r i t y  r i sk  
assessmen t ,  and  to  aud i t  emp loyees ’ comp l i ance  w i th  va r i ous  p reven t i ons  aga ins t  d i shones t  conduc t?

The  Company ’s  accoun t i ng  sys tem i s  es tab l i shed  aga ins t  ac tua l  bus iness  needs ,  as  we l l  as  the  Secu r i t i es  and  Exchange  
Ac t ,  Company  Ac t ,Bus iness  En t i t y  Accoun t i ng  Ac t ,  Regu la t i ons  Govern ing  the  P repa ra t i on  o f  F inanc ia l  Repor t s  by  Secu -
r i t i es  I ssue rs ,  and  the  FSC-endorsed  In te rna t i ona l  F inanc ia l  Repor t i ng  S tandards ,  I n te rna t i ona l  Accoun t i ng  S tandards ,  
IFR IC  in te rp re ta t i ons ,  and  S IC  i n te rp re ta t i ons .  The  Company ’s  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem i s  es tab l i shed  aga ins t  t he  “Regu-
la t i ons  Govern ing  Es tab l i shmen t  o f  I n te rna l  Con t ro l  Sys tems  by  Pub l i c  Compan ies ” .  Bo th  the  accoun t i ng  sys tem and  the  
i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem a re  we l l  imp lemen ted .  The  aud i t  depa r tmen t  unde r  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  a l so  regu la r l y  aud i t  t he  
comp l i ance  w i th  t he  accoun t i ng  sys tem and  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem,  and  repo r t s  t he  resu l t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

(V )  Does  the  Company  o rgan ize  i n te rna l  o r  ex te rna l  t r a in ing  on  a  regu la r  bas i s  t o  ma in ta in  bus iness  i n teg r i t y?

By  hav ing  emp loyees  a t tend  the  annua l  on l i ne  “Bus iness  In teg r i t y  and  Lega l  Comp l i ance  Annua l  D i ssemina t i on  Semina r ” ,  
t he  Company  makes  them we l l  aware  o f  t he  Company ’s  de te rm ina t i on  to  ach ieve  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ,  bus iness  
e th i ca l  po l i cy,  p reven t i on  p rog rams ,  and  the  consequence  o f  v i o la t i ng  the  po l i cy.  The  Company  a l so  has  an  emp loyee  
comp la in t  channe l  i n  p lace  to  ensu re  commun ica t i on  be tween  the  Company  and  emp loyees ,  so  as  to  c rea te  a  ha rmon ious  
l abo r  re la t i on  and  bu i l d  consensus .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I I .  Wh is t l eb low ing  sys tem No s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I )  Does  the  Company  p rov ide  i ncen t i ves  and  means  fo r  emp loyees  to  repo r t  m isconduc ts?  Does  the  Company  ass ign  
ded ica ted  pe rsonne l  t o  i nves t i ga te  the  repo r ted  m isconduc ts?

The  Company  has  imp lemen ted  the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ” ,  “Code  o f  E th i cs ” ,  and  “Work -
p lace  V io la t i on  P reven t i on  Po l i cy ”  i n te rna l l y.  Emp loyees  and  ou ts ide rs  a re  ab le  to  repo r t  m isconduc t  re la t i ng  to  f i nance ,  
l aws ,  o r  e th i cs  th rough  the  co rpo ra te  webs i te  o r  d i rec t l y  t o  t he  CEO o r  P res iden t .  Emp loyees  have  the  respons ib i l i t y  t o  
repo r t  any  susp i c ion  o f  une th i ca l  p rac t i ce  to  t he  l i ne  manager,  t he  head  o f  human  resou rces ,  o r  t h rough  ava i l ab le  wh is -
t l eb low ing  channe ls .
The  Company  w i l l  de f i n i t e l y  keep  con f i den t i a l  t he  wh is t l e -b lower ’s  i den t i t y  and  the  wh is t l e -b lown  con ten ts ,  and  ac t i ve l y  
ve r i f y  t he  con ten ts  and  hand le  the  case .  Where  a  v io la t i on  i s  deemed ,  t he  v io la to r  w i l l  be  sub jec t  t o  d i sc ip l i na ry  ac t i ons  
based  on  the  ex ten t  o f  v i o la t i on .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I )  Has  the  Company  imp lemen ted  any  s tanda rd  p rocedures  fo r  hand l i ng  repo r ted  m isconduc ts ,  and  subsequen t
 ac t i ons  and  con f i den t i a l i t y  measu res  to  be  under taken  upon  comp le t i on  o f  an  i nves t i ga t i on? No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Has  the  Company  p rov ided  p rope r  wh is t l eb lower  p ro tec t i on? No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

IV.  Enhanced  i n fo rma t ion  d i sc losu re

( I )  Has  the  Company  d i sc losed  i t s  i n teg r i t y  p r i nc ip les  and  p rog ress  on to  i t s  webs i te  and  MOPS? The  Company  has  d i sc losed  on  i t s  webs i te  t he  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ” ,  measu res  taken  
to  rea l i ze  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ,  and  the  s ta tus  o f  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y  imp lemen ta t i on . No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

V.  I f  t he  Company  has  es tab l i shed  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  po l i c i es  i n  acco rdance  w i th  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  
TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Compan ies , ”  p lease  desc r i be  i t s  cu r ren t  p rac t i ces  and  any  dev ia t i ons  f rom the  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les :
The  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ”  and  the  “Code  o f  E th i cs ” .  A l l  emp loyees ,  managers ,  
and  Board  members  mus t  be  ob l i ged  by  such  p r i nc ip les  and  code ,  as  we l l  as  o the r  re levan t  regu la t i ons .  The re  was  no  dev ia t i on  o f  imp lemen ta t i on  
f rom the  con ten ts  o f  such  p r i nc ip les  and  code .

V I .  O the r  i n fo rma t ion  impor tan t  t o  t he  unders tand ing  o f  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t :  As ide  f rom the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  
P r inc ip les ” ,  t he  Company  a l so  c rea tes  o the r  i n te rna l  regu la t i ons ,  such  as  the  Code  o f  E th i cs ,  Co rpo ra te  Gove rnance  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ,  
P rocedures  fo r  t he  P reven t i on  o f  I ns ide r  Trad ing ,  and  Opera t i ng  P rocedures  fo r  Transac t i ons  w i th  Re la ted  Pa r t y,  Spec i f i ed  Company  o r  I ns t i t u -
t i on ,  and  Group  En t i t y.
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Assessmen t

Ac tua l  gove rnance Dev ia t i on  and  causes  o f  
dev ia t i on  f rom E th i ca l  
Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  
Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  
fo r  TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  
Compan ies

Yes No Summary  desc r i p t i on

I .  Es tab l i shmen t  o f  i n teg r i t y  po l i c i es  and  so lu t i ons

( I )  Has  the  Company  es tab l i shed  a  se t  o f  boa rd -app roved  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  po l i cy,  and  s ta ted  i n  i t s  Memorandum o r  
ex te rna l  co r respondence  abou t  t he  po l i ces  and  p rac t i ces  i t  imp lemen ts  to  ma in ta in  bus iness  i n teg r i t y?  A re  the  
Board  o f  D i rec to rs  and  the  sen io r  managemen t  commi t ted  to  f u l f i l l i ng  th i s  commi tmen t?

Based  on  the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  TWSE/GTSM L i s ted  Compan ies ” ,  t he  Company  
has  fo rmu la ted  i t s  own  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ” ,  wh ich  has  been  app roved  by  the  Board  
o f  D i rec to rs .  The  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  and  managemen t  f u l l y  unde rs tand  and  imp lemen t  t hose  p r i nc ip les ;  t hey  have  i nco rpo -
ra ted  those  p r i nc ip les  i n to  the i r  i n te rna l  managemen t  and  ex te rna l  bus iness  ac t i v i t i es .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I )  Has  the  Company  deve loped  sys temat i c  p rac t i ces  fo r  assess ing  i n teg r i t y  r i sks?  Does  the  Company  pe r fo rm regu la r  
ana l yses  and  assessmen ts  on  bus iness  ac t i v i t i es  tha t  a re  p rone  to  h ighe r  r i sk  o f  d i shones ty,  and  imp lemen t  
p reven t i ons  aga ins t  d i shones t  conduc ts  t ha t  i nc lude  a t  l eas t  t he  measures  men t ioned  i n  Pa rag raph  2 ,  A r t i c l e  7  o f  
“E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Compan ies ”?

The  Company ’s  fo rmu la t i ng  the  “E th i ca l  Corpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ”  and  the  “Code  o f  E th i cs ”  ensu res  
i t s  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t .  The  Company  a l so  regu la r l y  ho lds  educa t i on  and  t ra in ings  on  co rpo ra te  gove rnance  
fo r  d i rec to rs ,  i r r egu la r l y  d i ssemina tes  co rpo ra te  e th i cs ,  spec i f i es  awards  and  d i sc ip l i na ry  ac t i ons  i n  i t s  “Work  Ru les ”  t o  
p reven t  emp loyees ’ conduc t i ng  une th i ca l  conduc t ,  and  imp lemen ts  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t  t h rough  i n te rna l  app rov -
a l  p rocess  and  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Has  the  Company  de f i ned  and  en fo rced  ope ra t i ng  p rocedures ,  behav io ra l  gu ide l i nes ,  pena l t i es ,  and  g r i evance  
sys tems  as  pa r t  o f  i t s  p reven t i ve  measures  aga ins t  d i shones t  conduc ts?  A re  the  above  measures  rev iewed  and  
rev i sed  on  a  regu la r  bas i s?

As  s ta ted  above .  The  Company  a l so  d i ssemina tes  “e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ”  i n te rna l l y ;  I n  add i t i on ,  t he  Company ’s  
i n te rna l  and  ex te rna l  webs i tes  bo th  p rov ide  a  channe l  f o r  wh is t l eb low ing /comp la in t /op in ion  submiss ions ,  wh ich  w i l l  be  
t ransmi t t ed  by  the i r  na tu re  to  t he  ded ica ted  depar tmen t  and  the  Company ’s  h ighes t - l eve l  manager.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I .  En fo rcemen t  o f  bus iness  i n teg r i t y

( I )  Does  the  Company  eva lua te  the  i n teg r i t y  o f  a l l  coun te rpa r t i es  i t  has  bus iness  re la t i onsh ips  w i th?  A re  the re  any  
i n teg r i t y  c l auses  i n  t he  ag reemen ts  i t  s i gns  w i th  bus iness  pa r tne rs?

A l l  o f  t he  Company ’s  t ransac t i on  coun te rpa r t i es  a re  sub jec t  t o  t h i s  supp l i e r  managemen t  mechan ism.  W i th  supp l i e rs  and  
con t rac to rs  a l ready  under  pa r tne rsh ip  w i th  t he  Company,  t he  Company  a l so  regu la r l y  aud i t s  and  assesses  them,  and  
i nc ludes  p rov i s ions  o f  bus iness  e th i cs  i n  t he  con t rac ts  w i th  t hem.

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I )  Does  the  Company  have  a  un i t  t ha t  en fo rces  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  d i rec t l y  unde r  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs?  Does  th i s  
un i t  r epo r t  i t s  p rog ress  ( rega rd ing  imp lemen ta t i on  o f  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  po l i cy  and  p reven t i on  aga ins t  d i shones t  
conduc ts )  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  on  a  regu la r  bas i s  (a t  l eas t  once  a  yea r )?

To  fu l f i l l  t he  supe rv i s ion  respons ib i l i t i es  f o r  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ,  i t  i s  imp lemen ted  by  the  Lega l  and  the  HR 
un i t s .  The  head  o f  t he  Lega l  regu la r l y  repo r t s  t he  Company ’s  l ega l  comp l i ance  s ta tus  a t  a  managemen t  mee t i ng .  I n  add i -
t i on ,  i n te rna l  aud i t  pe rsonne l  make  regu la r  repo r t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  on  the  ou tcome o f  aud i t  ac t i v i t i es .  Managers  
o f  t he  Company,  pa r t i cu la r l y  t he  CEO and  CFO,  pe r fo rm du t i es  unde r  t he  supe rv i s ion  o f  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs ,  and  a re  
respons ib le  f o r  ensu r ing  tha t  any  f i nanc ia l  and  accoun t i ng  i n fo rma t ion  d i sc losed  by  V i sEra  Techno log ies  to  t he  au tho r i t y  
and  the  pub l i c  i s  comp le te ,  f a i r,  accu ra te ,  t ime ly,  and  easy - to -unders tand .  I n  2022 ,  t he  Company  c rea ted  the  Corpo ra te  
Gove rnance  Task  Fo rce ,  t he  imp lemen ta t i on  un i t ,  wh i ch  regu la r l y  repo r t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs .
Comp l iance  t ra in ing  i s  one  o f  t he  mos t  impor tan t  e lemen ts  o f  V i sEra ’s  comp l i ance  p lan .  Th rough  regu la r  i n t roduc t i on  o f  
regu la t i on  awareness  and  t ra in ing  cou rses ,  emp loyees  o f  V i sEra  a re  i n fo rmed  on  the  l a tes t  l aws  and  ru les  tha t  a re  mos t  
re levan t  t o  t hem.  Th i s  know ledge  he lps  en fo rce  emp loyees ’ commi tmen t  t o  bus iness  i n teg r i t y.  Each  yea r  eve ry  emp loyees  
rece i ves  a t  l eas t  0 .5  hou r  o f  t r a in ing  cou rses  (e -Lea rn ing )  on  e th i ca l  conduc t  and  l ega l  comp l i ance .  I n  2021 ,  t he  cou rse  
comp le t i on  ra te  was  100% (w i th  a  to ta l  o f  1 ,355  pe rsons ) .  Lega l  comp l i ance  t ra in ings  w i l l  s t i l l  be  p rov ided  i n  2022 .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Does  the  Company  have  any  po l i cy  t ha t  p reven ts  con f l i c t  o f  i n te res t ,  and  channe ls  t ha t  f ac i l i t a te  t he  repo r t  o f  
con f l i c t i ng  i n te res ts?

For  t hose  hav ing  a  pe rsona l  i n te res t  when  i nvo l v ing  i n  ce r ta in  bus iness  ac t i v i t i es ,  t hey  sha l l  r epo r t  t o  t he i r  supe rv i so r  and  
recuse  themse lves  f rom such  ac t i v i t i es  i n  o rde r  t o  p reven t  con f l i c t  o f  i n te res t .  When  any  mo t ion  where  a  d i rec to r ’s  i n te res t  
i n  a t  odds  w i th  t he i r  ob l i ga t i ons  to  t he  Company  i s  cons ide red ,  a l l  d i rec to rs  conce rned  recuse  themse lves  f rom cons ide r -
a t i on  and  vo t i ng  i n  acco rdance  w i th  t he  p r i nc ip le  f o r  avo idance  o f  con f l i c t  o f  i n te res t .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( IV )  Has the Company implemented effect ive account ing pol icy and in ternal  contro l  system to mainta in business in tegr i ty? 
Has  an  i n te rna l  o r  ex te rna l  aud i t  un i t  been  ass igned  to  dev i se  aud i t  p lans  based  on  the  ou tcome o f  i n teg r i t y  r i sk  
assessmen t ,  and  to  aud i t  emp loyees ’ comp l i ance  w i th  va r i ous  p reven t i ons  aga ins t  d i shones t  conduc t?

The  Company ’s  accoun t i ng  sys tem i s  es tab l i shed  aga ins t  ac tua l  bus iness  needs ,  as  we l l  as  the  Secu r i t i es  and  Exchange  
Ac t ,  Company  Ac t ,Bus iness  En t i t y  Accoun t i ng  Ac t ,  Regu la t i ons  Govern ing  the  P repa ra t i on  o f  F inanc ia l  Repor t s  by  Secu -
r i t i es  I ssue rs ,  and  the  FSC-endorsed  In te rna t i ona l  F inanc ia l  Repor t i ng  S tandards ,  I n te rna t i ona l  Accoun t i ng  S tandards ,  
IFR IC  in te rp re ta t i ons ,  and  S IC  i n te rp re ta t i ons .  The  Company ’s  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem i s  es tab l i shed  aga ins t  t he  “Regu-
la t i ons  Govern ing  Es tab l i shmen t  o f  I n te rna l  Con t ro l  Sys tems  by  Pub l i c  Compan ies ” .  Bo th  the  accoun t i ng  sys tem and  the  
i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem a re  we l l  imp lemen ted .  The  aud i t  depa r tmen t  unde r  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs  a l so  regu la r l y  aud i t  t he  
comp l i ance  w i th  t he  accoun t i ng  sys tem and  the  i n te rna l  con t ro l  sys tem,  and  repo r t s  t he  resu l t s  t o  t he  Board  o f  D i rec to rs .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

(V )  Does  the  Company  o rgan ize  i n te rna l  o r  ex te rna l  t r a in ing  on  a  regu la r  bas i s  t o  ma in ta in  bus iness  i n teg r i t y?

By  hav ing  emp loyees  a t tend  the  annua l  on l i ne  “Bus iness  In teg r i t y  and  Lega l  Comp l i ance  Annua l  D i ssemina t i on  Semina r ” ,  
t he  Company  makes  them we l l  aware  o f  t he  Company ’s  de te rm ina t i on  to  ach ieve  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ,  bus iness  
e th i ca l  po l i cy,  p reven t i on  p rog rams ,  and  the  consequence  o f  v i o la t i ng  the  po l i cy.  The  Company  a l so  has  an  emp loyee  
comp la in t  channe l  i n  p lace  to  ensu re  commun ica t i on  be tween  the  Company  and  emp loyees ,  so  as  to  c rea te  a  ha rmon ious  
l abo r  re la t i on  and  bu i l d  consensus .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

I I I .  Wh is t l eb low ing  sys tem No s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I )  Does  the  Company  p rov ide  i ncen t i ves  and  means  fo r  emp loyees  to  repo r t  m isconduc ts?  Does  the  Company  ass ign  
ded ica ted  pe rsonne l  t o  i nves t i ga te  the  repo r ted  m isconduc ts?

The  Company  has  imp lemen ted  the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ” ,  “Code  o f  E th i cs ” ,  and  “Work -
p lace  V io la t i on  P reven t i on  Po l i cy ”  i n te rna l l y.  Emp loyees  and  ou ts ide rs  a re  ab le  to  repo r t  m isconduc t  re la t i ng  to  f i nance ,  
l aws ,  o r  e th i cs  th rough  the  co rpo ra te  webs i te  o r  d i rec t l y  t o  t he  CEO o r  P res iden t .  Emp loyees  have  the  respons ib i l i t y  t o  
repo r t  any  susp i c ion  o f  une th i ca l  p rac t i ce  to  t he  l i ne  manager,  t he  head  o f  human  resou rces ,  o r  t h rough  ava i l ab le  wh is -
t l eb low ing  channe ls .
The  Company  w i l l  de f i n i t e l y  keep  con f i den t i a l  t he  wh is t l e -b lower ’s  i den t i t y  and  the  wh is t l e -b lown  con ten ts ,  and  ac t i ve l y  
ve r i f y  t he  con ten ts  and  hand le  the  case .  Where  a  v io la t i on  i s  deemed ,  t he  v io la to r  w i l l  be  sub jec t  t o  d i sc ip l i na ry  ac t i ons  
based  on  the  ex ten t  o f  v i o la t i on .

No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I )  Has  the  Company  imp lemen ted  any  s tanda rd  p rocedures  fo r  hand l i ng  repo r ted  m isconduc ts ,  and  subsequen t
 ac t i ons  and  con f i den t i a l i t y  measu res  to  be  under taken  upon  comp le t i on  o f  an  i nves t i ga t i on? No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

( I I I )  Has  the  Company  p rov ided  p rope r  wh is t l eb lower  p ro tec t i on? No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

IV.  Enhanced  i n fo rma t ion  d i sc losu re

( I )  Has  the  Company  d i sc losed  i t s  i n teg r i t y  p r i nc ip les  and  p rog ress  on to  i t s  webs i te  and  MOPS? The  Company  has  d i sc losed  on  i t s  webs i te  t he  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ” ,  measu res  taken  
to  rea l i ze  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t ,  and  the  s ta tus  o f  co rpo ra te  soc ia l  r espons ib i l i t y  imp lemen ta t i on . No  s ign i f i can t  dev ia t i on

V.  I f  t he  Company  has  es tab l i shed  bus iness  i n teg r i t y  po l i c i es  i n  acco rdance  w i th  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les  fo r  
TWSE/TPEx  L i s ted  Compan ies , ”  p lease  desc r i be  i t s  cu r ren t  p rac t i ces  and  any  dev ia t i ons  f rom the  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les :
The  Company  has  es tab l i shed  the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ”  and  the  “Code  o f  E th i cs ” .  A l l  emp loyees ,  managers ,  
and  Board  members  mus t  be  ob l i ged  by  such  p r i nc ip les  and  code ,  as  we l l  as  o the r  re levan t  regu la t i ons .  The re  was  no  dev ia t i on  o f  imp lemen ta t i on  
f rom the  con ten ts  o f  such  p r i nc ip les  and  code .

V I .  O the r  i n fo rma t ion  impor tan t  t o  t he  unders tand ing  o f  e th i ca l  co rpo ra te  managemen t :  As ide  f rom the  “E th i ca l  Co rpo ra te  Managemen t  Bes t  P rac t i ce  
P r inc ip les ” ,  t he  Company  a l so  c rea tes  o the r  i n te rna l  regu la t i ons ,  such  as  the  Code  o f  E th i cs ,  Co rpo ra te  Gove rnance  Bes t  P rac t i ce  P r inc ip les ,  
P rocedures  fo r  t he  P reven t i on  o f  I ns ide r  Trad ing ,  and  Opera t i ng  P rocedures  fo r  Transac t i ons  w i th  Re la ted  Pa r t y,  Spec i f i ed  Company  o r  I ns t i t u -
t i on ,  and  Group  En t i t y.
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(VIII) Where a company has established its own corporate governance principles and other regulations, the manner through which they are
available for consultation shall be specified: They are accessible at http://www.viseratech.com, the Company’s dedicated area for 
investors.

(IX) Other information material to the understanding of corporate governance within the Company:

1. The Company has always been supportive of sound corporate governance since it was first founded. It adopts an operational 
strategy that not only conforms with the corporate governance spirit, but supports the Company's business activities and 
maximizes shareholders' interests as well. The Board of Directors consists of members with diverse expertise, including law 
professionals, industry veteran, and finance/investment professionals. The Board of Directors is considered to have functioned 
as intended.

2. The Company implements and executes a robust internal control system. It has self-inspection systems in place to check day-
to-day operations, whereas the Board of Directors and the management conduct regular reviews on self-inspection reports 
submitted by individual departments and audit reports submitted by internal auditors. In doing so, the management ensures 
performance and efficiency of the Company's operations, the accuracy of financial statements prepared, and compliance 
throughout the organization.

3. Continuing education on corporate governance for the Company’s directors in the most recent year and up to the publication 
date of this annual report

4. Continuing education on corporate governance for the Company’s managers (President, Vice Presidents, and accounting, 
financial, and audit supervisors) in the most recent year up to the publication date of this annual report

Posi t ion Name
Date of  cont inu ing 

educat ion
(Month/Day/Year)

Organizer Course t i t le Hours

Chairman Robert  Kuan March 4,  2021

Corporate governance and secur i t ies regulat ions

3

Directors George L iu March 5,  2021 3

Directors Diane Kao March 4,  2021 3

Independent  
Di rector

Laura 
Huang March 4,  2021 3

Independent  
Di rector

Emma 
Chang March 4,  2021 3

Independent  
Di rector

Peng-Heng 
Chang 

March 4 ,  2021 3

October  26,  2021 Use of  AI  and Big Data to Prevent  and Invest igate 
In ternal  Fraud in  Enterpr ise (Par t  1) 3

October  26,  2021 Use of  AI  and Big Data to Prevent  and Invest igate 
In ternal  Fraud in  Enterpr ise (Par t  2) 3

   Taiwan Corporate Governance Associat ion

Posi t ion Name
Date of  cont inu ing 

educat ion
(Month/Day/Year)

Organizer Course t i t le Hours

President S.C.  Hsin March 4,  2021

Corporate governance and secur i t ies regulat ions

3

Vice 
Pres ident Kevin Tsai March 4,  2021 3

Audi t  
Superv isor

Meng-shan 
Wu March 4,  2021 3

Head of  
Corporate 
Governance

Chia-hui  
L in

March 4,  2021 3

September 3,  2021
Corporate Governance Re-evolut ion Semi-
nar- -From CSR, ESG to Nat ional  Act ion Plan on 
Business & Human Rights

7

December 22,  2021
The 17th (2021)  Corporate Governance Summit  
Forum -  Pract ic ing ESG to Implement  Corporate 
Governance and Susta inable Development

6

   Taiwan Corporate Governance Associat ion     Taiwan Technology Law Inst i tu te
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(X) Execution of internal control system

1. Statement of Internal Control System:

VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 
 

Statement of Internal Control System 
 

February 23, 2022 
 

The following statement regarding the Company’s internal control system has been made based on its 2021 self-
assessment: 

1. The Company acknowledges and understands that establishment, implementation, and maintenance of the 
internal control system are the responsibility of the Board of Directors and managers, and that such a system has 
been implemented within the Company. The purpose of this system is to provide reasonable assurance in terms 
of business performance and efficiency (including profitability, performance, asset security etc), reliable, timely, 
and transparent financial reporting, and regulatory compliance. 

2. There are inherent limitations to even the most well-designed internal control system. As such, an effective 
internal control system can only reasonably assure achievement of the three goals mentioned above. Furthermore, 
changes in the environment and circumstances may all affect the effectiveness of the internal control system. 
However, internal control system of the Company features a self-monitoring mechanism that rectifies any 
deficiencies immediately upon discovery. 

3. The Company evaluates the design and execution of its internal control system based on the criteria specified in 
“Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies” (hereinafter referred 
to as “The Governing Principles”) to determine whether existing policies continue to be effective. Assessment 
criteria introduced by “The Governing Principles” consisted of five main elements, each representing a different 
stage of internal control system: 1. Control environment; 2. Risk assessment; 3. Procedural control; 4. 
Information and communication; and 5. Supervision. Each element further encompasses several sub-elements. 
Please refer to “The Governing Principles” for details. 

4. The Company has adopted the above mentioned criteria to validate the effectiveness of its internal control system 
design and execution. 

5. Based on the assessments described above, the Company considers the design and execution of its internal 
control system to be effective at December 31, 2021. This system has provided assurance with regards to the 
Company's business results and target accomplishment, reliability, timeliness and transparency of reported 
financial information, and its compliance with relevant laws. 

6. This declaration constitutes part of the Company's annual report and prospectus, and shall be disclosed to the 
public. Any illegal no misrepresentations or nondisclosures in the public statement above are subject to the legal 
consequences described in Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 

7. This Statement was passed unanimously without objection by all 6 Directors present at the Board meeting dated 
February 23, 2022. 

 
VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 

 
Chairman: Robert Kuan 

 
President: S.C. Hsin 
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2. Independent Auditor’s Review Report:

Internal Control System Statement Review Report 
We have reviewed the accompanying statement provided by VisEra Technologies Company (the 
“Company”) on November 13, 2021 asserting that its internal control system dated September 30, 
2021 with respect to external financial statements and asset security assurance is, after its own 
assessment, effectively designed and implemented. Maintaining an effective internal control system 
and assessing its effectiveness is the responsibility of management. Our job is to express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system and on its internal control system 
statement based on our review. 
We plan and conduct our review against the “Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control 
Systems by Public Companies” as well as the generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of 
China to provide a reasonably assure whether the Company’s internal control system is effective in all 
material respects. Our review also includes understanding the Company’s internal control system, 
assessing the processes adopted by management to assess the effectiveness of the Company’s internal 
control system, testing and assessing the effectiveness of the design and implementation of the internal 
control system, and other auditing procedures that we deem necessary. We believe that our review 
work can provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
Any internal control system has its inherent restrictions, and so the internal control system of the 
Company, as stated above, might be unable to detect all errors or fraud when they exist. In addition, 
future environmental changes may cause lower compliance with the internal control system. As such, 
an internal control system deemed effective in the period may not be effective in the future. 
Based on our opinion, when judging by the criterial for judging the effectiveness of an internal control 
system as set forth in the “Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public 
Companies”, the statement of internal control system of the Company dated September 30, 2021 with 
respect to external financial statements and asset security assurance is designed and implemented in a 
manner that can maintain effectiveness in all material respects, and the statement provided by the 
Company on November 13, 2021 asserting that its internal control system with respect to external 
financial statements and asset security assurance is, after its own assessment, effectively designed and 
implemented is appropriate in all material respects. 
 

Deloitte & Touche   

CPA Shang-Chih Lin  CPA Ming-Yuan Chung 

 
 
 

December 28, 2021 
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(XI) Penalties imposed against the Company for regulatory violation, or penalties against employees for violation of internal control system, 
in the most recent year up until the publication date of annual report that may significantly impact shareholders' interest or security price: 
None.

(XII) Major resolutions passed in shareholders’ meetings and Board of Directors meetings in the most recent year up until the publication 
date of annual report:

1. Major resolutions of the first extraordinary shareholders’ meeting in 2021 dated March 4, 2021.

2. Major resolutions of the annual general meeting dated July 22, 2021

Major  resolut ions Execut ion progress

Tota l  re-e lect ion of  d i rectors
Approved by the Min is t ry  of  Economic Affa i rs  on 
March 17,  2021;  d isc losed on the company website.Passed amendments to  the Company’s  

“Ar t ic les of  Incorporat ion”

Approved removal of restr ict ions on competing 
business involvement  for  new di rectors

Removal  of  rest r ic t ions on compet ing business 
involvement  for  new di rectors approved in  
shareholders ’ meet ing

Approved amendments to  “Procedures for  
the Acquis i t ion or  Disposal  of  Assets”

Announced on the Company’s  websi te ;  mat ters were 
carr ied out  in  accordance wi th the amended proce-
dures.

Approved amendments to  “Procedures for  
Der ivat ive Transact ions”

Approved amendments to  “Endorsement  and 
Guarantee Procedures”

Approved amendments to  “Lending Funds to 
Other  Par t ies Procedures”

Approved amendments to  “Regulat ion 
Govern ing the Elect ion of  Di rectors”

Approved amendments to  “Rules of  
Procedure for  Shareholders Meet ings”

Major  resolut ions Execut ion progress

Adopt ion of  the 2020 business repor t  and 
f inancia l  s tatements.

Completed accord ing to shareholders ’ meet ing 
resolut ion

Adopt ion of  the 2020 earn ings appropr ia t ion 
proposal

Set  the ex-d iv idend date to  be at  August  28,  2021;  a l l  
d iv idends were paid out  on September 15,  2021,  as 
had resolved by the shareholders ’ meet ing.  (a cash 
d iv idend of  NT$1.98654499 was paid to  each share. )
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3. Major Board of Directors resolutions made in 2021 and up until the printed date of this annual report

Date
(Month/Day/Year)

Major  resolut ions are summar ized as fo l lows:

Extraord inary Board of  
Di rectors meet ing dated 
January 26,  2021

1 .  Approved capi ta l  budget  for  acquis i t ion of  machinery and equipment
2 .  Approved to apply  for  regis t rat ion on the Emerging Stock Market  board wi th the 

secur i t ies author i ty
3 .  Approved to fu l ly  issue non-physica l  share cer t i f icates;  author ized the Chairman to 

set  a record date for  such share exchange.
4 .  Approved to host  an ear ly  e lect ion to e lect  a  to ta l  o f  6  d i rectors ( inc luding 3 inde-

pendent  d i rectors)
5 .  Approved to convene the f i rs t  ext raord inary shareholder  meet ing in  2021 and set  

the durat ion and venue for  accept ing independent  d i rector  nominees f rom share-
holders

6 .  Approved to set  up the Audi t  Commit tee and formulate the “Audi t  Commit tee Char-
ter” .

7 .  Approved to set  up the Remunerat ion Commit tee and formulate the “Remunerat ion 
Commit tee Charter” .

8 .  Approved amendments to  Ar t ic les of  Incorporat ion
9 .  Approved to establ ish the “Procedures for  the Acquis i t ion or  Disposal  of  Assets” ,  

“Procedures for  Der ivat ive Transact ions” ,  “Endorsement  and Guarantee Proce-
dures” ,  “Lending Funds to Other  Par t ies Procedures” ,  “Rules of  Procedure for  
Shareholders Meet ings” ,  and “Regulat ion Govern ing the Elect ion of  Di rectors” .

10 .  Approved to amend the “Regulat ions Govern ing Board Meet ings”  and the “Rules 
Govern ing Financia l  and Business Mat ters Between th is  Corporat ion and i ts  Aff i l ia t -
ed Enterpr ises” .

11 .  Approved the establ ishment  of  the “Procedures for  Suspension and Resumpt ion of  
Over- the-Counter  Stock Trading”

12 .  Approved to amend the “ In ternal  Contro l  System” and the “ Implementat ion Rules for  
In ternal  Audi t ing” .

Extraord inary Board of  
Di rectors meet ing dated 
March 4,  2021

1 .  Mr.  Robert  Kuan was e lected as the Company’s  Chairman of  the Board.
2 .  Approved members for  the f i rs t  Remunerat ion Commit tee

Regular  Board of  Di -
rectors meet ing dated 
March 12,  2021

1 .  Approved 2020 business repor t  and f inancia l  s tatements
2 .  Approved 2020 earn ings appropr ia t ion proposal
3 .  Approved a l locat ion of  employee remunerat ion for  2020
4 .  Approved the “ In ternal  Contro l  System Statement”  for  2020
5 .  Convened the 2021 annual  genera l  meet ing
6 .  Approved capi ta l  budget  for  capaci ty  expansion or  acquis i t ion of  machinery
7 .  Approved rout ine capi ta l  budget  for  the second quar ter  of  2021
8 .  Approved the “Regulat ions Govern ing Payment  of  Di rectors ’ Compensat ion,  Remu-

nerat ion,  and Transpor tat ion Fee”
9 .  Approved the overa l l  remunerat ion proposal  for  2021.

10 .  Approved the per formance of  managers and managers concurrent ly  serv ing as a 
d i rector  for  2020 and the salary ra ise of ,  and f ixed amount  of  compensat ion paid to ,  
them for  2021.

11 .  Approved the per formance evaluat ion i tems for  managers and managers concur-
rent ly  serv ing as a d i rector  for  2021.

Regular  Board of  Di rec-
tors meet ing dated June 
22,  2021

1 .  Approved the rent ing of  p lant  and p lant  fac i l i t ies.
2 .  Approved capi ta l  budget  for  acquis i t ion of  machinery and equipment  or  addi t ion of  

product  l ines.
3 .  Approved the change to the convent ion date of  the 2021 annual  genera l  meet ing.
4 .  Author ize the Chairman to set  the record date for  d iv idend payout  for  2020 and 

adjust  the d iv idend payout  rat io .
5 .  Approved to formulate the “Corporate Governance Best  Pract ice Pr inc ip les” ,  “Eth ical  

Corporate Management  Best  Pract ice Pr inc ip les” ,  “Regulat ions Govern ing Per for-
mance Evaluat ion of  Board of  Di rectors” ,  “Operat ing Procedures for  Transact ions 
wi th Related Par ty,  Speci f ied Company or  Inst i tu t ion,  and Group Ent i ty” ,  “Risk Man-
agement  Pol icy and Procedures” .

6 .  Approved to draf t  the “Sel f -assessment  Form for  Preparat ion of  F inancia l  State-
ments” .

7 .  Approved to formulate the “Regulat ions Govern ing Payment  of  Managers ’ Remuner-
at ion” .

8 .  Approved the managers bonus proposal ,  as wel l  as the employee compensat ion 
proposal  for  2020.

9 .  Approved the rent ing of  a  smal l  passenger car.
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(XIII) Documented opinions or declarations made by directors or supervisors against board resolutions in the most recent year, up 
until the publication date of annual report: None.

(XIV) Resignation or dismissal of the Chairman, President, head of accounting, head of finance, chief internal auditor, corporate 
governance officer, or head of R&D in the most recent year up until the publication date of annual report: None.

Date
(Month/Day/Year)

Major  resolut ions are summar ized as fo l lows:

Regular  Board of  Di -
rectors meet ing dated 
August  11,  2021

1 .  Approved the “ In ternal  Contro l  System Statement”  for  the per iod between July  1,  
2020 and June 30,  2021.

2 .  Approved capi ta l  budget  for  expansion of  product  l ines or  acquis i t ion of  machinery.
3 .  Approved the appointment  of  the Head of  Corporate Governance and the f ixed 

amount  of  compensat ion of  2022.
4 .  Approved managers ’ bonus proposal .
5 .  Approved the Company’s  “Assessment  Form of  F inancia l  Statements Preparat ion 

Abi l i ty ” .
6 .  Set a record date for  issuance of  common shares for  employee stock opt ions.

Regular  Board of  Di -
rectors meet ing dated 
November 11,  2021

1 .  Approved to amend the “ In ternal  Contro l  System” and the “ Implementat ion Rules for  
In ternal  Audi t ing” .

2 .  Approved the audi t  p lan for  2022.
3 .  Approved the “ Internal  Contro l  System Statement”  for  the per iod between October 1,  

2020 and September 30,  2021.
4 .  Approved the business p lan for  2022.
5 .  Approved rout ine capi ta l  budget  for  2022.
6 .  Approved the quota on shor t - term bank borrowings and der ivat ives.
7 .  Approved the appl icat ion for  i ts  shares to be l is ted on the TWSE.
8 .  Approved the f inancia l  forecasts for  the four th quar ter  of  2021 and the f i rs t  quar ter  

of  2022.
9 .  Approved commiss ioning a secur i t ies underwr i ter  to  prov ide over-a l lo t  opt ion.

10 .  Approved the proposal  that  an or ig inal  shareholder ’s  pr iv i leged r ight  to  subscr ibe to 
new share issuance may be waived i f  such a shareholder  consents to .

11 .  Convened the f i rs t  Ext raord inary Shareholders ’ Meet ing in  2022.
12 .  Set a record date for  issuance of  common shares for  employee stock opt ions.
13 .  Approved the per formance evaluat ion i tems for  managers of  2022 and the manag-

ers ’ bonus proposal .
14 .  Approved the fee paid to  CPAs for  the i r  a t testat ion serv ices in  2022.

Regular  Board of  Di -
rectors meet ing dated 
February 23,  2021

1 .  Approved the business repor t ,  f inancia l  s tatements,  earn ings d is t r ibut ion proposal  
for  2021.

2 .  Approved amendments to  the Ar t ic les of  Incorporat ion and the “Procedures for  the 
Acquis i t ion or  Disposal  of  Assets”  of  the Company.

3 .  Convened the 2022 annual  genera l  meet ing.
4 .  Changed the convent ion venue of  the f i rs t  Ext raord inary Shareholders ’ Meet ing in  

2022.
5 .  Set a record date for  issuance of  common shares for  employee stock opt ions.
6 .  Approved capi ta l  budget  for  acquis i t ion of  equipment .
7 .  Approved the acquis i t ion of  the r ight -of -use assets for  land.
8 .  Approved the per formance evaluat ion resul ts  of  the Board of  Di rectors of  2021 and 

d i rectors ’ remunerat ion for  2021.
9 .  Approved a l locat ion of  employee remunerat ion for  2021.

10 .  Approved the overa l l  remunerat ion proposal  for  2022.
11 .  Approved the promot ion of  Mr.  J .C.  Hsieh to Vice Pres ident .
12 .  Approved the per formance of  managers for  2021 and the salary ra ise of ,  and f ixed 

amount  of  compensat ion paid to ,  them for  2022.
13 .  Approved the managers ’ bonus proposal  of  the Company.
14 .  Approved the proposal  that  suggests not  to  formulate operat ing procedures for  “su-

perv is ion and moni tor ing of  subsid iar ies” .
15 .  Approved the i tems for  superv is ion and moni tor ing of  subsid iar ies that  wi l l  be add-

ed to the audi t  p lan for  2022.
16 .  Approved the “ In ternal  Contro l  System Statement”  for  2021.
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V. Disclosure of CPA fee

VI. Change of CPA: None.

VII. Any of the Company’s Chairman, President, or any manager involved in financial or accounting 
affairs being employed by the accounting firm or any of its affiliated enterprise within the most 
recent year: None.

VIII. Details of shares transferred or pledged by directors, supervisors, managers, and shareholders 
with more than 10% ownership interest:

(I) Change of shareholding of directors, supervisors, managers, and major shareholders

Unit: NTD thousand(I) Fee information:

(II) Any replacement of accounting firm that resulted in the reduction of audit remuneration paid, as compared to the previous year: None.

(III) Any reduction in audit remuneration by more than 10% compared to the previous year: None.

Unit: shares

Accounting firm Name of CPA Audit period Audit fee Non-audit fee Total Remarks

Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, 
Ming-Yuan Chung

January 1 through 
December 31, 2021 2,527 1,300 3,827

Non-audit fees are mainly 
fees for internal control 
system project review

Posi t ion Name

2021 In 2022 up to February 28,  2022

Increase 
(decrease)  in  
shares held

Increase (decrease)  
in  shares p ledged

Increase 
(decrease)  in  
shares held

Increase (decrease)  
in  shares p ledged

Chairman/Ma-
jor  shareholder

TSMC (39,501,000) - - -

Representat ive:
Robert  Kuan (No te  1 ) 100,000 - - -

Di rector /Major  
shareholder

TSMC (39,501,000) - - -

Representat ive:
George L iu  (No te  1 ) - - - -

TSMC (39,501,000) - - -

Representat ive:
C.S.  Yoo (No te  2 ) - - - -

TSMC (39,501,000) - - -

Representat ive:
Sylv ia  Fang (No te  2 ) - - - -

TSMC (39,501,000) - - -

Representat ive:
Diane Kao (No te  1 ) - - - -

Superv isor
Wendel l  Huang (No te  3 ) - - - -

Morr is  Cheng (No te  3 ) - - - -

Pres ident S.C.  Hsin - - - -
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IX. Relationships characterized as spouse or second-degree relative or closer among top-ten 
shareholders: There was no relationship among the Company's top-10 shareholders that was 
characterized as spouse or second-degree relative or closer.

X. Investments jointly held by the Company, the Company’s directors, supervisors, managers, and 
enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by the Company, and shareholding in aggregate of the 
above parties: None.

(II) Transfer of shares where the counterparty is a related party:

(III) Pledge of shares where the counterparty is a related party: None.

Note 1: Service commenced following the director election held during the extraordinary shareholder's meeting dated March 4, 2021.
Note 2: Mr. C.S. Yoo and Madam Sylvia Fang departed from duty as director representatives on March 4, 2021; change of shareholding reflected information as of the time 

of departure.
Note 3: Mr. Wendell Huang and Mr. Morris Cheng departed from duty as supervisors on March 4, 2021; change of shareholding reflected information as of the time 

elected.
Note 4: Ms. Chia-hui Lin was promoted to the Head of Corporate Governance on August 11, 2021 with the approval of the Board of Directors. Her shareholdings were 

declared from such date.

Posi t ion Name

2021 In 2022 up to February 28,  2022

Increase 
(decrease)  in  
shares held

Increase (decrease)  
in  shares p ledged

Increase 
(decrease)  in  
shares held

Increase (decrease)  
in  shares p ledged

Independent  
Di rector

Laura Huang (No te  1 ) - - - -

Emma Chang (No te  1 ) - - - -

Peng-Heng Chang (Note 1) - - - -

Vice Pres ident

Kevin Tsai - - - -

H.J.  Tsai - - - -

K.P.  L in (28,000) - - -

W.R.  Huang - - - -

J .C.  Hsieh (2,000) - - -

Assis tant  Vice 
Pres ident

C.C.  Chen - - - -

Ben Fun 50,000 - (49,830) -

Head of  Cor-
porate Gover-
nance

Chia-hui  L in - - - -

Name Reason for  
share t ransfer

Transact ion 
date

(Month/
Day/Year)

Counterpar ty

Relationship between 
the counterparty and the 
Company, the Company’s 
director or supervisor, or 
a major shareholder hold-
ing more than 10% of the 
Company’s total shares

Number 
of  shares 

(share)

Transact ion 
pr ice

K.P.  L in Gi f t November 
24,  2021 Yu-pei  Yang Spouse 50,000 Not  

appl icable.
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I. Capital and shares

(I) Source of capital:

1. Source of capital 

Four. Capital Overview

Unit: shares; NTD

Month/
Year

Issued 
pr ice

Author ized capi ta l Paid- in  capi ta l Remarks

Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of  capi ta l
Capi ta l  in-
creased by 

assets other  
than cash

Others

December 
2003 10 81,600,000 816,000,000 20,400,000 204,000,000 In i t ia l  investment

Technology 
share

102,000 
thousand

Note  1

December 
2005 10 81,600,000 816,000,000 70,000,000 700,000,000 Cash issue:  

49,600,000 shares None Note  2

July  2006 10 81,600,000 816,000,000 81,600,000 816,000,000 Cash issue:  
11,600,000 shares None Note  3

November 
2006 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 146,600,000 1,466,000,000

Increased author ized 
capi ta l :  218,400,000 
shares
Cash issue:  
65,000,000 shares

None Note  4

June 
2007 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 272,600,000 2,726,000,000 Cash issue:  

126,000,000 shares None Note  5

July  2007 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 282,409,715 2,824,097,150
Capi ta l izat ion of  em-
ployee prof i t  shar ing:  
9,810,000 shares

None Note  6

August  
2008 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 285,317,988 2,853,179,880

Capi ta l izat ion of  em-
ployee prof i t  shar ing:  
2,908,000 shares

None Note  7

July  2009 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 285,897,696 2,858,976,960
Capi ta l izat ion of  em-
ployee prof i t  shar ing:  
580,000 shares

None Note  8

July  2011 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 287,630,386 2,876,303,860
Capi ta l izat ion of  em-
ployee prof i t  shar ing:  
1,733,000 shares

None Note  9

August  
2012 10 300,000,000 3,000,000,000 291,153,119 2,911,531,190

Capi ta l izat ion of  em-
ployee prof i t  shar ing:  
3,523,000 shares

None Note  10

June 
2020 10 400,000,000 4,000,000,000 291,153,119 2,911,531,190

Increased author ized 
capi ta l :  100,000,000 
shares

None Note  11

Septem-
ber  2021 20 400,000,000 4,000,000,000 293,711,119 2,930,711,190

Issuance of  1,918 
thousand new shares 
for  the exerc ise of  
employee stock op-
t ions

None Note  12

November 
2021

20

400,000,000 4,000,000,000

293,125,119 2,931,251,190
Issuance of  54 thou-
sand new shares for  
the exerc ise of  em-
ployee stock opt ions

None Note  13

18 293,277,119 2,932,771,190

Issuance of  152 
thousand new shares 
for  the exerc ise of  
employee stock op-
t ions
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Note 1: Approved under Letter No. Shou-Zhong-09233022800.
Note 2: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0940035746.
Note 3: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0950019783. 
Note 4: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0950031023.
Note 5: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0960014670. 
Note 6: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0960018082.
Note 7: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0970021565. 
Note 8: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-0980020771.
Note 9: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-1000021018.

Note 10: Approved under Letter No. Yuan-Shang-1010024106.
Note 11: Approved under Letter No. Zhu-Shang-1090017893.
Note 12: Approved under Letter No. Zhu-Shang-1100025817.
Note 13: Approved under Letter No. Zhu-Shang-1100034901.

As of February 28, 2022, the Company’s  total shares outstanding were 293,381,119 
shares, among which 104,000 shares were issued for employees’ exercising their 
employee stock options, which is the reason why such change in share numbers hasn’t 
been filed with the competent authority.

(II) Shareholder structure: 

2. Share categories

3. Information relevant to the aggregate reporting policy: None.

Note: As of February 28, 2022, the Company’s total shares outstanding were 293,381,119 shares, among which 104,000 shares were issued for employees’ exercising 
their employee stock options, which is the reason why such change in share numbers hasn’t been filed with the competent authority.

Note: The book closure date was between February 22, 2022 and March 23, 2022.

February 28, 2022; Unit: shares

February 28, 2022 (Note); Unit: persons; shares; %

Share category
Author ized capi ta l

RemarksOutstanding 
shares Unissued shares Tota l

Registered 
common shares 293,381,119 106,618,881 400,000,000 Shares t raded on the 

Emerging Stock Market

Shareholder  s t ructure

Quant i ty
Government  
inst i tu t ions

Financia l  
inst i tu t ion

Other  jur id ica l  
persons Indiv idual

Fore ign 
inst i tu t ions 

or  fore igners
Tota l

Count
- 4 55 8,799 46 8,904

No.  of  
shares held

- 4,560,000 218,390,550 35,200,341 35,230,228 293,381,119

Shares Rat io
- 1.55 74.44 12.00 12.01 100.00
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(IV) List of major shareholders: shareholders with more than 5% ownership interest or are among the top 10

February 28, 2022 (Note); 
Unit: persons; shares; %

Note: The book closure date was between February 22, 2022 and March 23, 2022.

(III) Diversity of ownership:

Note: The book closure date was between February 22, 2022 and March 23, 2022.

February 28, 2022 (Note); Unit: persons; shares; %

Sharehold ing range Number of  shareholders No.  of  shares held Shares Rat io

1 to 999 4,077 731,915 0.25

1,000 to 5,000 3,935 6,829,815 2.33

5,001 to 10,000 353 2,760,538 0.94

10,001 to 15,000 135 1,692,292 0.58

15,001 to 20,000 95    1 ,744,281 0.59

20,001 to 30,000 100 2,473,968 0.84

30,001 to 40,000 45 1,565,309 0.53

40,001 to 50,000 31 1,406,762 0.48

50,001 to 100,000 67 4,790,308 1.63

100,001 to 200,000 28 4,177,053 1.42

200,001 to 400,000 13 3,342,972 1.14

400,001 to 600,000 14 7,922,045 2.70

600,001 to 800,000 2 1,410,450 0.48

800,001 to 1,000,000 0 0 0.00

1,000,001 and above 9 252,533,411 86.09

Tota l 8,904 293,381,119 100.00

Name of  major  shareholder
Shares

No. of  shares held Shares Rat io

Taiwan Semiconductor  Manufactur ing Co. ,  L td. 213,619,000 72.81

The Banking Department  of  Standard Chartered in  i ts  capaci ty  
as the custodian for  the investment  account  wi th  the Smal l -
amount  Wor ld Fund.

14,864,800 5.07

GIC Pr ivate L imi ted 11,670,000 3.98

The Banking Department of Standard Chartered in i ts capacity as 
the custodian for the investment account with the Fidel i ty funds. 4,165,908 1.42

JP Morgan Chase Bank Taipei Branch in i ts capacity as master 
custodian for Investment account with Fidel i ty Investment Funds. 2,061,237 0.70

Cathay L i fe  Insurance Co. ,  L td. 1,700,000 0.58

Fubon L i fe  Insurance Co. ,  L td. 1,700,000 0.58

Chun-Chi  L in 1,411,548 0.48

Heng-Hao Kuo 1,340,918 0.46

Tai-p ing Wu 783,000 0.27
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(VI) Dividend policy and execution:

(V) Information relating to market price, net worth, earnings, and dividends per share for the last 2 years: Unit: thousand shares; NTD

Note1: The dividend payout ratio was adjusted to NT$1.98 per share due to the issuance of common shares for employees’ exercising their employee stock options on 
August 4, 2021.

Note2: Pending the resolution by the shareholders’ meeting to be held on May 24, 2022.

1. Dividend policy stated in the Company's Articles of Incorporation

A company shall not pay dividends or bonuses, if there is no surplus earnings. When allocating earnings, the Company shall 
first estimate and retain a portion of its earnings for taxation and reimbursement of previous losses. The residual balance plus 
non-net income items is then added to unappropriated earnings in the current year, and the sum of which is subject to a 10% 
provision for statutory reserves, unless the Company has already accumulated statutory reserves to an amount equal to paid-
up capital. Next, provisions for special reserve are to be made according to laws or instructions of the authority.

When allocating earnings, the Company shall allocate no more than 2% of current period profit as director remuneration, and 
no less than 1% of current period profit as employee remuneration. However, profits must first be taken to offset cumulative 
losses if any.

Distribution of employee remuneration is subject to resolution in a board meeting with more than two-thirds of the board 
present, and voted in favor by more than half of all attending directors. This decision shall be reported in shareholders’ 
meeting.

After making mandatory allocations according to the Articles of Incorporation, the residual earnings can be added to 
unappropriated earnings carried from previous years and distributed as shareholder dividends/profit sharing at Board of 
Director's proposal, subject to resolution in a shareholders’ meeting.

The Company may choose to distribute all distributable earnings after taking into account financial, business, and operational 
factors. Dividends from earnings can be paid in cash or in shares. Cash distribution should take precedence, and while 
dividends can be paid in shares, stock dividends should not amount to more than 50% of total dividends. The Company may 
distribute all or part of its capital surplus, subject to compliance with laws and the authority's instructions, in situations where 
the Company has no earning to distribute, or if the amount of earnings is far less than the amount distributed in the previous 
year, or for whatever financial, business, and operational concerns the Company may have. Where distribution is made in 

I tem Year 2020 2021

Market pr ice 
per  share

Highest Unl is ted Unl is ted

Lowest Unl is ted Unl is ted

Average Unl is ted Unl is ted

Net  wor th 
per  share

Before d iv idend 25.01 30.40

Af ter  d iv idend 23.01 28.40 (No te  2 )

Earnings 
per  Share

Weighted average outstanding 
shares ( in  thousands)
(Before adjustment)

291,153 292,028

EPS (before adjustment) 7.18 7.41

EPS (af ter  adjustment) 7.18 7.41

Div idend 
per  share

Cash d iv idends 2.0 (No te  1 ) 2.0 (No te  2 )

Stock 
d iv idends

- - -

- - -

Cumulat ive unpaid d iv idends - -

Analys is  of  
investment  

returns

Pr ice earn ings rat ios Unl is ted Unl is ted

Pr ice- to-d iv idends rat io Unl is ted Unl is ted

Cash d iv idend y ie ld Unl is ted Unl is ted
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1. Percentage and range of employee, directors' and supervisors' remuneration stated in the Articles of Incorporation

When allocating earnings, the Company shall allocate no more than 2% of current period profit as director remuneration, 
and no less than 1% of current period profit as employee remuneration. However, profits must first be taken to offset 
cumulative losses if any.

2. Basis of calculation for employee, directors' and supervisors' remuneration and share-based compensations; and accounting 
treatments for any discrepancies between the amounts estimated and the amounts paid.

The Company estimates employee and directors' remuneration by applying certain percentages to current period profit. 
If the amount estimated is different from the amount paid, the difference will be treated as a change in accounting estimates 
and recognized in the year the payment is made.

3. Remuneration passed by the Board of Directors

(1) Employee, directors' and supervisors' remuneration, in cash or in shares. Disclose the amount, causes and treatment of 
any differences between the amount paid and the amount estimated in the year the expense was recognized

The Company estimated an employee compensation in the amount of NT$433,056 thousand and a directors’ 
remuneration in the amount of NT$2,700 thousand for 2021. On February 23, 2022, the Board of Directors resolved to 
distribute an employee compensation in the amount of NT$433,056 thousand and a directors’ remuneration in the amount of 
NT$2,674 thousand for 2021, all paid in cash.

The employee compensation resolved by the Board of Directors on February 23, 2022 was the same amount as estimated 
on the financial statements for 2021. The difference between the directors remuneration resolved by the Board of Directors 
and that estimated will be adjusted to the profit or loss of 2022.

(2) Amount and percentage of employee remuneration paid in shares, relative to current net income and total employee 
remuneration: None.

4. Remuneration reported in shareholders’ meeting and the outcome

The Company will hold the shareholders meeting on May 24, 2022, at which it will propose to distribute an employee 
compensation in the amount of NT$433,056 thousand and a directors remuneration in the amount of NT$2,674 thousand of 
2021; all will be paid in cash.

5. Actual payment of employee profit sharing and directors' and supervisors' remuneration in the previous year (including the 
number of shares allocated, the sum of cash paid, and the price at which shares were issued), and any differences from the 
figures estimated (explain the amount, the cause, and treatment of such discrepancies)

At the shareholders’ meeting dated July 22, 2021, the Company resolved to distribute an employee compensation in 
the amount of NT$418,109 thousand and a directors remuneration in the amount of NT$0 for 2020, which amounts were in 
agreement with those presented as expenses on the financial statements for 2020.

(IX) Buybac k of company shares: None.

II. Disclosure relating to corporate bonds: None.

III. Preferred shares: None.

(VII) Impacts of proposed stock dividends on the Company’s business performance and earnings per share: Not applicable.

(VIII) Employee, directors' and supervisors' remuneration:

cash, the Board of Directors may resolve and execute the decision according to Article 241 of The Company Act and report 
the decision in a subsequent shareholders’ meeting without seeking shareholders' acknowledgment.

2. Dividends proposed (approved) for the current year

The Company had NT$4,039,620 thousand of earnings available for distribution in 2021; after proposing cash dividends at 
NT$2 per share, the Company was left with unappropriated earnings of NT$3,452,908 thousand at the end of the period. 
This appropriation proposal was passed during the Board of Directors meeting held on February 23, 2022, and will be raised 
for acknowledgment during the annual shareholders’ meeting to be held on May 24, 2022.
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IV. Global depository receipts: None. 

V. Employee warrants:

(I) Employee warrants unexpired and outstanding as at the publication date of annual report, and impacts to shareholders’ equity

February 28, 2022

Type of  Employee Stock Opt ion 2019 Fi rs t  Employee 
Stock Opt ion

2019 Second Employee 
Stock Opt ion

2019 Thi rd Employee 
Stock Opt ion

Effect ive date of  announcement Not  appl icable. Not  appl icable. Not  appl icable.

Issuance date July  1,  2019 December 1,  2019 Apr i l  1 ,  2020

Durat ion 6 years 6 years 6 years

No.  of  un i ts  to  be issued 5,424 uni ts
(1,000 shares/uni t )

72 uni ts
(1,000 shares/uni t )

460 uni ts
(1,000 shares/uni t )

Subscr ibable shares as a 
percentage of  to ta l  
outstanding shares

1.86% 0.02% 0.16%

Exerc ise per iod July  1,  2019 to 
June 30,  2025

December 1,  2019 to 
November 30,  2025

Apr i l  1 ,  2020 to 
March 31,  2026

Method of  del ivery New issuance of  
common shares

New issuance of  
common shares

New issuance of  
common shares

Per iod and percentage (%) of  
exerc ise rest r ic t ion

Af ter  two years:  50%, 
af ter  three years:  75%, 

and af ter  four  years:  
100%

After  two years:  50%, 
af ter  three years:  75%, 

and af ter  four  years:  
100%

After  two years:  50%, 
af ter  three years:  75%, 

and af ter  four  years:  
100%

No. of  shares acqui red through 
exerc ise 2,192,000 shares 36,000 shares -

Amount  of  shares subscr ibed 
through exerc ise NT$43,400,000 NT$648,000 -

For fe i ted shares 282,000 shares 0 shares 88,000 shares

Number of  unexerc ised shares 2,950,000 shares 36,000 shares 372,000 shares

Subscr ip t ion pr ice per  
unexerc ised share NT$18 NT$18 NT$18

Number of  unexerc ised shares 
as a percentage of  to ta l  
outstanding shares (%)

1.01% 0.01% 0.13%

Effect  on shareholders ’ in terests

T h e  O p t i o n s  w e r e  o f -
f e r e d  t o  a t t r a c t  a n d 
r e t a i n  t a l e n t s  f o r  t h e 
C o m p a n y,  a n d  p r o v i d e 
the incentives needed to 
uni te employees toward 
the best interests of the 
C o m p a n y  a n d  s h a r e -
h o l d e r s .  C o n s i d e r i n g 
that unexercised shares 
account  on ly  for  1 .01% 
o f  ou t s tand ing  sha res , 
there should be no ma-
terial di lut ive effect.

T h e  O p t i o n s  w e r e  o f -
f e r e d  t o  a t t r a c t  a n d 
r e t a i n  t a l e n t s  f o r  t h e 
C o m p a n y,  a n d  p r o v i d e 
the incentives needed to 
uni te employees toward 
the best interests of the 
C o m p a n y  a n d  s h a r e -
h o l d e r s .  C o n s i d e r i n g 
that unexercised shares 
account  on ly  fo r  0 .01% 
o f  o u t s t a n d i n g  s h a r e s , 
there should be no ma-
terial di lut ive effect.

T h e  O p t i o n s  w e r e  o f -
fered to at t ract  and re-
tain talents for the Com-
p a n y,  a n d  p r o v i d e  t h e 
i n c e n t i v e s  n e e d e d  t o 
unite employees toward 
the best interests of the 
C o m p a n y  a n d  s h a r e -
h o l d e r s .  C o n s i d e r i n g 
that unexercised shares 
account  only  for  0.13% 
o f  ou ts tand ing  shares , 
there should be no ma-
terial di lut ive effect.
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(II) Names of managers receiving employee stock option, names of employees ranking top ten in terms of exercisable shares, amount 
acquired, and amount exercised

February 28, 2022; Unit: In thousands of shares; In thousands of NTD

Note 1: The exercise price (NT$/Share) as at the publication date of this annual report.

VI. Issuance of new restricted employee shares: None.

VII. New shares issued for merger or acquisition: None.

VIII. Progress on planned use of capital: None.

Pos i t i on  Name
Exer -

c i sab le  
sha res

Exerc isable 
sha res  as  
a  pe rcen t -
age o f  to ta l  
ou ts tand -

ing  sha res

Exerc i sed No t  exe rc i sed

Exercise 
quant i ty

Exercise 
p r i ce
(NTD)

Exercise 
amoun t

Exe rc i se  
quan t i t y  as  
a  pe rcen t -
age o f  to ta l  
ou ts tand -

ing  sha res

Exercise 
quant i ty

Exercise 
p r i ce
(NTD)

(Note 1)

Exercise 
amoun t

Exe rc i se  
quan t i t y  as  
a  pe rcen t -
age o f  to ta l  
outstanding 

sha res

Ch ie f  execu -
t i ve  o f f i ce r

Rober t  
Kuan

1 ,148  
un i t s 0 .39% 205 18 ,  20 3 ,990 0 .07% 943 18 16 ,974 0 .32%

Pres iden t S .C .  Hs in

Vice  
P res iden t

Kev in  Tsa i

H .J .  Tsa i

K .P.  L in

W.R.  
Huang

J .C.  Hs ieh

Ass i s tan t  
V i ce  

P res iden t

Ben  Fun

C.C .  Chen

Head  o f  
Co rpo ra te  

Gove rnance
Ch ia -hu i  

L in

Sen io r  Head  
o f  

Depar tmen t

Tsun -Hu i  
Ch iang

728  un i t s 0 .24% 364 20 7 ,280 0 .12% 364 18 6 ,552 0 .12%

Chien -
Pang  L in

Head  o f  
Depar tmen t

Han-L in  
Wu

Ka i -Wen  
Chen

Ch ing -
Chung  
Chen

Kuo-Hs ing  
Teng

Depu ty  Head  
o f  

Depar tmen t

Shih-L iang 
Ku

Hs in -Sung  
L in

Depu ty  P lan t  
Manager

Ch ia -Ch i  
Chou

Depar tmen t  
Manager

San-Yuan  
Chung

Manager ia l  
Pe rsonne l

Emp loyee
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Five. Operation Overview

I. Business Content

(I) Business Scope

1. The main business contents of the Company

2. Weight of each business

A. Research, design, development, manufacture 
and sale of the following products:

a. Color Filter
b. Image sensing components and modules
c. Light-emitting diode (LED) components and 

modules
d. Packaging and testing related to the above-

mentioned products.

B. Concurrently in the import and export trade 
business related to the Company’s business.

Unit: NTD thousand; %

CC01080 
Manufacture of 
Electronic Parts 

and Components

I501010 
Product 

Designing

F401010
International 

Trade

3. Current Products (Services) Items of the Company:

Year 2020 2021

I tem Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage

Image Sensor 4,226,717 60.85 4,947,328 54.79

Micro-opt ica l  
components 2,602,900 37.47 3,936,619 43.60

Others 116,732 1.68 145,231 1.61

Tota l 6,946,349 100.00 9,029,178 100.00

Product  
type I tem Main products (serv ice)  i tems

Image 
Sensor

Wafer- level  co lor  f i l ter  (CF) and 
micro- lens (ML) technology

Opt ica l  image sensors;  main ly  used in  mobi le  
phones,  automot ive,  survei l lance,  medical ,  
consumer e lect ronics,  e tc .

Micro-
opt ica l  

components

On-chip mul t i - f i lm (OCMF) 
technology

3D sensing components
Mul t i -channel  ambient  l ight  sensors,  prox imi ty  l ight  
sensors

Integrated wafer- level  co lor  f i l ter  
(CF) and mul t i - f i lm technology

Under-d isp lay opt ica l  f inger  pr in t  sensor,  3D 
sensor,  l ight  sensor,  opt ica l  b iometr ic  component .

Others Other  serv ices

Image sensor  engineer ing and test ing serv ice,  
wafer- level  quantum eff ic iency test ing,  wafer- level  
ob l ique inc ident  l ight  measurement  system, opt ica l  
s imulat ion and design,  photomask design serv ice,  
process in tegrat ion and spectra l  convers ion 
eff ic iency analys is .
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4. New Products (Services) Planned for Development

The Company plans to develop the next generation new of products and services

(II) Industry Overview

1. Current Situation and Development of the Industry

(1) Current situation and development of the optical sensor industry

The shipping volume and total output volume of the CMOS Image Sensor (CIS) industry keep surging, thanks to the universal 
presence of smartphones with multiple lens and the development of security monitoring, advanced driver assistance system 
(ADAS), and autonomous vehicles. According to a report of the Tokyo Shoko Research, a Japanese research institute, the 
shipping volume of CIS in the global market reached 7.2 billion pieces, with a total market value of USD18.3 billion in 2020. It 
forecasted the shipping volume in 2021 to further increase by 10%, to 8 billion pieces, with a total market value of USD20.7 
billion, an increase of 12.7% year on year. Below is a summary of the terminal application market:

I tems to be developed Technologies Appl icat ions Market

Color  f i l ter  (CF) and 
micro- lens (ML) 0.6μm pixe l  technology

Image sensors wi th 
advanced p ixe ls  
(108 mi l l ion p ixe ls)

Smartphones

Color  f i l ter  (CF) and 
micro- lens (ML)

0.61μm pixe l  micro- lens 
PDAF

Image sensors wi th 
advanced p ixe ls  and fast  
focus

Smartphones

Color  f i l ter  (CF) and 
micro- lens (ML)

0.56μm pixe l  micro- lens 
PDAF

Image sensors wi th 
advanced p ixe ls  and fast  
focus

Smartphones

Wafer- level  opt ics 
ToF sensing components

Semiconductor  opt ics 
in tegrat ion technology

Next  generat ion ToF 
sensing component

Smartphones,  IoT,  
automot ive,  robot  
vacuums,  industr ia l  
grade products

Wafer- level  opt ics 
Ambient  l ight  sensors

Semiconductor  opt ics 
in tegrat ion technology

New generat ion mul t i -
channel  ambient  l ight  
sensing components

Mobi le  devices,  
wi re less Bluetooth 
headsets,  smart  TVs

Wafer- level  opt ics 
Biosensing components

Semiconductor  opt ics 
in tegrat ion technology

Opt ica l  b iosensing 
component Biotech market

Wafer- level  opt ics 
3D sensing components

Opt ica l  d i f f ract ion 
components

Non- imaging opt ica l  
components Mobi le  devices

Wafer- level  opt ics 
Opt ica l  components

Semiconductor  opt ics 
in tegrat ion technology Metasur face Mobi le  devices,  

AR/VR

Wafer- level  opt ics 
Opt ica l  combiner

Semiconductor  opt ics 
in tegrat ion technology 3D disp lay technology AR/VR
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a. Smartphones market

With the spread of the wave of camera phones, the 
photo technology of mobile phones equipped with CMOS 
image sensor has made rapid progress in just ten years, 
which is comparable to the specifications of single-lens 
reflex cameras. However, due to the pursuit of lightweight 
appearances for smartphones, hardware limitations make 
it difficult to effectively improve the shooting quality by 
simply increasing the resolution. Thus, image sensing 
has started to move in the direction of the development of 
multi cameras. Currently, three lenses have become the 
mainstream equipment for the rear camera of high-end 
models. A handful of mobile phones are developed to have 
four lenses. Beside the addition of lenses, the resolution 
of the lenses is also an area of concern. As evidenced by 
the flagship model launched this year, a resolution above 
64 million pixels has become the mainstream, boosting 
the demands for high-end CISs, thereby multiplying 
the demands for 12-inch wafers. According to a report 
released by the Tokyo Shoko Research, a Japanese 
research institute, the shipping volume of mobile phone 
image sensors reached 5 billion pieces in 2020, and is 
expected to grow by 9.4% in 2021, and will exceed 6.5 
billion pieces in 2025, with an compound annual growth 
rate of 5%.

Although the overall shipping volume of smartphones in 
the global market has reached the plateau period, the use 
of optical components in smartphones will keep increasing, 
as their functions have been continuing advanced 
in addition to the photography function. Such optical 
components may include time-of-flight (ToF) sensors, 
environment light sensors, 3D facial recognition sensing 
components, and under-display fingerprint sensors. All will 
boost the shipping volume and output volume of image 
sensors, evidencing that the smartphone market is the 
bulk application market for the CIS industry.

The trend of full screen display smartphones has 
stimulated the market for under-display fingerprint 
sensors. According to an Omdia research report, global 
shipments of under-display fingerprint sensors reached 
228 million pieces in 2019, and 346 million pieces in 2020, 
an increase of 51.7% year on year. It estimates that 37% 
of smartphones will be equipped with OLED in 2021; 
shipment of OLED will reach 400 million pieces, an annual 
growth rate of 16%, with the total output value of USD1.19 
billion. By 2025, shipments of under-display fingerprint 
sensors are expected to reach 520 million pieces, a 
compound annual growth rate of 7%, and the total output 
value is expected to reach USD1.29 billion, a compound 
annual growth rate of 2%.

b. Automotive sensors market

Apart from demands from the smartphone markets, the 
automotive sensors market is regarded as the next growth 
market. The introduction of advanced driver assistance 

system (ADAS) and autonomous vehicles has boosted the 
demands for CMOS image sensors. Currently, a car has only 
two image sensors on average. With the advanced driver 
assistance system (ADAS) becoming a standard feature of 
a new car, along with other functions such as reverse image 
sensing, blind spot detection, and autonomous emergency 
braking system, the number of sensors in a car will be 
significantly increased to ensure driving safety. The safety 
requirements for a Level 4 or Level 5 autonomous car will 
require 10 plus sensors, signifying a huge potential market in 
the future.

Yole data indicates that shipments of automotive sensors 
accounted for 7% of global GIS market in 2019, ranking third 
in terms of shipments. With the constant penetration of the 
ADAS, TSR also predicts the automotive sensors market to 
be the second largest application market, only second to the 
mobile-phone application market. IC Insights also forecasts 
the market share of the automotive market to rise to 15% in 
2024.

c. Video surveillance market

The various governments’ attaching increased value to 
security engineering and the ever maturer IoT technologies 
give rise to the concept that the application market for 
security engineering may be extended from a smart city to 
a smart home; this turns the security engineering industry 
from the public area to the consumer market. With respect 
to development of a smart city, there is a trend to use image 
data to develop an AI image recognition system that will 
improve urban governance efficiency. For instance, facial or 
number-plate recognition technology that covers 2-4 lanes 
may be applied to smart transportation. The number-plate 
recognition technology may be deployed in the parking lot 
gate of a city. In the case of the COVID-19 pandemic, it has 
accelerated the development of smart image solutions such 
as temperature sensing, face mask detection, and audience 
profiling, which in turn drives the demands for replacing old 
video surveillance cameras with new ones, and for more 
recognition solutions. According to Frost&Sullivan statistics, 
in 2020, shipments and output of image monitoring sensors 
stood at 420 million pieces and USD870 million, respectively, 
and will reach 800 million pieces and USD2.01 billion, 
respectively, in 2025, with the compound annual growth rate 
being 13.75% and 18.23%, thanks to the constant expansion 
of the security surveillance industry in the future.

In addition, products such as smart TVs, smart speakers and 
wearable devices (AR/VR) have begun to focus on image 
and optical sensing features, which are expected to create 
another wave of emerging demand for consumer imaging 
applications.

(2) Correlations among up-, mid-, and downstream of the 
optical sensor industry

Using CIS image sensing modules as an example, the optical 
design manufacturer provides their engineering needs to and 
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Optical designers Optical sensing and component market

(Foundry)
Wafer 

manufacturing Testing Packaging Shipment
Design, development & 

manufacture of wafer-level 
optical component

President Office

(3) End-use electronic products development trends

Regarding the optical component foundry services 
provided by the Company, they can be roughly divided into 
consumer electronics (Consumer), automotive electronic 
products (Automotive), security surveillance products 
(Security) and medical products (Medical).

The consumer electronic products provided by the 
Company mainly comprise image sensors and light 
sensors (such as time-of-flight [ToF] sensors, ambient light 
sensors, 3D sensing elements, and under-display optical 
finger print sensors) that are a must for smartphones, 
tablet computers, notebook computers, wearable devices, 
and so on. Nowadays a mobile phone has image sensors 
that approximate the specification of a single-lens 
reflective camera, and pursues a design of thin, bezel-
less, and full-screen, driving the demand for under-display 
sensors (e.g. cameras, ambient light sensors, and optical 
finger print sensors). Among them, the ambient light 
sensor, which is developing towards the adoption of multi-
channel color light sensing technology, requires higher 
sensitivity and a more compact and micro feature, which 
is also the direction where the Company’s technology 
develops to.

As for image sensors, they require not only having a high-
resolution sophisticated performance, but also maintaining 
a high-definition photographic effect of a smartphone 
even in a low light environment, particularly by means of 
fast auto focus and capture of images using vivid colors. 
As so, the demand for a compact mobile phone body has 
driven up the demand for higher sensitivity to light and 
higher resolution with smaller pixels, the direction where 
the Company’s Color filter (CF) and micro-lens (ML) are 
developed towards.

Because the higher resolution and smaller pixel (<0.8μm) 
technologies required by a image sensor in a mobile 
device can only be provided by Sony, Samsung, and 
OmniVision, the Company is the main supplier of color 
filter (CF) and micro-lens (ML) for fabless IC design 
houses.

VisEra’ s comprehensive optical foundry service

commissions the Company to conduct optical design and 
simulation, which will then be implemented in the circuit 
manufacturing process by a wafer fab. After that, the 
Company will complete the optical structures, e.g. color 
filters and micro-lenses, through corresponding processes. 
Then, the products will be packaged and tested in the later 
stage. For an IDM (such as Sony and Samsung), all the 
processes are completed in-house.

With the diversified applications of CIS chips, an IDM may 
not be able to have a comprehensive coverage in terms of 
application areas and corresponding commercial values. 
Taking the huge business potential into account, the 
amount of fabless IC design houses is therefore growing.

In addition, the manufacturing of CIS chips requires 
special processes. These can be divided into customized 
and standard product processes based on the different 
specifications or the final applications. Currently, more 
than half of the camera modules of high-end models are 
manufactured using customized process, integration of 
process and materials, and spectral conversion efficiency 
analysis. The customized process has more specific 
requirements for the products. In terms of the optical 
design of wafers, the defects during the process and 
the improvement of the process, close collaboration and 
cooperation is needed between the front end and the back 
end of the supply chain.

The Company has many years of experience collaborating 
with upstream professional  wafer foundr ies and 
downstream packaging and testing plants, forming a 
tight supply chain relationship between the upstream and 
downstream of the industry. As a result, the Company’s 
competitiveness in the optical field has increased as well.
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By incorporating the on-chip multi-fi lm technology 
developed by the Company in 2015 into the process 
integration program for color filter (CF) and micro-lens 
(ML), the Company successfully developed optical 
components that fit the industrial trend of miniaturization; 
with such components, the Company assisted customers 
in tapping the markets for ambient light sensors, ToF 
sensors, and bio-sensing components that are embedded 
in a smartphone.

Among the biometric components, the under-display 
optical finger print sensor and 3D sensing component are 
the ones with high market potential.

The markets for under-display fingerprint sensors can be 
examined by type of development technology: optical and 
ultrasonic. The optical technology comprises the micro-
lens technology and the optical lens technology. Currently, 
the optical lens technology is the most cost-effective 
technology, and therefore the primary solution for mid- and 
high-end OLED mobile phones. Emerging under-display 
fingerprint sensing solutions pursue thinness, larger-area, 
and low-cost. Aside from being one of the few optical 
components suppliers on the market who are capable of 
providing a full range of optical finger print recognition 
solutions, the Company is the only leader in the optical 
components industry who can support the optical ultra-thin 
technology (micro-lens) that is required by a 5G mobile 
phone, which communicates via millimeter wave.

The video surveillance market can be viewed from a 
perspective of technology development, which evolves 
from the CCTV surveillance system in the past to 
nowadays’ online surveillance cameras. During the 
evolvement, the complexity of video surveillance system 
gradually steps up, pushing up the requirements for the 
performance of a CMOS image sensor. Such requirements 
for performance include: HDR, images under a low light 
environment, high-definition/ultra-high-definition images, 
and intelligent recognition.

Yet, an automotive sensor needs to meet even more 
stringent requirements than a security surveillance sensor 
does. An automotive sensor must have a high dynamic 
range of 120-140dB, be capable of operating at -40-
105°C, have a good night vision capability, be able to 
recognize traffic lights, and be capable of solving issues 
such as LED Flicker Mitigation (LFM) and artifacts. In 
addition, as the performance of ADAS substantially 
improves, the resolution of an automotive image sensor 
also catches up. In the past, a resolution of 300k could 
meet the requirements of a car’s rear camera; now, the 2 
million resolution becomes a norm. The technology applied 
has shifted to pursue the specification a smartphone has 
that can perform high-end image design. This is expected 
to trigger another wave of competition amid the supply 
chain. The Company obtained ISO automotive certification 
in 2006 and has accumulated considerable experience 
in automotive sensors. The Company is confident in the 
development and manufacturing of automotive sensors for 
the ADAS in the future.

In terms of medical products, the Company used to 

supply medical imaging products (such as endoscopes). In 
recent years, the bio-sensing technology tends to realize 
itself by adopting optical technologies, which identify 
whether a substance exists by examining the wavelength, 
wave intensity, and attenuation curve of the fluorescent 
substances that are labeled in biological reaction. The 
main application is to provide test chips for the market to 
perform chromosomal prenatal examination, cancer carrier 
analysis, protein sequence detection, or rapid screening 
of infectious diseases. The requirements for developing 
precision medicine has turned the bio-sensing technology 
into personalization and decentralization. The market 
urgently needs a manufacturing technology for miniaturized 
optical components. Such technology can miniaturize and 
integrate the optical mechanisms of a bulk optical inspection 
system into a image sensing chip to enable the possibility 
of a portable detection device, improvement in and 
popularization of the efficiency of a single detection, and a 
reference for the medical units to make rapid and convenient 
diagnosis. The Company’s process integration solution for 
color filter (CF) and micro-lens (ML) happens to meet the 
requirements for miniaturization of optical components. 
Its solution focuses the bioluminescence generated in the 
reaction well and then induces such bioluminescence to an 
optical filter, where a sensing chip identifies and decodes the 
signals. In 2019, the Company made an early deployment 
and obtained the certificate of ISO 13485 Medical devices -- 
Quality management systems -- Requirements for regulatory 
purposes. Currently, the Company is jointly developing 
products with customers.

The world in the future will feature an internet of everything, 
which means smart homes, smart wearable devices, smart 
cities, and autonomous vehicles will have their presence 
in our daily lives. This will boost the demands for ToF 
sensors that can create a 3D image, augmented reality (AR) 
products that emphasize interaction between the physical 
world and the virtual world, and CIS sensors that have a 
good night vision and can perform highly dynamic detection. 
With a globally leading on-chip micro-optical components 
manufacturing process, the Company plays an important 
role in critical on-chip optical components and sensors.

(4) Competition in the optical sensor foundry industry

The business model  of  the Company is based on 
professionalism in the field of the color filters, micro-lenses, 
and multi-film (8” and 12”), combined with the advanced 
integrated manufacturing of optical components and testing 
services at the wafer level, to develop foundry services that 
are different from other competitors. The competition of the 
industry can be divided into two categories based on the 
types of the main technologies.

a. Color Filters (CF) and Micro-Lenses (ML)

In the current optical image sensing market, most of the 
optical sensing suppliers are fabless, except for Sony, 
Samsung and SK Hynix which have an IDM production 
model. Since the major application market for optical image 
sensors is the smartphone market, major high-end products 
are developed towards a pixel size that is smaller than 0.7μm, 
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which requires more precise manufacturing process 
control and optical simulation design. The Company’s 
color filter (CF) and micro-lens (ML) technologies are 
capable of producing high-end image sensors that have 
a 10 million plus resolution with a pixel size smaller than 
0.7μm. Currently, the Company is the major supplier for 
the global market.

In 2019, the Company invested in deep ultraviolet (DUV) 
scanners, and synchronized itself with customers’ R&D 
schedule to head towards a pixel size smaller than 0.56μm. 
In 2020, the Company had mass produced products 
having a pixel size of 0.7μm; in the third quarter of 2021, it 
pioneered the mass production of color filters with 0.61μm 
pixel size that have an exclusively designed optical 
structure.

b. Multi-Film Integration

The Company is the main supplier of multi-film integration 
technology (8” and 12”). Different from the multi-film 
technologies that many competitors use for the current 
image sensors, such as blue glass, IR cut filters and IR 
narrow-band filters, The Company’s multi-film technology 
can integrate the interferometric multi-film into the wafer-
level photolithography process. The use of interferometric 
multi-film can provide a customized spectral specification. 
Integrating the multi-film with organic types of color 
filters into the wafer structure via process integration will 
facilitate the development of a thinner product that meets 
the needs of the market.

The Company has a greater competitive advantage 
than the current major competitors in terms of overall 
technologies and process capabilities. At the same time, 
regarding the investment in high-end machines and the 
establishment of production equipment, the Company 
can meet the needs of customers and maintain a good 
cooperative relationship with them.

(III) Technology and R&D Overview

(1) Technical level, research and development

The Company focuses on the foundry production of image 
sensor and wafer-level optical components. We are one 
of the few foundries in the world that can concurrently 
provide color filters, micro-lenses and multi-film, and has 
the ability to integrate technologies for the professional 
foundries of product manufacturing.

A. The technologies and R&D for the image sensor 
product foundry business are described below

a. Regarding the technology of the color filter process, 
the 8-inch production line is mainly used for automotive 
sensors and surveillance cameras. In addition to improving 
pixel processing capabilities, the black filter process has 
been developed and started mass production as well. The 
resolution of automotive sensors and surveillance cameras 

has been enhanced. Customers have successfully entered 
the market with this process. The 12-inch plant continues to 
develop the micron pixel size and high-resolution processes 
to improve the resolution and film speed of color sensors. 
As regards the R&D of miniaturized production process, 
the production process for 0.7μm pixel was launched in the 
middle of 2020; the production process for 0.61μm pixel was 
launched in the second quarter of 2021; and the production 
process for 0.56μm pixel is under development. In terms 
of the R&D to increase the resolution of sensors, the mass 
production of sensors with more than 60 million pixels has 
started in the second quarter of 2020, and the R&D of 
sensors with more than 100 million pixel used for 4K video 
recording is in progress. In the future, the Company will 
continue to develop the small pixel size color filter process 
and serve customers with high yield and high performance of 
the foundry’s quality.

b. Regarding micro-lens technology, in addit ion to 
conventional reflow type micro-lens technology, the Company 
has also introduced etching type micro-lens technology. 
Etching type micro-lens technology will significantly improve 
the spherical accuracy of micro-lenses and the continuity 
between the micro-lenses, enhancing the light-gathering 
effect. Meanwhile, in order to improve the focusing speed of 
sensors, the Company has developed Phase Detection Auto 
Focus (PDAF) technology micro-lenses, which have been 
successfully introduced into the market by customers.

B. The technologies and R&D for the on-chip optical 
components foundry business are described below:

a. In optical finger print sensor technology, the ultra-thin in-
display collimator type optical finger print sensor technology 
developed by the Company has entered mass production. 
The Company is the main supplier on the market with 
the ability to provide such foundry services. This process 
technology has been adopted by major manufacturers 
around the world and shipments continue to hit new highs.

b. As for 3D sensing components, the high-quality coating 
technology has been verified and certified by the world’s 
major manufacturers and has been applied to products of all 
generations. Shipments are maintained at a stable level at 
the moment.

c. In terms of other multi-film products, the newly developed 
multiple channel light sensor coating technology has been 
verified successfully. Trial production has started in the 
second quarter of 2020 and mass production has started in 
2021.

In the future, in addition to continuing to improve color filter 
and multi-film technologies, the R&D of new technologies 
will focus on diffraction components and bio-sensing chips 
in preparation of the next stage of the market. The Company 
will keep developing various optical process technologies to 
enhance the benefits of integration and provide customers 
with excellent optical component foundry services through 
wafer-level semiconductor processes.
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(2) Research and development personnel and their education and work experience Unit: Person

Note: The above-mentioned number of people does not include the direct labor in the R&D segment which does not involve technical skills.

(3) Annual R&D expenses invested within the past five years Unit: NTD thousand; %

Source: Based on audited financial statements.

(4) Technologies or products successfully developed within the last five years

Year 2020 2021 February 28,  2022

Educat ion Number of  people % Number of  people % Number of  people %

Ph.D 13 8 18 9 19 9

Master ’s 133 85 173 85 175 85

Bachelor ’s 10 6 11 5 11 5

Senior high 
school and below 1 1 1 1 1 1

Tota l 157 100 203 100 206 100

I tem   2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

R&D expense 181,621 239,746 346,489 366,794 542,020

Net operating revenues 2,519,211 2,748,420 3,395,724 6,946,349 9,029,178

Rat io to  net  operat ing 
revenues 7.21 8.72 10.20 5.28 6.00

Year Technologies or  products successfu l ly  developed

2017

• Mass  p roduc t ion  o f  3D op t i ca l  sens ing  components  to  imp lement  on-ch ip  mu l t i - f i lm 
(OCMF) technology in  smartphones

•  Mass product ion of  in-d isp lay opt ica l  f inger  pr in t  sensors (OFP)
•  Mass product ion of  12- inch 1.0μm color  f i l ters  and 20 mi l l ion p ixe l  image sensors

2018

• Mass product ion of  u l t ra- th in in-d isp lay opt ica l  f inger  pr in t  sensors (OFP)
•  Mass  p roduc t i on  o f  d i s tance  sens ing  componen ts  t o  imp lemen t  on -ch ip  mu l t i - f i lm 

(OCMF) technology in  smartphones
•  Mass product ion of  12- inch 0.9μm color  f i l ters  and 24 mi l l ion p ixe l  image sensors

2019

• Mass product ion of  12- inch 0.8μm color  f i l ters  and 48 mi l l ion p ixe l  image sensors
•  D e v e l o p m e n t  o f  a m b i e n t  o p t i c a l  s e n s i n g  c o m p o n e n t s  t o  a p p l y  o n - c h i p  m u l t i - f i l m 

(OCMF) technology to smartphones
•  Completed the development  o f  opt ica l  b ioch ips and obta ined the ISO 13485 medica l  

supply  chain cer t i f icat ion

2020

• Mass product ion of  12- inch 0.7μm colors f i l ter  and 64 mi l l ion p ixe l  image sensors
•  Mass  produc t ion  o f  ambien t  op t ica l  sens ing  components  to  app ly  on-ch ip  mul t i - f i lm 

(OCMF) technology to smartphones
•  Mass product ion of  ToF (3D sensor)  products

2021 • P ionee red  the  l aunch  o f  t he  12 - i nch  0 .61μm image  senso rs  w i t h  a  spec ia l l y  op t i -
ca l -s t ructured color  f i l ter
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 (IV) Long-term and Short-term Business Development Plans:

(I) Market Analysis

(1) Areas where the main products (services) are sold (provided)

 Short-term business development plans

Image sensors business

Image sensors for high-end smartphone market: Continue 
to collaborate with major customers to develop 12-inch 
CIS image sensor technology and process capabilities, 
specifically for the market for high-resolution (100 million 
pixels and above) and small pixel size (0.56μm) sensors 
required for high-end smartphones.
Provide a technology platform for smart phones and 
automotive sensors, so as to assist existing customers in 
cross-sector market development, thereby increasing the 
market share.

On-chip multi-film (OCMF) business

Develop the next generation of high-end ultra-thin (collimator) 
type optical finger print market, to consolidate a leading 
position in the market and meet the market specifications for 
5G phones in the future.

Develop customers specialized in ambient light sensor that 
are required for a mobile phone, and develop third-generation 
ambient light sensor products with specific customers.

The Company’s current plant cannot fully satisfy the amounts 
required by customers. In response to robust market 
demand, in 2020, the Company started to build a second 
plant for the production lines of 12-inch wafer-level color 
filters, on-chip multi-film, high-end image sensors, and for the 
development of high-end under-display optical finger print 
sensor technology. It is expected to start production in 2022.

II. Market and Production-Marketing Overview

Unit: NTD thousand; %

 Long-term business development plans

Considering the high pressure due to the cost of investment 
at the initial stage of the new plant, the objectives for 
business development are:

A. Expand and consolidate the existing customer base and 
market base, and increase market share.

B. Continue to develop new products and innovative and 
niche-based technologies to diversify market risks.

C. Conduct R&D to use existing machines for new processes, 
to reduce the investment pressure for high-end production 
capacity.

D. Develop customized processes together with customers, 
to secure the production capacity required by customers in 
the future.

E. Sign cooperation and production capacity guarantee 
contracts with customers, to ensure the production 
capacity required by customers in the future.

F. Develop diversified markets and customer sources so as 
not to be impacted by a single market or by seasons.

Year 2020 2021

I tem Sales % Sales %

Domest ic 1,359,257 19.57 1,252,207 13.87

Export

Asia 79.63 75.71 7,695,926 85.23

Amer ica 0.22 0.44 25,975 0.29

Europe 0.58 0.78 55,070 0.61

Subtota l 80.43 76.93 7,776,971 86.13

Tota l 6,946,349 100.00 9,029,178 100.00
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(2) Market share

Wafer-level color filter and micro-lens market

Image sensors are the main product of the wafer-level 
color filter and micro-lens market, which are used in the 
smartphone, automobile, and surveillance camera. The 
Company’ s image sensor technology mainly provides the 
sensors required in the mobile device, automobile, and 
surveillance camera markets. In particular, mobile devices 
occupy the largest share among them, accounting for 65% of 
the Company’s revenue in 2020. Overall shipments account 
for about 21.5% of the image sensor market, a substantial 
increase compared to the previous year. This is mainly due 
to the growth of high-end image sensors (above 48 million 
pixels) and the contribution from 2 million pixels and 13 
million pixels in the mainstream market.

Currently, VisEra is still a leader in terms of the high-
resolution small-pixel (<0.7μm) technology, and is expected 
to continue to maintain such technological leadership in the 
Fabless foundry market.

Integrated on-chip multi-film market

The Company’s integrated on-chip multi-film technology 
mainly includes in-display optical finger print sensors and 3D 
optical sensing components.

The Company worked with customers to develop the first 
generation under-display optical finger print sensor as early 
as 2016; yet, the market for such a product only emerged 
in 2018. Under-display fingerprint sensors produced using 
the optical technology accounted for 90% of the market, 
excluding those produced using the ultra-sonic technology. 
With its unique integrated optical structure technology, the 
Company is able to assist customers in designing an ultra-
thin optical finger print sensor (<0.5mm), thereby early seizing 
market opportunities. The Company is the exclusive supplier 
of major brands specialized in optical finger print recognition, 
and maintains a leading market share.

The mainstream technologies of 3D optical sensing 
components include: stereo systems, structured light and 
ToF sensors. Because the structured light technology and 
patent layout are held by some specific manufacturers, all 
the mobile phone manufacturers have put their effort into 
the development of ToF sensor technology. The Company is 
one of the suppliers of biometric sensing components. At the 
same time, the Company also continues to collaborate with 
international manufacturers for the development and mass 
production of ToF sensor technology.

 (3) Future supply and demand and growth of the market

It is expected that the number of optical components 
equipped in end-products will increase, which products 
include smartphones, automotive products, and the AR/VR 
products with growth potentials, all are equipped with multiple 
CIS image sensors and optical sensing components (e.g. 
ambient light sensors, ToF sensors, and biometric sensors). 
The market for such products is the one the Company mainly 
engages in.

The three main markets for CIS image sensors are the 
mobile phone market, the automotive market and the video 
surveillance market. According to a report of the Tokyo Shoko 
Research, a Japanese research institute, by 2025, the total 

shipments in the CIS market will reach 9.2 billion pieces, a 
compound annual growth rate of 5%, representing a total 
output value of USD25.2 billion, a compound annual growth 
rate of 7%.

The largest demand for image sensors is mainly driven by 
the increase ratio of smartphones equipped with multiple 
lenses. In addition, the force that propels the demand mainly 
comes from the large-area image sensors that feature high-
resolution and small-pixel. The penetration rate of ADAS has 
also boosted the demand for automotive image sensors.

The demand for equivalent 8-inch wafers, according to a Yole 
report, is expected to reach 8 million pieces in 2024, with a 
compound annual growth rate of 7.5%. In the second half of 
2019, CIS image sensors have been reported to be out of 
stock. Although the market was affected by the COVID-19 
pandemic in 2020 and 2021, now, the demand is still greater 
than the supply.

In response to the high growth ratio of CIS sensors in the 
next five years, the industry has one after another put their 
new 12-inch fab into operation to produce CIS sensors. Yet, 
the critical high-end product lines for color filters (CF) and 
micro-lenses (ML) cannot be replicated and developed within 
a short period of time. With its leading 12-inch on-chip micro-
optics process technology, and its product lines for sub-
micron micro-lens and high-end color filter film, the Company 
has become the preferred cooperative foundry for major 
international customers.

As for integrated on-chip multi-film technology, the main 
market is the biometric sensor, including in-display optical 
finger print sensors and 3D sensing components. Biometric 
sensors are an essential component of 5G smartphones, and 
they are currently in a stage of rapid growth. In-display optical 
finger print sensors currently have an adoption rate in mobile 
phones of about 30%, and it is expected that the adoption 
rate will increase year by year in the future.

With respect to the biometric sensor market, the Company 
targets international customers who have growth potentials 
and continues to work with them. By leveraging i ts 
specialized technologies for on-chip optical multilayer film 
and micro-optical lens, the Company provides customers 
with a customized one-stop service, which not only improves 
the biometric sensing sensitivity of customers’ products but 
also makes the modules thinner. The Company believes that 
it can jointly make progress with customers and deepen the 
cooperation with them amid the surging growth wave in the 
market for biometric sensing that caters both to convenience 
and to safety.

Miniaturized optical sensors, optical components, and optical 
display systems are all core hardware components for the 
AR/VR market that has high growth potential. The objective 
to increase the degree of customers’ immersion experience 
with VR must boost the demand for sensors that can perform 
eyeball tracking, face tracking, gesture tracking, and facial 
expression transmission. The optical system of a pair of AR 
glasses mainly comprise two accessories: The image source 
component and the display. Optical waveguide, which is so 
far the best solution for AR glasses, has the advantages 
of large field of view and large eye movement range. The 
market for AR glasses is the next potential market that the 
Company’s technology development aims at.
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In response to the strong demand for high-end optical 
products from the market and major customers, the plant has 
currently almost reached its full capacity. The new plant is 
expected to be put into production in the second half of 2022.

(4) Competitive niche

A. Optical one-stop service

Different from the foundries focusing solely on production, 
the Company is an optical foundry, providing the design, 
simulation, development, and manufacturing of professional 
wafer-level optical components. The Company provides a 
complete optical one-stop service for customers.

B. Tight and strong upstream and downstream supply chain

The Company has more than ten years of experience 
specializing in the field of optical sensing. We also have 
many years of experience cooperating with upstream 
professional wafer foundries and downstream packaging 
and testing plants, forming a tight supply chain relationship 
between the upstream and downstream of the industry.

C. Close customer relationship and staying on top of industry 
trends

The Company’s partners and target customers are all major 
manufacturers with a leading position in the optical field, 
covering the United States, China, Japan, Europe and 
other places. Therefore, through technical cooperation, we 
can stay ahead of the market, deploy new technologies 
in advance and gain insights into the future trends of the 
market.

D. Provide customized technology and production capacity

Considering the technical features and market requirements 
of the special specifications of high-end sensing products, the 
Company has the ability to provide customers with project-
based, customized production models, and collaborative 
development of  special  opt ical  mater ials,  spectral 
characteristics, and the integration of special processes.

E. Investment in talents and advanced equipment

The Company is willing to invest in R&D technical talents 
and advanced optical equipment, follows up the market’s 
requirements for high-end optical products, and has the 
ability to obtain potential future market opportunities in 
advance, to secure leading technology and manufacturing 
capabilities.

(5) Positive and negative factors for future development and 
the countermeasures

A. Positive factors

a. Huge demand in the end market

Market applications in information, communication, and 
consumer-related products are continuously innovated and 
drive the continuous miniaturization of semiconductor process 
technologies. As for the current largest smartphone market, 
the biggest selling points for mobile phones and wearable 
devices are optical lens, biometrics and 3D applications, 
which will be the leading development trend for the optical 
industry. This is in line with the Company’s direction of 
research and development in optical miniaturization products.

b. Support from long-term partnership with customers and the 
customers leading the technology market.

c. A strong management team, combined with advanced 
process R&D and an outs tand ing bus iness team, 
demonstrating excellent operation performance.

B. Negative factors and countermeasures

a. The Chinese government’s support of the semiconductor 
industry causes the pressure of competition

In recent years, the Chinese government has committed to 
supporting the semiconductor industry, with the objective of 
building an end-to-end industry chain, actively investing in 
equipment, and recruiting talents. Within the context of an 
increase of production capacity from global foundries, the 
geographic location relative to the supply chain may face 
pressure from horizontal competition.

Countermeasures:

The Company will keep developing high-end optical products, 
establish long-term collaborative relationship with customers, 
and make good use of the advantages of the supply chain, 
avoiding the pressure of competition caused by the supply 
chain and Chinese policies.

b. Huge capital expenditure

The financial pressure at the initial stage of investment in a 
new plant.

Countermeasures:

1 Paid with own capital derived from stable operational 
growth.

2 To be listed on the TWSE to diverse the funding 
channels.

3 Considering the long-term development, the Company 
maintains a good long-term relationship with the bank 
group to provide funds to support future growth in 
business.

c. Lack of control of critical materials

Some of the critical optical materials are in the hands of a few 
major manufacturers.

Countermeasures:

The Company will collaborate with suppliers to develop the 
optical material market, create a collaborative relationship for 
a long-term supply and develop a second supplier to prevent 
plagiarism by other competitors.

d. The market of consumer electronics is easily affected by 
economic volatility

Miniaturized optical components are mostly used in consumer 
electronics, and tend to be affected by the international 
situation, trade strategies and market volatility.

Countermeasures:

A business model of diversified products has been adopted, 
obtaining ISO certification for automobiles and medical care. 
A market with a stable supply has been established, reducing 
the impact on consumer products by market volatility.
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(1) Important uses of products produced through foundry services

A. For image sensor related foundry services, the important uses of the main products are described below

The three main markets of image sensors (CIS, CMOS image sensors) are the applications in mobile devices, automotive 
and surveillance cameras. In terms of image sensors for mobile devices, with consumers’ high expectations for the shooting 
performance of smartphone cameras in recent years, the number of camera modules and the pixels used in smartphones have 
also increased rapidly. Thus, the suppliers of camera modules have also raised their standards for the production process 
capability of the sensors and stability of mass production. On the other hand, with the rapid development of autonomous cars 
and increasing security demands, the requirements for performance, specifications and supply stability of automotive electronics 
and image sensors used in security surveillance cameras have gradually risen. Automotive image sensors specifically emphasize 
sensing abilities in extreme environments, such as the glare of opposite cars’ headlights, night vision, and low illuminance on 
rainy days. Therefore, the process capability requirements of sensors used in automotive electronics and surveillance cameras 
are different from the performance requirements of smartphone camera modules. After years of investment in R&D, the Company 
is able to perform mass production using relevant production processes, and so has become the foundry partner designated by 
international brands.

B. For the wafer-level optical components related foundry services, the important uses of the main products are described below

Wafer-level optical components are mainly used in mobile devices to provide a user experience that is more convenience and 
secured. For example, under-display optical finger print sensors and 3D biometric modules offer quick unlock features and assure 
the security of payment information; ToF sensors and color ambient light sensors offer screen color and power management 
functions on mobile devices, improving power efficiency and comfort when using mobile devices. The Company’s wafer-level 
optical component products have been adopted by light sensor suppliers. With the development of various technologies, they are 
gradually expanding the scope of customers’ applications.

(2) Production processes of the main products

In terms of production processes within the supply chain, an image sensor first goes to a fab at the up-stream to have its 
electronic circuits completed; it then goes to the Company to undergo various processes, such as on-chip micro-lens, color filter, 
or multi-film; and finally it goes to the downstream fab for packaging and testing and is deemed as a product. The Company’s 
clean rooms and each process (e.g. photoresists coating, exposure, development, etching, and coating) satisfy the international 
requirements for a wafer-level optical fab.

(II) Important uses and production processes of main products

(III) Supply situation of main materials

The Company’s main raw materials are photoresist, developer, photoresist remover, chemicals, and gases. The main suppliers 
of the Company are vendors with long-term cooperation, and both parties maintain good and stable collaborative relationships. 
To disperse the problem of concentration of supply, the Company maintains sources of supplies from two or more production 
bases to ensure the stability of supplies.

(IV) Customers accounting for 10% or more of the total purchases (sales) in either of the two most recent fiscal years, and their purchase 
(sale) amount and percentage:

1. Suppliers accounting for 10% or more of the total purchases in either of the two most recent fiscal years Unit: NTD thousand

Explanation of the changes: The purchase volume increased mainly due to the Company’s business growth and the increase in production and sales. Also, the purchase prices 
of some raw materials increased due to market factors.

I tem Suppl ier  name

2020 2021

Amount
Percentage of  the 
tota l  net  purchas-
es of  the year  (%)

Relat ion to 
the issuer Amount

Percentage of  the 
tota l  net  purchases 
of  the year  (%)

Relat ion to 
the issuer

1 Company A 431,115 42.00 None 434,104  33.06 None

2 Company B 85,077  8.29 None 136,114  10.36 None

Others 510,326 49.71 742,941 56.58

Net purchases 1,026,518 100.00 1,313,159 100.00
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2. Customers accounting for 10% or more of the total sales in either of the two most recent fiscal years Unit: NTD thousand

Unit: equivalent 8 inch wafer thousand pieces, NTD thousand

Unit: equivalent 8 inch wafer thousand pieces, NTD thousand

Explanation of the changes: The Company maintains a stable, collaborative relationship with its major sales customers. At the same time, new products developed by the 
Company are successively put into mass production, which drives the shipment performance, the growth of sales, and the increase of revenue.

Note: Other refers to the income from engineering products and testing services.
Change analysis: The sales volume increased mainly due to constantly growing market demands.

(V) The production volume for the two most recent fiscal years:

(VI) The volume of units sold in the two most recent fiscal years:

Note: Other refers to the income from engineering products and testing services.
Change analysis:
(1) Capacity increased due to expansion of product lines.
(2) Volume and value both increased, owning to consistently increasing market demands.

I tem Name

2020 2021

Amount
Percentage of  the 
tota l  net  sa les of  

the year  (%)

Relat ion to 
the issuer Amount

Percentage of  the 
tota l  net  sa les of  

the year  (%)

Relat ion to 
the issuer

1 Customer A 3,050,156 43.91 None 3,187,407 35.30 None

2 Customer C 25,392 0.37 None 2,508,073 27.78 None

3 Xintec 898,937 12.94 Other  
re lated par ty 750,808 8.32 Other  

re lated par ty

4 Customer B 1,511,497 21.76 None 506,179 5.61 None

Others 1,485,759 21.39 - 2,076,711 22.99 -

Tota l 6,946,349 100.00 - 9,029,178 100.00 -

Product ion 
value 2020 2021

Main merchandise
(or  by segment)

Product ion 
capaci ty

Product ion 
volume

Product ion 
value

Product ion 
capaci ty

Product ion 
volume

Product ion 
value

Image Sensor 1,301 1,231 2,338,067 1,662 1,390 2,953,010

Micro-opt ica l  components 517 343 1,414,258 599 297 2,400,418

Other  (Note) - - 83,126 - - 106,778

Tota l 1,818 1,574 3,835,451 2,261 1,687 5,460,206

Product ion
value 2020 2021

Domest ic Expor t Domest ic Expor t

Main merchandise
(or  by segment) Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value

Image Sensor 103 291,552 1,128 3,935,165 116 334,819 1,274 4,612,509

Micro-opt ica l  
components  144 1,030,806 199 1,572,094 138 883,975 159 3,052,644

Other  (Note) - 36,899 - 79,833 - 33,413 - 111,818

Tota l 247 1,359,257 1,327 5,587,092 254 1,252,207 1,433 7,776,971
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III. The number of employees employed:

The data of employees employed for the two most recent fiscal years and up to the date of publication of the annual report

IV. Disbursements for environmental protection:

Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report printed date due to environmental 
pollution incidents (including any compensation paid and any violations of environmental protection laws or regulations found in 
environmental inspection, specifying the disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the 
content of the dispositions), and disclose an estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and 
measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall 
be provided:

The Company has always strictly observed the environmental protection laws and regulations and has the continuous reduction of 
pollution and emissions as the objective of environmental protection work in the plants. In the most recent fiscal years and up to the 
annual report printed date, the Company has suffered no loss resulting from penalties imposed by the relevant authorities for any 
environmental pollution incidents, and no pollution dispute has occurred.

Nevertheless, the Environmental Protection Bureau of Hsinchu City came to the Company on September 30, 2021 to perform an 
audit, during which it found that the Company had failed to file the operating record of “fluorine”, a toxic chemicals, for April 2021 
with the competent authority before the specified deadline on May 10, 2021. Despite that the Company became aware of such 
failure on May 12, 2021 and voluntarily submitted the records to the Environmental Protection Bureau of Hsinchu City for filing 
purpose, the Environmental Protection Bureau of Hsinchu City still deemed such a submission as a late filing. On December 17, 
2021, it sent the Company the official letter (Letter No. Fu-Shou-Huan-Zong-1100188893 [Administrative Penalty Letter No.: 34-110-
120001]) stating therein that the Company had violated Paragraph 2, Article 9 of the “Toxic and Concerned Chemical Substances 
Control Act” and Paragraph 1, Article 4 of the Regulations Governing the Operating Records and Discharge Records of Toxic and 
Concerned Chemical Substances, and therefore was fined NTD60,000 and obliged to attend 2 hours of environmental protection 
lectures. The Company has paid the fine and attended the lectures. To avoid recurrence of late filing, the Company has established 
its filing management system to enhance the management mechanism.

I tem Year 2020 2021 February 28,  2022

Number of  
employees

Direct  labor 516 556 550

Indi rect  labor 717 824 837

Tota l 1,233 1,380 1,387

Average age (year) 35.9 35.1 35.3

Average years of  serv ice (years) 6.6 5.2 5.3

Educat ion 
level  ra t io

(%)

Ph.D 1 2 2

Master ’s 40 42 42

Bachelor ’s 45 43 43

Senior  h igh school 14 13 13

Senior  h igh school  and below 0 0 0

V. Labor relations

(I) The Company’s employee welfare plans, continuing education, training, retirement systems, and the status of their implementation, and 
the status of labor agreements and measures for preserving employees’ rights and interests:

1. List any employee welfare plans, continuing education, training, retirement systems, and the status of their implementation, 
and the status of labor agreements and measures for preserving employees’ rights and interests
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(1) Employee welfare plans

The Company is committed to maintaining a high 
standard of corporate social responsibility. It believes 
that the maintenance of good labor relations is the 
cornerstone of the Company’s sustainable development 
and promotes the following employee welfare measures

1 Labor Insurance and National Health Insurance: 
All employees of the company participate in Labor 
Insurance and National Health Insurance.

2 Group Insurance: In addition to the employees 
themselves, their spouses, children and parents 
will also be covered, so that colleagues and their 
families can be protected.

3 Employee welfare: The Company appropriates 
welfare funds as per the “Employee Welfare Fund 
Act”, and organizes an employee welfare committee 
to handle employee welfare matters. In addition to 
providing employees with various welfare measures 
and cash gifts for annual festivals, company trips, 
family days, year-end parties and other activities 
will be organized as well to maintain the friendship 
among employees, enhance the internal cohesion 
within the organization, and improve the morale at 
work.

4 Employee health promotion: Various employee 
physical examinations and annual health check-
ups are provided which are better than the 
statutory requirements, and appropriate health 
promotion programs are planned as needed. A 
health center and breastfeeding rooms have been 
set up, dedicated nursing personnel are hired, and 
physicians are regularly arranged for to visit the 
plant to provide health consultations. Professional 
psychological counselors are engaged to take 
care of the mental health of employees. Health 
promotion courses are organized irregularly, such 
as the body-mind courses, e.g. stress relief courses 
or weight loss courses. Blood donation activities 
are arranged, both to accelerate metabolism and to 
do charity.

5 Group meals: The Company has an restaurant and 
a coffee bar for employees, where buffet, fast food, 
and wheat food are offered. Lunch, dinner, and 
late-night supper are subsidized. Taiwanese food 
available on the island, as well as exotic cuisines, 
are provided, both to create a diversified diet, 
and to meet the diet needs of employees, both of 
Taiwanese nationals and of foreign nationals.

6 Bonus system: The Company issues bonuses 
based on operating conditions.

7 Club activities: In order to encourage employees 
to engage in proper leisure activities, various clubs 
are organized by employees, and the Employee 
Welfare Committee provides budget subsidies.

(2) Continuing education and training

The Company pays attention to the self-cultivation of the 
employees and plans diversified training programs to 
meet the needs of organizational development. Through 
a systematic training roadmap, it is expected that each 
employee can realize their potential and improve their 

work performance in an environment that is appropriate 
to their talents, so as to achieve the win-win objective 
of business development and personal growth. An 
eLearning platform has been introduced so that the 
employees can carry out learning activities effectively. 
Training categories include: 

1 New employee orientation: The content includes 
the company profile, environmental safety and 
health regulations, quality policies, personal data 
protection, regulatory compliance, and other 
general education.

2 On-the-job training: Buddies are assigned to each 
new employee to shorten the adaptation period. 
Through the planning of OJT courses, engineering 
skills and experiences of various segments are 
passed on. Technical talent is developed through 
learning at work to ensure product quality.

3 IDP indiv idual  t ra in ing roadmap planning: 
Differentiated courses are planned according to 
ranks to improve the working skills and expertise of 
individuals.

4 Professional certificate/license training: Specific 
training for personnel qualifications is conducted 
according to laws and regulations and work 
requirements, and regularly assessed and certified 
to improve the quality of products.

5 Direct labor training: The knowledge, technologies, 
and methods required for their work are taught to 
the production and technical personnel so that they 
can obtain the certification to operate equipment.

6 Management functions training: Management 
development training activities are planned in 
accordance with management skill and function 
requirements of supervisors at all levels.

(3) Retirement system and the status of its implementation
The Company has establ ished the “Supervisory 
Committee of Labor Retirement Reserve” in accordance 
with labor laws and regulations. For the employees to 
whom the old labor retirement system applies, the “Labor 
Retirement Reserve” will be appropriated regularly and 
deposited in a special account at the Bank of Taiwan in 
the name of the committee. The committee is responsible 
for managing, supervising, and reviewing matters related 
to the retirement reserve.

For employees to whom the new labor retirement system 
applies, six percent of the employee’s monthly salary 
shall be appropriated to their Individual Labor Pension 
Account of the Bureau of Labor Insurance as per the 
“Labor Pension Act”.

(4) The status of labor-capital agreements and measures 
for preserving employees’ rights and interests

The Company values the opinions of its employees and 
provides a variety of channels to promote communication 
and coordination between labor and capital. A quarterly 
labor-capital meeting is held to explain the Company’s 
operation profile to labor representatives and participate 
in discussions on labor conditions and welfare matters. 
Employee communication meetings are held quarterly 
for direct and two-way interaction and communication. 
Important information and recent events are announced 
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VI. Information and communication security management:

(I) Describe the management framework, policy, concrete management projects, and invested resources in relation to information and 
communication security management.

(1) In order to maintain its competitiveness, mitigate the risk of operation interruption, ensure that the information system is 
confidential, comprehensive, and accessible, and enhance employees’ awareness of information security, the Company has 
established the “Information Security Management Committee” to implement works related to information security management.

Organizational chart:

(2) Information security policy:
• Establish and implement an information security management system
• Comply with the information security requirements stipulated in regulations or contracts
• Assess risks; set goals and control measures to continuously improve information security
• Disseminate information security requirements to employees and related groups

(3) Information security risk management:
• The Company assigns a dedicated information and communication security management and a dedicated information 

security personnel to promote, coordinate, monitor, and review all matters involving information security, to establish an 
organization responsible for information security incidence reporting and emergency response, to identify information 
security risks, and to implement improvement measures to mitigate information security risks.

• In 2011, the Company established internal regulations for information security management pursuant to ISO/IEC 27001 
– Information technology — Security techniques — Information security management systems — Requirements, against 
which the Company was audited and qualified by the third party and will be re-audited every year.

• Information security protection measures are implemented at the demilitarized zone (DMZ) server (i.e. the server open to 
outsiders), office, data center, product lines, and cloud service center, and improved. KPIs for relevant control measures 
and a daily monitoring mechanism are established.

• The Company participates in information security sharing organization to obtain information security alert, threat, and 
vulnerability.

• The Company regularly holds information security trainings and a phishing drill to improve the information security 
awareness.

(II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report publication date due to significant 
cyber security incidents, the possible impacts therefrom, and measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, 
an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided: None.

through the internal website (My VisEra). A channel for employee grievances has been established and the responsible segment 
and the Company’s top management will be informed based on the nature of the grievances. There is also provide a channel for 
whistleblowing/complaint/opinion submissions to allow employees to give their comments about work and environmental issues 
and suggestions. Multiple channels for employee feedback are maintained, voices of employees are listened to, and responses 
and communication are made in a timely manner to promote labor-management harmony and achieve win-win for both the 
enterprise and employees.

(II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal years and up to the annual report publication date due to labor disputes 
(including any violations of the Labor Standards Act found in labor inspection, specifying the disposition dates, disposition reference 
numbers, the articles of law violated, the substance of the legal violations, and the content of the dispositions), and disclose an estimate 
of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate 
cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided: None.
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VII. Important contracts:

Nature of 
the 
contract

Contract ing 
par t ies

Commencement  dates and expi rat ion dates 
of  the contract  (Month/Day/Year) Major  content Restr ic t ive c lauses

Lease 
contract

Hsinchu 
Science 
Park Bureau,  
Min is t ry  of  
Sc ience and 
Technology

June 5,  2006 to December 31,  2025
Lease of  land for  
the Hsinchu Dux-
ing Plant

The sublease,  sub-
tenancy,  or  ass ign-
ment  of  the land or  i ts  
bui ld ings shal l  obta in 
pr ior  consent  f rom the 
Science Park Bureau.

Lease 
contract

Hsinchu 
Science 
Park Bureau,  
Min is t ry  of  
Sc ience and 
Technology

Apr i l  15,  2020 to December 31,  2039 Lease of  land for  
the Longtan Plant

The sublease,  sub-
tenancy,  or  ass ign-
ment  of  the land or  i ts  
bui ld ings shal l  obta in 
pr ior  consent  f rom the 
Science Park Bureau.

Lease 
contract Xintec Inc. November 16,  2020 to November 15,  2022

Lease of  Xintec ’s  
Zhongl i  P lant  and 
the re levant  p lant  
fac i l i t ies and ser-
v ices

No subleasing,  sub-
le t t ing,  lending,  t rans-
ferr ing,  possessing 
or  other  means of  
prov id ing use to other  
people is  a l lowed

Con-
st ruct ion 
contract

L i  J in  Engi -
neer ing Co.  
Ltd.

September 30,  2020 ~ unt i l  the warranty 
expi res

Construct ion of  
Longtan Plant None

Commis-
s ioned 
for  pro-
cessing

Xintec Inc. October  1,  2019 to September 30,  2021

Provide custom-
ers wi th wafer  
processing ser-
v ices,  and draw 
up a contract  as 
per  the Regula-
t ions Govern ing 
Customs Bonded 
Factor ies

None

Long-
term 
supply

Uni ted In-
dustr ia l  Gas-
es Co. ,  L td.

November 11,  2020 to October  31,  2030

Purchase n i t ro-
gen,  subsid ize 
l iqu id n i t rogen 
and ul t ra-h igh pu-
r i ty  l iqu id oxygen;  
lease equipment

The equipment  must  
not  s tore gas not  sup-
p l ied by Uni ted Indus-
t r ia l  Gases

Bank 
credi t

Mega In-
ternat ional  
Commerc ia l  
Bank Co. ,  
L td.

The s igning date of  the contract  is  June 08,  
2020.  Accord ing to the contract ,  i t  must  be 
repaid wi th in f ive years af ter  the f i rs t  draw-
down.  Up to the annual  repor t  pr in ted date,  
NTD 300 mi l l ion has been drawn.

Mid- term and 
long- term loans

The d i rect ions of  the 
project  loan should be 
fo l lowed,  and the loan 
should not  be used 
for  other  purposes

Bank 
credi t

Far  Eastern 
Internat ional  
Bank Co. ,  
L td.

The s igning date of  the contract  is  June 17,  
2020.  Accord ing to the contract ,  i t  must  be 
repaid wi th in f ive years af ter  the f i rs t  draw-
down.  Up to the annual  repor t  pr in ted date,  
NTD 300 mi l l ion has been drawn.

Mid- term and 
long- term loans

The d i rect ions of  the 
project  loan should be 
fo l lowed,  and the loan 
should not  be used 
for  other  purposes

Bank 
credi t

E.SUN Com-
merc ia l  
Bank,  Ltd.

The s igning date of  the contract  is  Ju ly  1,  
2020.  Accord ing to the contract ,  i t  must  be 
repaid wi th in f ive years af ter  the f i rs t  draw-
down.  Up to the annual  repor t  pr in ted date,  
NTD 2 b i l l ion has been drawn.

Mid- term and 
long- term loans

The d i rect ions of  the 
pro ject  loan should be 
fo l lowed,  and the loan 
should not  be used for  
other  purposes

Bank 
credi t

Taipei  Fubon 
Commercia l  
Bank Co. ,  
L td.

The s igning date of  the loan drawdown 
not ice is  Ju ly  27,  2020.  Accord ing to the 
approval  condi t ions,  i t  must  be repaid wi th-
in  f ive years af ter  the f i rs t  drawdown.  Up 
to the annual  repor t  pr in ted date,  NTD 910 
mi l l ion has been drawn.

Mid- term and 
long- term loans

The d i rect ions of  the 
pro ject  loan should be 
fo l lowed,  and the loan 
should not  be used for  
other  purposes
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1. Condensed balance sheet – Based on IFRS

Six. Financial Overview

Unit: NTD thousand

I. Condensed balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income for the last 5 years
(I) Condensed balance sheet and statement of comprehensive income

Year

Item 

Financial information for the last 5 years (Note)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Current asset 4,172,464 4,260,367 4,161,500 3,767,007 5,000,933

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,672,754 1,675,727 1,867,080 7,617,347 9,773,826

Intangible asset 4,078 13,700 10,252 9,096 24,874

Right-of-use assets - - 221,221 319,065 244,038

Other assets 62,533 65,961 62,424 59,253 45,504

Total assets 5,911,829 6,015,755 6,322,477 11,771,768 15,089,175

Current liabilities
Before dividend 603,807 860,891 968,878 2,225,250 2,625,096

After dividend 1,186,113 1,443,197 968,878 2,807,556 (Note 2)

non-current liabilities 1,456 3,845 168,127 2,263,683 3,547,504

Total liabilities
Before dividend 605,263 864,736 1,137,005 4,488,933 6,172,600

After dividend 1,187,569 1,447,042 1,137,005 5,071,239 (Note 2)

Share capital 2,911,531 2,911,531 2,911,531 2,911,531 2,932,991

Capital surplus 693,712 693,757 696,675 703,493 732,799

Retained earnings
Before dividend 1,701,323 1,545,731 1,577,266 3,667,811 5,250,785

After dividend 1,119,017 963,425 1,577,266 3,085,505 (Note 2)

Total Equity
Before dividend 5,306,566 5,151,019 5,185,472 7,282,835 8,916,575

After dividend 4,724,260 4,568,713 5,185,472 6,700,529 (Note 2)
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Unit: In thousands of NTD, except for earnings per share, which is estimated in NTD.
2. Condensed statement of comprehensive income – Based on IFRS

Year

Item

Financial information for the last 5 years (Note)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Revenue 2,519,211 2,748,420 3,395,724 6,946,349 9,029,178
Gross profit 497,438 787,804 1,147,342 3,110,898 3,568,972
Operating profit/loss 210,891 481,881 718,692 2,556,440 2,707,262
Non-operating income and expense 10,678 26,952 24,680 (1,089) (3,316)
Profit before tax 221,569 508,833 743,372 2,555,351 2,703,946
Current period net profit 207,557 412,283 613,841 2,090,545 2,165,280
Total comprehensive income 
in the current period 207,557 412,283 613,841 2,090,545 2,165,280

Earnings per Share 0.71 1.42 2.11 7.18 7.41

Year

Item 

Financial information for the last 5 years (Note)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Current asset 4,172,464 4,260,367 4,161,500 3,767,007 5,000,933

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,672,754 1,675,727 1,867,080 7,617,347 9,773,826

Intangible asset 4,078 13,700 10,252 9,096 24,874

Right-of-use assets - - 221,221 319,065 244,038

Other assets 62,533 65,961 62,424 59,253 45,504

Total assets 5,911,829 6,015,755 6,322,477 11,771,768 15,089,175

Current liabilities
Before dividend 603,807 860,891 968,878 2,225,250 2,625,096

After dividend 1,186,113 1,443,197 968,878 2,807,556 (Note 2)

non-current liabilities 1,456 3,845 168,127 2,263,683 3,547,504

Total liabilities
Before dividend 605,263 864,736 1,137,005 4,488,933 6,172,600

After dividend 1,187,569 1,447,042 1,137,005 5,071,239 (Note 2)

Share capital 2,911,531 2,911,531 2,911,531 2,911,531 2,932,991

Capital surplus 693,712 693,757 696,675 703,493 732,799

Retained earnings
Before dividend 1,701,323 1,545,731 1,577,266 3,667,811 5,250,785

After dividend 1,119,017 963,425 1,577,266 3,085,505 (Note 2)

Total Equity
Before dividend 5,306,566 5,151,019 5,185,472 7,282,835 8,916,575

After dividend 4,724,260 4,568,713 5,185,472 6,700,529 (Note 2)

(II)Names of financial statement auditors in the last 5 years and audit opinions 

   1. Names of financial statement auditors in the last 5 years and audit opinions

II. Financial analysis for the last 5 years
1. Financial ratio analysis - IFRS-compliant

 

2. If there was any reappointment of CPA in the last five years, provide reasons for reappointment from the Company, the former CPA, 
and the succeeding CPA: The Company had reappointed the two CPAs in 2018 to accommodate its public offering and the internal 
rotation within Deloitte & Touche.

Year Accounting firm Name of CPA Audit opinion

2017 Deloitte & Touche I-Hsin Kao Unqualified opinion

2018 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

2019 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

2020 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

110 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

Year

Analysis

Financial information for the last 5 years

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Financial 
structure (%)

Debt-to-assets ratio 10.24% 14.37% 17.98% 38.13% 40.91%
Long-term capital to property, 
plant and equipment 317.32% 307.62% 286.74% 125.33% 127.53%

Solvency (%)
Current ratio 691.03% 494.88% 429.52% 169.28% 190.50%
Quick ratio 678.58% 487.47% 419.18% 163.27% 184.25%
Interest earned ratio - 18,846.67 151.02 490.44  217.07 
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Year Accounting firm Name of CPA Audit opinion

2017 Deloitte & Touche I-Hsin Kao Unqualified opinion

2018 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

2019 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

2020 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

110 Deloitte & Touche Shang-Chih Lin, Ming-Yuan Chung Unqualified opinion

Year

Analysis

Financial information for the last 5 years

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Operating 
performance

Accounts receivable turnover 
(times)

4.37 5.41 5.78 8.76 8.09 

Average collection days 83 68 63 42 45
Inventory turnover (times) 36.32 45.91 48.22 53.81 60.12 
Accounts payable turnover (times) 20.68 21.14 18.87 23.24 20.40 
Average inventory turnover (days) 10 8 8 7 6 
Property, plant and equipment 
turnover (times)

1.35 1.64 1.92 1.46 1.04 

Total asset turnover (times) 0.39 0.46 0.55 0.77 0.67 

Profitability

Return on assets (%) 3.22% 6.91% 10.01% 23.15% 16.20%
Return on equity (%) 3.68% 7.88% 11.88% 33.53% 26.73%
Pre-tax profit to paid-up
capital (%)

7.61% 17.48% 25.53% 87.77% 92.19%

Net profit margin (%) 8.24% 15.00% 18.08% 30.10% 23.98%
Earnings per share (NTD) 0.71 1.42 2.11 7.18 7.41 

Cash flow
Cash flow ratio (%) 116.73% 115.40% 109.27% 151.47% 144.56%
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 111.56% 99.91% 91.79% 70.93% 69.74%
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) -1.33% 3.16% 3.47% 18.17% 13.78%

Degree of 
leverage

Operating leverage 10.19 4.81 3.86 2.22 2.74 
Financial leverage 1.00 1.00 1.01 1.00 1.00 

Variations exceeding 20% in the last 2 years:
(1) Decrease in interest coverage ratio: Mainly due to drawdown of borrowings to fund capital expenditure, which in turn increased the borrowings balance, thereby resulting in an increase in 

the interest expense of 2021 over the 2020 level.
(2) Decrease in property, plant, and equipment turnover (times): Mainly due to continuous expansion of product lines in 2021, which caused an increase in property, plant, and equipment of 

2021 over the 2020 level.
(3) Decrease in return on asset; decrease in return on equity: Mainly due to the fact that the increase in post-tax profit of 2021 was smaller than the increase in assets of 2021, and in equity of 

2021, respectively.
(4) Decrease in net profit margin (%): Mainly due to the decrease in gross profit of 2021 over the 2020 level.
(5) Decrease in cash reinvestment ratio (%): Mainly due to constant expansion of product lines in 2021, which caused the gross amount of fixed assets to increase to an extent greater than 

the increase in net cash flow from operating activities.
(6) Increase in operating leverage: Mainly due to the decrease in gross profit of 2021 over the 2020 level, which caused the (net operating revenue - variable operating costs and expenses) to 

increase to an extent greater than the increase in operating profit.

Note 1: All yearly financial information presented above has been audited.
Note 2: Formulas of financial ratios are defined below: 

1. Financial structure
(1) Debt-to-assets ratio = total liabilities/ total assets.
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (total equity + non-

current liabilities) / net property, plant and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = current assets / current liabilities.
(2) Quick ratio = (current assets - inventory - prepayments) / current liabilities.
(3) Interest earned ratio = earnings before interest and income tax / interest expenses
for the current period.

3. Operating performance
(1) Receivables turnover (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from 

business activities) = net sales / average receivables balance (including accounts 
receivable and notes receivable from business activities).

(2) Average collection days = 365 / accounts receivables turnover.
(3) Inventory turnover = cost of sales/average inventory balance.
(4) Payables turnover (including accounts payable and notes payable for business 

activities) = cost of sales / average payables balance (including accounts payable 
and notes payable for business activities).

(5) Average inventory turnover days = 365 / inventory turnover.

(6) Property, plant and equipment turnover = net sales / average net property, plant and 
equipment balance.

(7) Total asset turnover = net sales / average total assets.

4. Profitability
(1) Return on assets = [net income + interest expenses × (1- tax rate)] / average total 

asset balance.
(2) Return on equity = net income / average shareholders' equity.
(3) Net profit margin = net income / net sales.
(4) Earnings per share = (net income attributable to parent company shareholders - 

preferred share dividends) / weighted average outstanding shares.

5. Cash flows
(1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities / current liabilities.
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = net cash flow from operating activities for the previous 

5 years / (capital expenditure + increase in inventory + cash dividends) for the 
previous 5 years.

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from operating activities - cash dividends) 
/ (gross property, plant and equipment + long-term investments + other non-current 
assets + working capital).

6. Degree of leverage:
(1) Degree of operating leverage = (net operating revenues - variable operating costs 

and expenses) / operating profit.
(2) Degree of financial leverage = operating profit / (operating profit - interest expense).
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III. Audit Committee’s Review Report

IV. Latest financial statements: See pages 92 to 143. Appendix (Standalone Financial Statements for 
2021)

V. Financial distress encountered by the Company and affiliated enterprises in the last year, up until 
the printed date of annual report: None.

Audit Committee’s Review Report 
 
The Board of Directors prepared the 2021 Business Report, Financial Statements, and 

earning distribution proposal of the Company. The Financial Statements have been 

audited by the CPA of Deloitte & Touche, who presented the independent auditors’ 

report. After audit, the Audit Committee believes the aforementioned Business 

Report, Financial Statements and earnings distribution proposal are prepared in good 

faith. Therefore, the Audit Committee’s Review Report is so generated pursuant to 

the Securities and Exchange Act and the Company Act. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 
 
 
Convener of the Meeting of the Audit Committee: Laura Huang 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
February 23,  2022  
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Seven. Review of Financial Status, Financial 
Performance, and Risk Management
I. Financial status:

Comparative analysis of financial status Unit: NTD thousand

Year 2020 2021 Difference

Item Amount %

Current asset 3,767,007 5,000,933 1,233,926 32.76 

Property, Plant and Equipment 7,617,347 9,773,826 2,156,479 28.31 

Right-of-use assets 9319,065 244,038 (75,027) (23.51)

Intangible asset 9,096 24,874 15,778 173.46 

Other assets 59,253 45,504 (13,749) (23.20)

Total assets 11,771,768 15,089,175 3,317,407 28.18 

Current liabilities 2,225,250 2,625,096 399,846 17.97 

non-current liabilities 2,263,683 3,547,504 1,283,821 56.71 

Total liabilities 4,488,933 6,172,600 1,683,667 37.51 

Share capital 2,911,531 2,932,991 21,460 0.74 

Capital surplus 703,493 732,799 29,306 4.17 

Retained earnings 3,667,811 5,259,785 1,582,974 43.16 

Total Equity 7,282,835 8,916,575 1,633,740 22.43

1. Explanation to changes: (only for variations exceeding 20% and amounting to more than NT$10 million)
(1) Increase in current assets: Mainly due to increase in cash and accounts receivable as a result of better operations.
(2) Property, plant, equipment, and intangible asset increased: Mainly due to additional capital expenditures incurred to 

meet market demand.
(3) Decrease in right-of-use assets: Mainly due to amortization over the lifetime.
(4) Decrease in other assets: Mainly due to amortization of discounted book-tax differences, which resulted in a decrease in 

deferred tax assets.
(5) Increase in non-current liabilities: Mainly due to increase in long-term borrowings to fund capital expenditure.
(6) Retained earnings increased: mainly as a result of ongoing improvements made to product portfolio, which produced 

higher gross profit and operating profit.
2. Possible impacts on future financial and business performance: No material impact is expected.
3. Future response measures: Not applicable.

Source: Based on audited financial statements.
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Unit: NTD thousand

II. Financial performance:

(I) Comparative analysis of operating performance

III. Cash flow:
(I) Analysis of cash flow changes for the year:

 Unit: NTD thousand

(II) Sales forecast and basis:
     Sales volume is estimated based on the Company's sales targets, market demands, growth trends, customers' performance, 

and existing sales orders after taking production capacity into consideration. The Company expects sales to grow at a consistent 
rate, which will affect financial and business performance in a positive way.

Year 2020 2021 Difference
Item Amount %
Revenue 6,946,349 9,029,178 2,082,829  29.98 
Gross profit 3,110,898 3,568,972 458,074  14.72 
Operating profit/loss 2,556,440 2,707,262 150,822  5.90 
Non-operating income and expense (1,089) (3,316) (2,227)  204.50 
Profit before tax 2,555,351 2,703,946 148,595  5.82 
Current period net profit 2,090,545 2,165,280 74,735  3.57 
Total comprehensive income in the current period 2,090,545 2,165,280 74,735  3.57 

1. Explanation to changes: (only for variations exceeding 20% and amounting to more than NT$10 million)
(1) Operating revenues increased: the growth in performance was mainly due to ongoing efforts made to improve product 
portfolio and develop new customers.

2. Possible impacts on future financial and business performance: No material impact is expected.
3. Future response measures: Not applicable.

Note: Based on IFRS-compliant consolidated financial information.

(II) Response measures and liquidity analysis for cash flow deficit: Not applicable.

                                             Year
Item 2020 2021 Variation

Operating activities 3,370,563 3,794,727 12.58%

Investing activities (6,024,344) (3,976,961) (33.98%)

Financing activities 1,919,958 877,514 (54.28%)

Net cash outflow (733,823) 695,280 (194.75%)

Analysis of cash flow changes:
(1) Operating activities: mainly attributed to sales growth, which increased pre-tax profit and cash inflow from operating activities.
(2) Investing activities: Mainly due to higher capital expenditure in 2020 compared with 2021; the lower capital expenditure in 

2021 caused a decrease in net cash outflows from investing activities.
(3) Financing activities: Main due to decrease in long-term borrowings and distribution of cash dividends in 2021, which caused 

a decrease in net cash inflows to financing activities.
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(III) Liquidity analysis for the next year:

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Open ing  cash  
ba lance
Ba lance

Pro jec ted  ne t  cash  
f l ow  f rom ope ra t i ng  

ac t i v i t i es  f o r  t he  yea r

Pro jec ted  ne t  cash  f l ow  
f rom inves t i ng  ac t i v i t i es  

f o r  t he  yea r

Pro jec ted  ne t  cash  
f l ow  f rom f i nanc ing  

ac t i v i t i es  fo r  t he  yea r
Expec ted  cash  

su rp lus  (de f i c i t )

Response  measures  fo r  cash  
f l ow  de f i c i t

I nves tmen t  
p lans F inanc ing  p lans

3 ,232 ,624 4 ,560 ,243 (7 ,149 ,086 ) 7 ,058 ,656 7 ,702 ,437 - -

1 .  Ana lys i s  o f  cash  f l ow  va r i a t i on  fo r  t he  nex t  yea r :
(1 )  Opera t i ng  ac t i v i t i es :  t he  Company  expec ts  marke t  demand  to  g row  cons i s ten t l y  i n  t he  fu tu re ,  and  the  fo recas t  rep resen ts  ne t  cash  i n f l ow  under  
no rma l  p roduc t i on  p lan .
(2 )  Ne t  cash  ou t f l ow  f rom inves t i ng  ac t i v i t i es :  ma in l y  a t t r i bu ted  to  add i t i ona l  cap i ta l  expend i tu res  on  new equ ipmen t  and  p lan t  cons t ruc t i on  tha t  t he  
Company  expec ts  t o  i ncu r  f o r  capac i t y  expans ion  and  deve lopmen t  o f  new p roduc t i on  p rocedures .
(3 )  Ne t  cash  ou t f l ow  f rom f i nanc ing  ac t i v i t i es :  Ma in l y  rep resen ts  cash  i n f l ow  f rom i ssuance  o f  common sha res  and  l ong - te rm bo r row ings .
2 .  Response  measures  and  l i qu id i t y  ana l ys i s  f o r  cash  f l ow  de f i c i t :  None .

IV. Material capital expenditures in the last year and impacts on financial position and business 
performance: 
Construction of the new Longtan Plant represents a material capital expenditure. The Company expects to finance this project 
with its own capital or through bank borrowing, and expects no material impact on financial or business performance.

V. Investment policy in the last year, main causes for profits or losses, improvement plan, and 
investment plan for the coming year:
(I) Investment policy

The Company has formulated its investment policy in line with long-term strategies, which focus primarily on color filters and 
optical coating. Apart from the above, the Company does not invest in other industries. The Company has also established a 
set of “Asset Acquisition and Disposal Procedures“ in accordance with “Regulations Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of 
Assets by Public Companies” stipulated by the authority to serve as guidance over investment practices, and to monitor business 
and financial status of business investments.

(II) Main causes of profit or loss, improvement plan: Not applicable as the Company has no business investment.

(III) Investment plans for the coming year: None.

VI. Evaluation of risk management issues in the last year up until the printed date of annual report：
(I) Effects of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and inflation on corporate finance, and future response measures:

1. Interest rate changes

                                                                                                    
Item 2020 2021

Interest expense 5,221 12,514

Net operating revenues 6,946,349 9,029,178

Interest expense as a percentage of net operating revenues  0.08  0.14 

Source: Based on audited financial statements

Year
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2. Foreign exchange rates changes

Net gains (losses) on foreign currency exchange accounted for (0.82)% and (0.13)% of the Company's operating revenues in 
2020 and 2021, respectively. Since most capital expenditures and manufacturing overheads are paid in non-NTD currencies 
such as USD and JPY and most revenues are collected in USD, excessive volatility in exchange rate may have adverse impacts 
on the Company. Depending on changes in market exchange rate, current positions, and capital availability, the Company adopts 
a combination of natural hedge and foreign exchange contract to eliminate exchange rate risks.

3. Inflation
Inflation has not had significant impact on the Company. Furthermore, the Company pays constant attention to changes in market 
price, and maintains productive relationship with suppliers and customers to eliminate adverse impacts of inflation on profitability.

1. The Company has established “Lending Funds to Other Parties Procedures”, “Endorsement and Guarantee Procedures”, 
“Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets”, and “Procedures for Derivative Transactions”, to serve as guidance 
within the Company. The Company had not engaged in any high-risk or highly leveraged investment or transactions such 
as lending funds to other parties, endorsement, or guarantee as of the publication date of annual report.

2. USD to NTD forward is the main form of financial derivative traded by the Company. Use of this instrument is solely for 
hedging exchange rate volatility arising from foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities, and strictly complies 
with “Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Assets” and “Procedures for Derivative Transactions.” For the above 
reasons, trading of derivative posed no significant risk to the Company.

I t em 2020 2021

Ne t  f o re ign  exchange  ga in  ( l oss ) (57 ,105 ) (11 ,981 )

Ne t  ope ra t i ng  revenues 6 ,946 ,349 9 ,029 ,178

Ne t  ga ins / l osses  on  fo re ign  cu r rency  exchange  as  a  pe rcen tage  o f  ne t  
ope ra t i ng  revenues (0 .82 ) (0 .13 )

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Source: Based on audited financial statements.

(II) Policies on high-risk and highly leveraged investments, lending funds to other parties, endorsements / guarantees, and trading of 
derivatives; describe the main causes of profit or loss incurred and future response measures:

(III) Future research and development plans and projected expenses:

I t em R&D p ro jec t Expec ted  t ime  o f  comp le t i on /mass  
p roduc t i on

Es t ima ted  cos t  o f  resea rch  
and  deve lopmen t

1 0 .61µm p i xe l  p roduc t i on  techno logy

2022~2023
Year 1 ,379 ,463

2 H igh  pe r fo rmance  l a rge  m ic ro - l ens  p roduc t i on  techno logy
(ToF  3D sens ing  techno logy )

3 Op t i ca l  d i f f r ac t i on  componen ts

4 Metasu r face

In 2020 and 2021, the ratio of interest expense to net operating revenue was 0.08% and 0.14%, respectively. The ratio in 2021 is 
higher than the 2020 level, mainly due to increase in interest expense as a result of increase in medium- and long-term borrowings 
in 2021. The Company constantly observes and analyzes how a change in market interest rate may affect cash flows on interest-
bearing debts. The Company also maintains good relationship with banks and performs timely assessments on possible interest 
rate risks for all interest-bearing debts, while taking actions to reduce impact of interest rate changes on profitability.

Unit: NTD thousand
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(IV) Financial impacts and response measures in the event of changes in local and foreign regulations:

The Company complies with local and foreign regulations for all daily operations. It pays constant attention to political 
and regulatory developments local and abroad, and gathers relevant information that the management may use to make 
informed decisions. The Company also consults experts from various fields to keep up-to-date on market changes, and 
adjusts operational strategies at times deemed appropriate. The Company encountered no change in local or foreign 
policy/regulation that affected its financial or business performance in the last year up until the printed date of this annual 
report.

(V) Business and financial impacts and response measures in the event of technological (such as information and communication 
security risk) or industrial change:

The Company operates in the semiconductors industry, where products and technologies evolve at such a fast rate that 
participants are constantly in need to adopt advanced technologies and expand production capacity. Competition among 
peers is extremely intense. In response, the Company continues to monitor changes in market demand and technology, 
and strives to capitalize on new market opportunities and enhance long-term competitiveness by exploring new products 
as well as new customers.

VisEra Technologies is committed to technological innovation. In order to enhance its industrial leadership, maintain the 
hard-earned advanced technological achievements, protect the R&D achievements, and strengthen competitivity, the 
Company launches an incentive mechanism that encourages R&D and innovation in conjunction with its patent application 
deployment, one of its business objectives. Doing so not only creates a benign circle and a corporate culture characteristic 
of R&D and innovation, but also lays a solid foundation for corporate sustainability management.

The Company actively promotes intellectual property right (IPR) management plans, has established regulations governing 
the application, maintenance, and management of IPR that relates to patents and trade secrets, and prevents the leakage 
of R&D achievements and critical technologies through a stringent confidential information protection system, so as to 
comprehensively protect the Company’s intellectual properties. The Company’s patent portfolio covers numerous countries 
such as the United States, Taiwan, China, and Japan; total number of patents has reached 500 pieces, and is continuously 
growing. At each year-end, the management team will consider future business planning along with the R&D status of 
each R&D department within each organization to set appropriate IPR KPIs for the following year, so as to motivate the 
Company’s R&D momentum. The achieving rates of these KPIs in recent years all exceeded 100%. Also, R&D supervisors 
report R&D status and future R&D plans to the Board of Directors at least annually, so that the directors are well informed 
of the Company’s IPR portfolio.

With regards to cybersecurity risks, the Company has established and implemented a cybersecurity management system    
and internal and external audit cycles are conducted on a yearly basis to ensure effectiveness and compliance of the 
management system. In light of the above, cybersecurity does not pose significant risk to the Company's operations.

(VI) Crisis management, impacts, and response measures in the event of a change in corporate image

The Company has been dedicated to maintaining corporate image and complying with regulations since it was founded. As 
of the printed date of annual report, there had been no change in corporate image that would put the Company in crisis.

(VII) Expected benefits, risks, and response measures in relation to mergers and acquisitions: None.

(VIII) Expected benefits, risks, and response measures associated with plant expansions:

A resolution was passed during the Board of Directors meeting held in January 2020 to construct Longtan Plant for the 
expansion of production capacity. This project will be funded using the Company's capital and long-term bank borrowings. 
The project exhibited no concern for delay or lack of financing as of the printed date of annual report. 

(IX) Risks and response measures associated wit h concentrated sales or purchases:

(1) Risks and response measures associated with concentrated purchases

Main suppliers of the Company are vendors with long-term cooperation, and both parties maintain good and stable 
collaborative relationships. To address the issue of single supply, the Company maintains sources of supplies from two or 
more production bases to ensure the stability of supplies.

(2) Risks and response measures associated with concentrated sales
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The Company specializes in foundry service for image sensors. Some image sensor suppliers do have a higher share of 
the market, which causes the Company's top-10 buyers to account for a relatively high percentage of total revenues. This 
concentration is an inherent nature of the industry. The Company will continue developing new products as a means to 
diversify sales concentration risk.

(X) Impacts, risks, and response measures following a major transfer of shareholding by directors, supervisors, or shareholders with 
more than 10% ownership interest:

Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (TSMC), a director and shareholder with more than 10% ownership interest 
in the Company, began transferring 38 million shares to professional investors and 1.501 million shares to the Emerging 
Stock Market recommending securities firm and Securities and Futures Investors Protection Center in March 2021 to 
accommodate the Company's listing application. TSMC remains the Company's largest shareholder after the transfer, and 
the transfer poses no significant risk or adverse impact on the Company.

To comply with the requirements for public offering, the Company elected 2 additional directors and 1 additional supervisor 
during the annual meeting held on June 19, 2020. Furthermore, for compliance with regulations on Emerging Stock Market 
registration, the Company held an extraordinary shareholders’ meeting on March 4, 2021 to re-elect all 6 directors (including 
3 independent directors) and assemble an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee. The management remained 
unchanged after two changes of directors.

(XI) Impacts, risks, and response measures associated with a change of management: None.

(XII) Major litigations, non-contentious cases, or administrative litigations occurred during the year 
that involved the Company or any director, supervisor, President, person-in-charge, or major shareholder with more than 10% 
ownership interest, whether concluded or pending judgment, that are likely to pose significant impact to shareholders or security 
prices of the Company. Disclose the nature of dispute, the amount involved, the date the litigation first started, the key parties 
involved, and progress as of the publication date of annual report: None.

(XIII) Other significant risks: None.

VII. Other material issues: None.
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1. Declaration of Affiliation Report

I. Affiliated enterprises:

(I)Consolidated business report of affiliated enterprises: Not applicable.

(II)Consolidated financial statements of affiliated enterprises: Not applicable.

(III)Affiliation report

Eight. Special Disclosure

Declaration of Affiliation Report 

 

The Company's 2021 Affiliation Report (for the period January 1 to December 31, 2021) has been 

prepared in accordance with “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated 

Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises.” There was no 

material discrepancy between information disclosed in the above report and notes to financial 

statements for the corresponding period. 

This declaration is solemnly made by 

 

 

 

 

 

Company name: VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 

 

 Person-in-charge: Robert Kuan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

March 23, 2022 
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2. Auditor's review of the Affiliation Report

Correspondence No. Qin-Zhu-1110195 dated February 23, 2022 

 

To: VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 

Subject: To express opinion on the Company's declaration that no material 

misstatement was found in the 2021 Affiliation Report 

Explanation: 

1. The Company's 2021 Affiliation Report dated February 23, 2022 (for the period 

from January 1 to December 31, 2021) was claimed to have been prepared in 

accordance with “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, 

Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated 

Enterprises” with no material discrepancy between information disclosed in the 

above reports and notes to financial statements for the corresponding period. A copy 

of the declaration has been presented in the attachment. 

2. We, the auditors, have compared the Company's Affiliation Report against footnote 

disclosures presented in the 2021 financial statements according to “Criteria 

Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and 

Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises,” and found no material 

contradiction to the above claims. 

 

 Deloitte & Touche 

 CPA Shang-Chih Lin 

 Ming-Yuan Chung 
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3. Relationships between controlling and controlled entities:
The Company is a subsidiary of Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited (TSMC); 
information of the controlling entity is presented below:

Name o f  con t ro l l i ng  
en t i t y Means  o f  con t ro l

Sha res  he ld  and  p ledged  by  the  con t ro l l i ng  en t i t y D i rec to rs ,  supe rv i so rs  o r  managers  
appo in ted  by  the  con t ro l l i ng  en t i t y

No .  o f  sha res  he ld Shares  Ra t i o Shares  p ledged Pos i t i on Name

TSMC

Paren t  company  tha t  
ho lds  con t ro l l i ng  

i n te res t  i n  t he  
Company

213 ,619 ,000 72 .83% -

Cha i rman
D i rec to rs
D i rec to rs

Rober t  Kuan
George  L iu
D iane  Kao

Unit: shares; %
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4. Transactions with the above parties:
(1) Trading of inventory:

5. Guarantees and endorsements: None.
6. Other events of significant financial or business impacts: None.

(2) Trading of property: No material transaction had taken place.
(3) Financing: No financing had taken place.
(4) Leasing:

(5) Other significant transactions: No material transaction had taken place.

TRANSACTIONS WITH THE CONTROLLING ENTITY TERMS WITH THE 
CONTROLLING ENTITY ORDINARY TRADE TERMS

CAUSE OF 
D IFFERENCE

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) OVERDUE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

REMARKS
Purchase /

Sa le Amoun t As  a  pe rcen tage  o f  t o ta l  
pu rchase  ( sa le ) Gross  marg in Un i t  p r i ce  

(NTD) Paymen t  Te rms Un i t  p r i ce  
(NTD) Paymen t  Te rms Ba lance As  a  pe rcen tage  o f  t o ta l  accoun ts  and  

no tes  rece i vab le  (payab le ) Amoun t Ac t i ons  Taken
Amoun t  o f  

doub t fu l  deb t  
p rov i s ions

Sa les 2 ,890 0 .03% 26 .48% Note  1 30  days  a f te r  
mon th -end No te  1 30 -90  days  a f te r  

mon th -end No te  1 87 0 .01% 0 - 0 -

Purchase 18 ,558 1 .41% - No te  2 30  days  a f te r  
mon th -end No te  2 30 -60  days  a f te r  

mon th -end No te  2 2 ,031 (No te  3 ) 0 .33% 0 - 0 -

Note 1: Products and services were sold to related parties at general commercial terms and conditions.
Note 2: Products and services were purchased from related parties at general commercial terms and conditions.
Note 3: Represents purchases for R&D purpose; presented as accrued expense.

Transac t i on  t ype  (as  l esso r  
o r  l essee )

Under l y i ng  asse t
Lease  te rm

(Mon th /Day /Year )
Na tu re  o f  l ease

(No te  1 )
Bas i s  o f  ren ta l  

ra te
Co l l ec t i on  (paymen t )  

t e rms
Compar i son  w i th  no rma l  ren ta l  

ra tes
Sum o f  ren t  i n  t he  

cu r ren t  pe r i od
Amoun t  co l l ec ted /pa id  i n  

t he  cu r ren t  pe r i od

Othe r  t e rms  and  
cond i t i ons

(No te  2 )Name Loca t i on

Leas ing Bu i l d ings No .  12 ,  Dux ing  1s t  Road ,  
Hs inchu  C i t y

Februa ry  1 ,  2020 -
 January  31 ,  2021 Opera t i ng  l ease

De te rm ined  
v ia  b i l a te ra l  
nego t i a t i on

Paid monthly Normal 1 ,565 Ful ly  col lected at  the 
end of  the per iod None

Note 1: Specify the nature as capital lease or operating lease.
Note 2: Other encumbrances such as lien over superficies, dian and servitude must be specified.

II. Private placement of securities in the last year up until the printed date of annual report: None.

III. Holding or disposal of the Company's shares by subsidiaries in the last financial year, up until the 
printed date of annual report: Not applicable. 
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TRANSACTIONS WITH THE CONTROLLING ENTITY TERMS WITH THE 
CONTROLLING ENTITY ORDINARY TRADE TERMS

CAUSE OF 
D IFFERENCE

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) OVERDUE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

REMARKS
Purchase /

Sa le Amoun t As  a  pe rcen tage  o f  t o ta l  
pu rchase  ( sa le ) Gross  marg in Un i t  p r i ce  

(NTD) Paymen t  Te rms Un i t  p r i ce  
(NTD) Paymen t  Te rms Ba lance As  a  pe rcen tage  o f  t o ta l  accoun ts  and  

no tes  rece i vab le  (payab le ) Amoun t Ac t i ons  Taken
Amoun t  o f  

doub t fu l  deb t  
p rov i s ions

Sa les 2 ,890 0 .03% 26 .48% Note  1 30  days  a f te r  
mon th -end No te  1 30 -90  days  a f te r  

mon th -end No te  1 87 0 .01% 0 - 0 -

Purchase 18 ,558 1 .41% - No te  2 30  days  a f te r  
mon th -end No te  2 30 -60  days  a f te r  

mon th -end No te  2 2 ,031 (No te  3 ) 0 .33% 0 - 0 -

Unit: NTD thousand; %

Transac t i on  t ype  (as  l esso r  
o r  l essee )

Under l y i ng  asse t
Lease  te rm

(Mon th /Day /Year )
Na tu re  o f  l ease

(No te  1 )
Bas i s  o f  ren ta l  

ra te
Co l l ec t i on  (paymen t )  

t e rms
Compar i son  w i th  no rma l  ren ta l  

ra tes
Sum o f  ren t  i n  t he  

cu r ren t  pe r i od
Amoun t  co l l ec ted /pa id  i n  

t he  cu r ren t  pe r i od

Othe r  t e rms  and  
cond i t i ons

(No te  2 )Name Loca t i on

Leas ing Bu i l d ings No .  12 ,  Dux ing  1s t  Road ,  
Hs inchu  C i t y

Februa ry  1 ,  2020 -
 January  31 ,  2021 Opera t i ng  l ease

De te rm ined  
v ia  b i l a te ra l  
nego t i a t i on

Paid monthly Normal 1 ,565 Ful ly  col lected at  the 
end of  the per iod None

Unit: NTD thousand; %

IV. Other supplementary information: None.

V. Occurrences significant to shareholders' interests or securities price, as defined in Subparagraph 2, 
Paragraph 2, Article 36 of the Securities and Exchange Act, in the last year up until the printed date of 
annual report: None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. (the 
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial 
statements”). 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows 
for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers, and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards 
(IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the 
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
 
Basis for Opinion  
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial 
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The 
Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. 
 
Key audit matter of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 is stated as 
follows: 
 
Contract Assets and Revenue Recognition 
 
The majority of the Company’s revenue is generated from color filter and optical coating, which are 
manufactured according to the customized specifications agreed in the contractual agreement. The customers 
have obtained control over the products during manufacturing process. As such, revenue and contract assets are 
recognized over time in accordance with the requirements under paragraph 35(b) of IFRS 15. Refer to Notes 4, 
5 and 17 to the accompanying financial statements for the details of the accounting policies related to the 
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contract assets and revenue recognition. The Company recognizes contract assets and revenue at the end of each 
month based on progress towards completion. Since the abovementioned process involves estimates and manual 
controls, there is a risk that contract assets and revenue may not be recognized correctly. Thus, the Company’s 
contract assets and revenue recognition was identified as a key audit matter. 
 
Our audit procedures performed in respect of the above key audit matter included the following: 
 
1. We obtained an understanding and tested the effectiveness of the design and implementation of key internal 

controls over contract assets and revenue recognition. 
 
2. We obtained an understanding and evaluated the reasonableness of management’s assumption and policy 

over contract assets and revenue recognition. 
 
3. We evaluated the reasonableness of the underlying data used in calculations for the percentage of 

completion. 
 
4. We performed a retrospective review of management's standard cost estimates. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the IFRS, IAS, 
IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of 
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
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2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Company's internal control.  

 
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 
 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Shang-Chih Lin and 
Ming-Yuan Chung. 
 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
February 23, 2022 
 

Notice to Readers 
 
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the 
Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit 
such financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China. 
 
For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying financial statements 
have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. 
If there is any conflict between the English version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the 
interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report and financial statements 
shall prevail. 
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VISERA TECHNOLOGIES COMPANY LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
 
  2021  2020 
  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 5, 17 and 25)    $ 9,029,178     100    $ 6,946,349     100 
                     
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 9, 18 and 25)     5,460,206     60     3,835,451     55 
                     
GROSS PROFIT     3,568,972     40     3,110,898     45 
                     
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 18 and 25)         

Sales and marketing     69,189     1     59,148     1 
General and administrative     279,052     3     161,236     2 
Research and development     542,020     6     366,794     5 

                     
Total operating expenses     890,261     10     587,178     8 

                     
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES, 

NET (Notes 10, 18 and 25)     28,551     -     32,720     - 
                     
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS     2,707,262     30     2,556,440     37 
                     
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES 

(Notes 18 and 25)         
Interest income     7,232     -     12,477     - 
Other income     1,723     -     566     - 
Other gains and losses     12,224     -     48,194     1 
Foreign exchange loss, net     (11,981)     -     (57,105)     (1) 
Finance costs     (12,514)     -     (5,221)     - 

                     
Total non-operating income and expenses     (3,316)     -     (1,089)     - 

                     
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX     2,703,946     30     2,555,351     37 
                     
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Note 19)     538,666     6     464,806     7 
                     
NET INCOME     2,165,280     24     2,090,545     30 
                     
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    $ 2,165,280     24    $ 2,090,545     30 
                     
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 20)         

Basic earnings per share    $ 7.41         $ 7.18      
Diluted earnings per share    $ 7.24         $ 6.77      

                     
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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VISERA TECHNOLOGIES COMPANY LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
  2021  2020 
     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Income before income tax    $ 2,703,946    $ 2,555,351 
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation expense     1,949,486     754,300 
Amortization expense     8,971     6,166 
Finance costs     12,514     5,221 
Interest income     (7,232)     (12,477) 
Compensation cost of employee share options     7,788     6,613 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net     (1,003)     (428) 
Impairment loss recognized on property, plant and equipment     -     10,159 
Foreign exchange gain, net     (3,796)     (7,316) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:     
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss     3,182     (945) 
Contract assets     (110,872)     (35,711) 
Accounts receivable, net     (465,958)     (185,381) 
Receivables from related parties, net     70,693     (66,944) 
Other receivables     (5,931)     (23,089) 
Other receivables from related parties     1,643     1,079 
Inventories     (10,757)     (28,347) 
Prepayments and other current assets     (19,641)     (4,348) 
Contract liabilities     4,171     3,284 
Accounts payable     135,788     69,353 
Accrued profit sharing bonus to employees     17,647     295,355 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities     89,743     153,984 

Cash generated from operations     4,380,382     3,495,879 
Income taxes paid     (585,655)     (125,316) 

           
Net cash generated from operating activities     3,794,727     3,370,563 

           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Payments for property, plant and equipment     (3,957,499)     (6,036,304) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment     1,003     3,238 
Increase in refundable deposits     (2,000)     (118) 
Decrease in refundable deposits     -     148 
Payments for intangible assets     (24,749)     (5,010) 
Increase in other current assets     -     (2,562) 
Interest received     6,284     16,858 

           
Net cash used in investing activities     (3,976,961)     (6,023,750) 

           
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Proceeds from long-term borrowings     1,510,000     2,000,000 
Guarantee deposits received     176     1,151 
Guarantee deposits refunded     (52)     (614) 
Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities     (75,876)     (75,331) 
Cash dividends     (582,306)     - 

(Continued) 
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VISERA TECHNOLOGIES COMPANY LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
  2021  2020 
     

Employee share options exercised    $ 42,572    $ - 
Interest paid     (17,406)     (6,047) 
Donation from shareholders     406     205 

           
Net cash generated from financing activities     877,514     1,919,364 

           
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS     695,280     (733,823) 
           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR     2,537,344     3,271,167 
           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR    $ 3,232,624    $ 2,537,344 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded) 
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VISERA TECHNOLOGIES COMPANY LTD. 
 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise) 
 
 
 1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. (the “Company”), a company limited by shares, was incorporated in 
Hsinchu City on December 1, 2003. The Company is a dedicated optical foundry mainly engaged in 
manufacturing electronic spare parts and in researching, developing, designing, manufacturing, selling, 
packaging and testing of color filter. 
 
The Company’s stock has been approved by Taipei Exchange (TPEx) and listed on the Emerging Stock 
Board (ESB) since April, 2021. 
 
The financial statements are presented in the Company’s functional currency, the New Taiwan dollar. 
 
 

 2. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on February 23, 2022. 
 
 

 3. APPLICATION OF NEW, AMENDED AND REVISED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS  
 

a. Initial application of the amendments to the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), 
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) 
(collectively, the “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission 
(FSC) 

 
The initial application of the amendments to the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC did 
not have a significant effect on the Company’s accounting policies.  

 
b. The IFRSs endorsed by the FSC for application starting from 2022 

New IFRSs  
Effective Date 

Announced by IASB  
   
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 Cycle  January 1, 2022 
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework”   January 1, 2022 
Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds 

before Intended Use”  
 January 1, 2022  

Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a 
Contract”  

 January 1, 2022 

 
c. New IFRSs in issue but not yet endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC 
 

New IFRSs  
Effective Date 

Announced by IASB (Note1) 
   
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets 

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture” 
 To be determined by IASB  

IFRS 17 Insurance Contract  January 1, 2023  
(Continued) 
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New IFRSs  
Effective Date 

Announced by IASB (Note1) 
   
Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 

17—Comparative Information” 
 January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or 
Non-current” 

 January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and 

Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction”  
 January 1, 2023  

(Concluded) 
 

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after their respective effective dates. 

 
As of the date the financial statements were authorized for issue, the Company is continuously 
assessing the possible impact that the application of other standards and interpretations will have on the 
Company’s financial position and financial performance, and will disclose the relevant impact when the 
assessment is completed. 

 
 
 4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
Statement of Compliance 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation 
of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs as endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC. 
 
Basis of Preparation  
 
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments 
which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies below.  
 
The fair value measurements, which are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair 
value measurement inputs are observable and based on the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety, are described as follows: 
 
a. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
 
b. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices); and 
 
c. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 
 
Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities 
 
Current assets include: 
 
a. Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;  
 
b. Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and  

 
c. Cash and cash equivalents unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 

for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
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Current liabilities include: 
 
a. Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
 
b. Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; and 
 
c. Liabilities for which the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 

12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, 
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

 
Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as noncurrent. 
 
Foreign Currencies 
 
In preparing the Company’s financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s 
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of 
the transactions.  
 
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the rates prevailing at that date. Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the year in 
which they arise.  
 
Non-monetary items measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences arising on the 
retranslation of non-monetary items are included in profit or loss for the year except for exchange 
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are 
recognized directly in other comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences are also 
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.  
 
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies are not retranslated. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made on an 
item-by-item basis, except where it may be appropriate to group similar or related items. Net realizable 
value is the estimated selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and necessary 
selling costs. Inventories are recorded at weighted-average cost on the balance sheet date. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Costs include any incremental costs that are 
directly attributable to the construction or acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognized 
impairment loss. Such assets are depreciated and classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant 
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. 
 
The depreciation of property, plant and equipment is recognized using the straight-line method. Each 
significant part is depreciated separately. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation 
methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effects of any changes in the estimates 
accounted for on a prospective basis. 
 
On derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the sales proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss. 
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Intangible Assets 
 
a. Intangible assets acquired separately 

 
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially measured at cost and 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss. 
Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, residual values, and 
amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in 
the estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.  

 
b. Derecognition of intangible assets 

 
On derecognition of an intangible asset, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss. 

 
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use Asset and Intangible Assets 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and 
equipment, right-of-use asset and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Corporate assets are allocated to the individual 
cash-generating units on a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation, or otherwise they are allocated to 
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be 
identified. 
 
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. If the recoverable 
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount, with the resulting 
impairment loss recognized in profit or loss. 
 
When an impairment loss is subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the corresponding asset, 
cash-generating unit or assets related to contract costs is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, but only to the extent of the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognized on the asset, cash-generating unit or assets related to contract costs in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized 
immediately in profit or loss. 
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Financial Assets 
 
The classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is 
determined at the time of initial recognition. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are 
recognized and derecognized on a trade date or settlement date basis for which financial assets were 
classified in the same way, respectively. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
marketplace. 
 
a. Measurement categories 
 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: Financial assets at FVTPL and financial 
assets at amortized cost. 

 
1) Financial assets at FVTPL 

 
Derivative financial instruments that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are stated at fair 
value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. Fair value is 
determined in the manner described in Note 24.  

 
2) Financial assets at amortized cost 

 
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost: 

 
a) The financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 

in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 
 
b) The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost (including cash and cash 
equivalents, accounts receivable(including related parties) at amortized cost, other receivables 
(including related parties) and other non-current assets) are measured at amortized cost, which 
equals the gross carrying amount determined using the effective interest method less any 
impairment loss. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Cash equivalents include time deposits, which are highly liquid, readily convertible to a known 
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These cash equivalents 
are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

 
b. Impairment of financial assets and contract assets 

 
The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets at amortized 
cost (including accounts receivable), as well as contract assets.  
 
The Company always recognizes lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) for accounts receivable and 
contract assets. For all other financial instruments, the Company recognizes lifetime ECLs when there 
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit 
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs. 
 
Expected credit losses reflect the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default 
occurring as the weights. Lifetime ECLs represent the expected credit losses that will result from all 
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECLs 
represent the portion of lifetime ECLs that is expected to result from default events on a financial 
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 
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For internal credit risk management purposes, the Company considers the following situations as 
indication that a financial asset is in default without taking into account any collateral held by the 
Company: 
 
1) Internal or external information shows that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors. 
 
2) Financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Company has reasonable and corroborative 

information to support a more lagged default criterion. 
 
The impairment loss of all financial assets is recognized in profit or loss by a reduction in their carrying 
amounts through a loss allowance account. 
 

c. Derecognition of financial assets 
 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party.  
 
On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.  

 
Equity Instruments 

 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and 
an equity instrument. 
 
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 
Financial Liabilities 
 
a. Subsequent measurement  
 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured either at amortized cost using effective interest method 
or at FVTPL. 
 
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are derivative financial instruments that do not meet the criteria 
for hedge accounting, and they are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on 
remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 
24. 
 
Financial liabilities other than those held for trading purposes and designated as at FVTPL are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost at the end of each reporting period. 
 

b. Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial 
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss. 

 
Derivative Financial Instruments 
 
The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to foreign exchange 
rates. 
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Derivative are initially recognized at fair value at the date on which the derivative contracts are entered into 
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or 
loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a 
hedging instrument. When the fair value of a derivative financial instrument is positive, the derivative is 
recognized as a financial asset; when the fair value of a derivative financial instrument is negative, the 
derivative is recognized as a financial liability. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue from manufacturing color filter and optical coating 
 
The Company identifies contracts with customers and recognizes revenue when performance obligations 
are satisfied. 
 
The manufacturing of color filter and optical coating is according to the customized specifications agreed in 
the contractual agreement. The customers have obtained control over the products during manufacturing 
process. As such, revenue and contract assets are recognized over time. Revenue from manufacturing color 
filter and optical coating is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is 
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. 
 
Provision for estimated sales returns and other allowances is generally made and adjusted based on 
historical experience and the consideration of varying contractual terms to recognize refund liabilities, 
which is classified under accrued expenses and other current liabilities. 
 
In principle, the averaged payment terms granted to customers are 30 days to 90 days. Due to the short term 
nature of the receivables from color filter and optical coating manufacturing revenue with the immaterial 
discounted effect, the Company measures them at the original invoice amounts without discounting.  
 
Leases 
 
At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. 
 
a. The Company as lessor 

 
Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

 
b. The Company as lessee 

 
The Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases at the commencement 
date of a lease, except for short-term leases and low-value asset leases accounted for applying a 
recognition exemption where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over 
the lease terms. 
 
Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial measurement of lease 
liabilities adjusted for lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus an estimate of 
costs needed to restore the underlying assets. Subsequent measurement is calculated as cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss and adjusted for changes in lease liabilities 
as a result of lease term modifications or other related factors. Right-of-use assets are presented on a 
separate line in the balance sheets. 
 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement dates to the 
earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease terms. However, if 
leases transfer ownership of the underlying assets to the Company by the end of the lease terms or if the 
costs of right-of-use assets reflect that the Company will exercise a purchase option, the Company 
depreciates the right-of-use assets from the commencement dates to the end of the useful lives of the 
underlying assets. 
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Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, which comprise fixed 
payments, variable lease payments which depend on an index or a rate and the exercise price of a 
purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option. The lease payments are 
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates. 
 
Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with 
interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is a change in a lease term, a change in 
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used, or a change in the assessment 
of an option to purchase an underlying asset to determine those payments, the Company remeasures the 
lease liabilities with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use-assets. Lease liabilities are 
presented on a separate line in the balance sheets. 

 
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in the 
periods in which they are incurred. 
 

Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to an acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use 
or sale. 
 
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. 
 
Other than those stated above, all other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in 
which they are incurred. 
 
Government grants 
 
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply 
with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. 
 
Government grants related to income are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods 
in which the Company recognizes the related costs that the grants intend to compensate. Specifically, 
government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or otherwise 
acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred revenue and transferred to profit or loss on a 
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets. 
 
The benefit of a government loan received at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government 
grant measured as the difference between the proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on 
prevailing market interest rates. 
 
Employee Benefits 
 
a. Short-term employee benefits 
 

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted 
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related services. 

 
b. Retirement benefits 
 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as expenses when employees 
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. 
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Share-based Payment Arrangements 
 
The fair value at the grant date of the employee share options is expensed on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period, based on the Company’s best estimates of the number of shares or options that are expected 
to ultimately vest, with a corresponding increase in capital surplus - employee share options. The expense is 
recognized in full at the grant date if the grants are vested immediately. The grant date of issuing employee 
share options is the date on which the number of shares that the employees can purchase is confirmed. 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of employee share 
options that are expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates is recognized in profit 
or loss such that the cumulative expenses reflect the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to 
capital surplus - employee share options. 
 
Taxation 
 
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
Current tax 
 
According to the Income Tax Law in the ROC, an additional tax on unappropriated earning is provided for 
in the year the shareholders approve to retain earnings. 
 
Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax provision. 
 
Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.  
 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets 
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the assets to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax asset is also reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will 
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liabilities are settled or the assets are realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities. 
 
Current and deferred taxes 
 
Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 
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 5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 
UNCERTAINTY 
 
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4, the management is 
required to make judgments, estimations, and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are 
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered relevant. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revisions affect only that 
period or in the period of the revisions and future periods if the revisions affect both current and future 
periods. 
 
Critical Accounting Judgements 
 
a. Revenue recognition 

 
For every contract, the Company determines its performance obligations are satisfied over time based 
on the conditions in the contract and applicable regulations described in Note 4. 

 
Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 

 
a. Estimation of sales returns and allowances 

 
Sales returns and other allowance is estimated and recorded based on historical experience and in 
consideration of different contractual terms. The amount is deducted from revenue in the same period 
the related revenue is recorded. The Company periodically reviews the reasonableness of the estimates. 
 

b. Estimated impairment of trade receivables and contract assets 
 
The provision for impairment of trade notes and accounts receivable is based on assumptions about risk 
of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and in 
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past experience, current 
market conditions as well as forward looking information at the end of each reporting period. Where the 
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. 
 

c. Impairment of property, plant and equipment 
 
In the process of evaluating the potential impairment of tangible assets, the Company determines the 
independent cash flows, useful lives, expected future revenue and expenses related to the specific asset 
groups. Any change in these estimates based on changed economic conditions or business strategies 
could result in significant impairment charges or reversal in future years. 

 
 
 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Deposits in banks     $ 3,232,614     $ 2,537,334 
Petty cash      10     10 
     
    $ 3,232,624     $ 2,537,344 
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The market rate intervals of cash in the bank at the end of the year were as follows: 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Bank balance  0.001%-0.41%  0.001%-0.35% 
 
Deposits in banks consisted of highly liquid time deposits that were readily convertible to known amounts 
of cash and were subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  

 
 
 7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Financial assets     
     
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL     

Derivative financial assets (not under hedge accounting)     
Forward exchange contracts    $ 6,003    $ 9,128 

     
Financial liabilities     
     
Held for trading     

Derivative financial liabilities (not under hedge accounting)     
Forward exchange contracts    $ 86    $ 29 

 
The Company entered into forward exchange contracts to manage exposures due to fluctuations of foreign 
exchange rates. These forward exchange contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Therefore, 
the Company did not apply hedge accounting for these forward exchange contracts. 
 
Outstanding forward exchange contracts consisted of the following: 
 
    Contract Amount 
  Maturity Date  (In Thousands) 
     
December 31, 2021     
     
Sell US$/Buy NT$  January 2022 to March 2022  US$ 56,500/NT$ 1,569,543 
     
December 31, 2020     
     
Sell US$/Buy NT$  January 2021 to March 2021  US$ 39,000/NT$ 1,104,781 
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 8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
At amortized cost     
     
Accounts receivable from unrelated parties    $ 1,196,664     $ 731,308 
Less: Allowance for impairment loss     (232)     (834) 
     1,196,432     730,474 
Accounts receivable from related parties     117,823     188,516 
     
    $ 1,314,255    $ 918,990 

 
In principle, the average payment terms granted to customers are 30 days to 90 days from the end of the 
month when the invoice is issued. No interest is charged on accounts receivables. Aside from recognizing 
impairment loss for credit-impaired accounts receivable, the Company recognizes loss allowance based on 
the expected credit loss ratio of customers by different risk levels. Such risk levels are determined with 
reference to factors of historical loss ratios and customers’ current financial conditions and business outlook 
(such as economic outlook of the industries in which the customers operate and future changes in 
purchasing requirements during a certain period, etc.).  
 
The Company writes off accounts receivable when there is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe 
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. For accounts receivables that have been 
written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivables 
due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.  
 
Aging analysis of accounts receivable, net 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Not past due    $ 1,231,957    $ 918,425 
1-60 days     82,298     565 

     
Total    $ 1,314,255    $ 918,990 

 
The above aging analysis was based on the past due dates. 
 
Aging analysis of accounts receivable that is past due but not impaired 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
1-60 days    $ 82,298    $ 565 
 
The above aging analysis was based on the past due dates. 
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Movements of the loss allowance 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Balance on January 1    $ 834    $ - 
Net remeasurement of loss allowance     (602)     834 
     
Balance on December 31    $ 232    $ 834 

 
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the changes in loss allowance were mainly due to the 
variations in the accounts receivable book value of different risk levels. 

 
 
 9. INVENTORIES 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Raw materials    $ 96,207    $ 85,450 

 
Write-down of inventories to net realizable value and reversal of write-down of inventories resulting from 
the increase in net realizable value were included in the cost of revenue. The amounts are illustrated below: 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Cost of inventories sold    $ 5,460,206   $    $ 3,835,451 
Inventory write-downs (reversed)    $ (2,639)   $    $ 1,760 

 
 
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Assets used by the Company    $ 9,769,122    $ 7,591,961 
Assets leased under operating leases     4,704     25,386 
     
    $ 9,773,826    $ 7,617,347 
 
a. Assets used by the Company 
 

 

 

Buildings  
Machinery and 

Equipment 

 

Office 
Equipment  Equipment  

Other 
Equipment  

Equipment 
under 

Installation and 
Construction in 

Progress  Total 
               
Cost               

                  
Balance at January 1, 2021    $ 2,804,497    $ 10,951,336    $ 154,935    $ 1,767    $ 87,442    $ 2,543,101    $ 16,543,078 
Additions     479,557     1,532,010     26,157     -     31,576     1,958,903     4,028,203 
Disposals     (17,741 )     (415 )     -     (1,005 )     -     -     (19,161 ) 
Reclassification     325,143     1,876,414     11,681     -     346     (2,155,264 )     58,320  
                         
Balance at December 31, 2021    $ 3,591,456    $ 14,359,345    $ 192,773    $ 762    $ 119,364    $ 2,346,740    $ 20,610,440 

(Continued) 



114

 

- 22 - 

 

 

 

Buildings  
Machinery and 

Equipment 

 

Office 
Equipment  Equipment  

Other 
Equipment  

Equipment 
under 

Installation and 
Construction in 

Progress  Total 
               
Accumulated depreciation 
  and impairment  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

               
Balance at January 1, 2021    $ 2,010,320    $ 6,779,959    $ 129,476    $ 1,767    $ 29,595    $ -    $ 8,951,117 
Depreciation     204,159     1,620,091     19,864     -     26,594     -     1,870,708 
Disposals     (17,741 )     (415 )     -      (1,005 )     -     -     (19,161 ) 
Reclassification     38,654     -     -     -     -     -     38,654  
                       
Balance at December 31, 2021    $ 2,235,392   $    $ 8,399,635   $    $ 149,340   $    $ 762    $ 56,189    $ -    $ 10,841,318 
               
Carrying amount at December 31, 

2021 
 

  $ 1,356,064    $ 5,959,710    $ 43,433    $ -    $ 63,175 
 

  $ 2,346,740    $ 9,769,122 
               
Cost               

                  
Balance at January 1, 2020    $ 2,385,201    $ 7,194,974    $ 131,268    $ 1,767    $ 22,181    $ 381,978    $ 10,117,369 
Additions     376,193     3,510,656     14,468     -     64,784     2,472,957     6,439,058 
Disposals     -     (51,139 )     (101)     -     (156 )     -     (51,396 ) 
Reclassification     43,103     296,845     9,300     -     633     (311,834 )     38,047  
                  
Balance at December 31, 2020    $ 2,804,497    $ 10,951,336    $ 154,935    $ 1,767    $ 87,442    $ 2,543,101    $ 16,543,078 
               
Accumulated depreciation 
  and impairment  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

               
Balance at January 1, 2020    $ 1,889,122    $ 6,265,978    $ 119,015    $ 1,767    $ 19,537    $ -    $ 8,295,419 
Depreciation     98,824     552,151     10,562     -     10,214     -     671,751 
Disposals     -     (48,329 )     (101 )     -     (156 )     -     (48,586 ) 
Impairment loss     -     10,159     -     -     -     -     10,159 
Reclassification     22,374      -     -     -     -     -     22,374  
               
Balance at December 31, 2020    $ 2,010,320   $ 2,010,320   $ 6,779,959   $ 6,779,959   $ 129,476   $ 129,476   $ 1,767    $ 29,595   $ 29,595   $ -    $ 8,951,117 
               
Carrying amount at December 31, 

2020 
 

  $ 794,177 
 

  $ 4,171,377 
 

  $ 25,459 
 

  $ - 
 

  $ 57,847 
 

  $ 2,543,101    $ 7,591,961 

(Concluded) 
 

No impairment assessment was performed for the year ended December 31, 2021 as there was no 
indication of impairment. 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recognized an impairment loss of $10,159 
thousand for certain machinery and equipment that were assessed to have no future use, and the 
recoverable amount of certain machinery and equipment was nil. Such impairment loss was recognized 
in other operating income and expenses. 

 
The above items of property, plant and equipment used by the Company are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
Buildings   

Main buildings  10- 20 years 
Mechanical and electrical power equipment  2- 5 years 

Machinery and equipment  2- 5 years 
Transportation equipment   5 years 
Office equipment  2- 5 years 
Other equipment  2- 3 years 
 

b. Assets leased under operating leases 
 

    Buildings 
     
Cost     
     
Balance at January 1, 2021      $ 73,784 
Reclassification       (58,320) 
     
Balance on December 31, 2021      $ 15,464 

(Continued) 
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    Buildings 
     
Accumulated depreciation     
     
Balance at January 1, 2021      $ 48,398 
Depreciation       1,016 
Reclassification       (38,654) 
     
Balance on December 31, 2021      $ 10,760 
     
Carrying amount at December 31, 2021      $ 4,704 
     
Cost     
     
Balance at January 1, 2020      $ 111,831 
Reclassification       (38,047) 
     
Balance on December 31, 2020      $ 73,784 
     
Accumulated depreciation     
     
Balance at January 1, 2020      $ 66,701 
Depreciation       4,071 
Reclassification       (22,374) 
     
Balance on December 31, 2020      $ 48,398 
     
Carrying amount at December 31, 2020      $ 25,386 

(Concluded) 
 

Operating leases relate to leases of buildings with lease terms between 1 and 5 years with an option to 
extend for another 18 months. The lessees do not have bargain purchase options to acquire the assets at 
the expiry of the lease periods. 
 
The maturity analysis of lease payments receivable under the above operating leases is as follows: 

 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Year 1    $ 16,992    $ 18,557 
Year 2     -     16,992 
     
    $ 16,992    $ 35,549 

 
To reduce the residual asset risk related to buildings at the end of the relevant lease, the Company 
follows its general risk management strategy. 
 
No impairment assessment was performed for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 as there 
was no indication of impairment. 
 
Depreciation expense is provided on a straight-line basis over the following useful lives: 
 
Buildings  20 years 
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11. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 
 

a. Right-of-use assets 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Carrying amount     
     
Land    $ 183,251    $ 196,293 
Buildings     59,017     122,772 
Transportation equipment     1,770     - 
    $ 244,038    $ 319,065 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Additions to right-of-use assets    $ 2,735    $ 176,322 
     
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets     
Land    $ 13,042    $ 12,487 
Buildings     64,366     65,639 
Transportation equipment     354     352 
     
    $ 77,762    $ 78,478 
 
Other than the abovementioned additions and depreciation expense recognized, the Company did not 
have significant sublease or impairment of right-of-use assets during the years ended December 31, 
2021 and 2020. 

 
b. Lease liabilities 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Carrying amount     
     
Current    $ 71,982    $ 75,325 
Non-current     177,417     247,215 
     
    $ 249,399    $ 322,540 
 
Range of discount rate for lease liabilities was as follows: 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Land  1.36%-2.14%  1.36%-2.14% 
Buildings  1.03%-1.11%  1.11%-1.50% 
Transportation equipment  1.08%  - 
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c. Material terms of right-of-use assets 
 

The Company leases land and buildings mainly for the use of plants and offices with lease terms of 2 to 
30 years. The Company has options to renew at the end of the lease terms. The lease contracts for land 
located in the ROC specify that lease payments will be adjusted every 2 years on the basis of changes in 
announced land value prices. The Company does not have purchase options to acquire the leasehold 
land and buildings at the end of the lease terms. 
 

d. Other lease information 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Expenses relating to short-term leases    $ 1,124    $ 393 
Expenses relating to low-value asset leases     $ 3    $ 3 
Expenses relating to variable lease payments not included in the 

measurement of lease liabilities    $ 14,100    $ 14,100 
Total cash outflow for leases    $ 95,903    $ 94,224 

 
 
12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Computer software    $ 24,874    $ 9,096 
Technology license fees     -     - 
Technical expertise     -     - 
     
    $ 24,874    $ 9,096 

 

  
Technology 
License Fee  

Technical 
Expertise  

Computer 
Software  Total 

         
Cost         
         
Balance at January 1, 2021    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 151,210    $ 368,140 
Additions     -     -     24,749     24,749 
         
Balance at December 31, 2021    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 175,959    $ 392,889 
         
Accumulated amortization         
         
Balance at January 1, 2021    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 142,114    $ 359,044 
Additions     -     -     8,971     8,971 
         
Balance at December 31, 2021    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 151,085    $ 368,015 
         
Carrying amount at December 31, 

2021 
 

  $ -    $ -    $ 24,874    $ 24,874 
(Continued) 
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Technology 
License Fee  

Technical 
Expertise  

Computer 
Software  Total 

         
Cost         
         
Balance at January 1, 2020    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 146,200    $ 363,130 
Additions     -     -     5,010     5,010 
         
Balance at December 31, 2020    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 151,210    $ 368,140 
         
Accumulated amortization         
         
Balance at January 1, 2020    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 135,948    $ 352,878 
Additions     -     -     6,166     6,166 
         
Balance at December 31, 2020    $ 114,930    $ 102,000    $ 142,114    $ 359,044 
         
Carrying amount at December 31, 

2020 
 

  $ -    $ -    $ 9,096    $ 9,096 
(Concluded) 

 
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
Computer software  5 years 
Technology license fees  5 years 
Technical expertise  3 years 

 
 
13. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Unsecured borrowings     
     
Bank loans    $ 3,510,000    $ 2,000,000 
Less: Discounts on government grants     (34,203)     (32,389) 
Less: Current portion     (166,666)     - 
     
    $ 3,309,131    $ 1,967,611 

 
In March 2020, the Company obtained a letter of approval from the Ministry of Economic Affairs (MOEA) 
under the "Action Plan for Accelerated Investment by Domestic Corporations", which stipulates that the 
Company should complete its investment within three years from the date of approval. 
 
The Company entered into credit agreements with banks under the "Action Plan for Accelerated Investment 
by Domestic Corporations", and the interest rate for the first $2 billion of the allocation was reduced by 
0.5% of the two-year fixed deposit interest rate of Chunghwa Post Co., Ltd. after the mark up, and 0.3% 
thereafter. 
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As of December 31, 2021, the Company acquired preferential interest rate loan subsidized by the 
government of $3,510,000 thousand, and the loan proceeds are used to fund qualifying capital expenditure. 
Such loans are due by September 2026, in five year from the first date of drawdown. Repayment will be 
made in monthly installments for the first two years and the principal will be repaid in equal monthly 
installments starting from the third year. Using the prevailing market interest rate at an equivalent loan rate 
of 0.9%, the fair value of the loan was estimated at $3,460,518 thousand on initial recognition. The 
difference of $49,482 thousand between the proceeds and the fair value of the loan was the benefit derived 
from the preferential interest rate loan and had been recognized as deferred revenue. The revenue was offset 
against interest expense on a monthly basis over the loan period. The amount offset against interest expense 
was $13,386 thousand and $1,894 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Under bank loan agreements, the Company has to meet certain financial covenants and criteria. As of 
December 31, 2021, such financial covenants were not breached. 

 
 
14. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Current     
     
Accrued expenses      

Payables for salaries or bonuses    $ 235,273     $ 251,713 
Insurance payables     48,515      39,418 
Utilities payables     29,341      31,785 
Others     262,103     138,594 

     575,232     461,510 
Other current liabilities      

Refund liabilities     37,913     61,819 
Others     4,897     3,945 

     41,810     65,764 
     
    $ 618,042    $ 527,274 

 
 
15. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

 
The Company adopted a pension plan under the Labor Pension Act (LPA), which is a state-managed 
defined contribution plan. Under the LPA, the Company makes monthly contributions to employees’ 
individual pension accounts at 6% of monthly salaries and wages. 

 
 
16. EQUITY 
 

a. Capital stock 
 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Authorized stock (in thousands)     400,000     400,000 
Authorized capital    $ 4,000,000    $ 4,000,000 
Issued and paid stock (in thousands)     293,299     291,153 
Issued capital    $ 2,932,991    $ 2,911,531 
 
A holder of issued common stock with a par value of NT$10 is entitled to vote and to receive dividends. 
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The change in the Company’s capital stock is mainly due to the exercise of employee share options.  

 
b. Capital surplus 

  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
May be used to offset a deficit, distributed as cash dividends, or 
  transferred to share capital (Note 1)  

 
   

     
Issuance of ordinary shares    $ 701,925    $ 680,813 
Donations     12,893     12,893 
     
May only be used to offset a deficit     
     
Donation from shareholders      762     356 
Employee share options exercised     6,781     - 
     
May not be used for any purpose      
     
Compensation cost of employee share options     10,438     9,431 
     
    $ 732,799    $ 703,493 
 
Note 1: Such capital surplus may be used to offset a deficit; in addition, when the Company has no 

deficit, such capital surplus may be distributed as cash dividends or transferred to share 
capital. 

 
c. Retained earnings and dividend policy 
 

Under the dividend policy as set forth in the Company’s Articles, where the Company made profit in a 
fiscal year, the profit shall be first utilized for paying taxes, offsetting losses of previous years, setting 
aside as legal reserve 10% of the remaining profit, and setting aside or reversing special reserve in 
accordance with the laws and regulations until the accumulated legal reserve equals the Company’s 
paid-in capital. Any remaining profit together with any undistributed retained earnings shall be used by 
the Company’s board of directors as the basis for proposing a distribution plan, which should be 
resolved in the shareholders’ meeting for distribution of dividends and bonus to shareholders. 
 
For the policy on the profit sharing bonus for employees and compensation for directors, refer to Note 
18(g). 
 
Any appropriations of the profits are subject to shareholders’ approval in the following year. 
 
An appropriation of earnings to a legal reserve shall be made until the legal reserve equals the 
Company’s paid-in capital. The legal reserve may be used to offset deficits. If the Company has no 
deficit and the legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital, the excess may be 
transferred to capital or distributed in cash. 
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The appropriations of earnings for 2020 and 2019, which were approved in the shareholders’ meetings 
on July 22, 2021, and June 19, 2020, respectively, were as follows: 
 

  Appropriation of Earnings  
Cash Dividends Per Share 

(NT$) 

  
For the Year Ended  

December 31 
 For the Year Ended 

December 31 
  2020  2019  2020  2019 
         
Legal reserve    $ 209,054    $ 61,384     
Cash dividends     582,306     -    $ 2.0    $ - 
 
The appropriations of earnings for 2021 proposed by the Company’s board of directors on February 23, 
2022, were as follows: 
 

  

The 
Appropriation 

of Earnings  

Cash Dividends 
Per Share 

(NT$) 
     
Legal reserve    $ 216,528      
Cash dividends     586,712    $ 2.0 
 
The appropriation of earnings for 2021 is subject to the resolution of the shareholders in the 
shareholders’ meeting to be held on May 24, 2022. 

 
 
17. OPERATING REVENUE 

 
a. Contract information 
 

For revenue generated from manufacturing of color filter and optical coating according to customized 
specifications agreed in the contractual agreement, because the customers has obtained control over the 
products during the service, the Company’s revenue from service contracts is recognized over time. 

 
b. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
    Production  2021  2020 
     
Image Sensor    $ 4,947,328    $ 4,226,717 
Micro-Optical Elements  3,936,619  2,602,900 
Others     145,231     116,732 
     
    $ 9,029,178    $ 6,946,349 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
    Region  2021  2020 
     
Asia    $ 7,695,926     $ 5,531,112 
Taiwan     1,252,207      1,359,257 
Europe     55,070      40,490 
United States     25,975      15,490 
     
    $ 9,029,178    $ 6,946,349 
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c. Contract balances 
 

  December 31, 
2021  

December 31, 
2020  

January 1, 
2020 

       
Contract assets    $ 248,248    $ 137,376    $ 101,665 
Contract liabilities    $ 9,994    $ 5,823    $ 2,539 
 
The changes in the balance of contract assets and contract liabilities primarily result from the timing 
difference between the satisfaction of performance obligation and the customer’s payment. 
 
The Company recognized revenue from the beginning balance of contract liability, which amounted to 
$4,688 thousand and $1,472 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 

d. Refund liabilities 
 

Estimated sales returns and other allowances are made and adjusted based on historical experience and 
the consideration of varying contractual terms, which amounted to $(17,642) thousand and $20,855 
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2021 and 
2020, the aforementioned refund liabilities amounted to $37,913 thousand and $61,819 thousand, 
respectively, which were classified under accrued expenses and other current liabilities. 

 
 
18. NET PROFIT 
 

a. Other operating income and expenses 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Rental income - related party    $ 28,564    $ 46,522 
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment     -     (10,159) 
Others      (13)     (3,643) 
     
    $ 28,551    $ 32,720 

 
b. Interest income 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Bank deposits    $ 7,232    $ 12,477 
 

c. Other gains and losses 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Gain (loss) on financial instruments at FVTPL    $ 13,454    $ 49,199 
Others      (1,230)     (1,005) 
     
    $ 12,224    $ 48,194 
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d. Depreciation and amortization 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
An analysis of depreciation by function     

Operating costs    $ 1,852,255    $ 729,861 
Operating expenses     96,215     20,368 
Other operating income and expenses     1,016     4,071 
     

    $ 1,949,486    $ 754,300 
     
An analysis of amortization by function     

Operating costs    $ 5,026    $ 3,347 
General and administrative expenses     3,945     2,819 

     
    $ 8,971    $ 6,166 

 
e. Finance costs  

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Interest expense     

Lase liabilities    $ 4,800    $ 4,397 
Bank loans     13,608     1,389 
Others     23     29 

     18,431     5,815 
Less: Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets     (5,917)     (594) 
     
    $ 12,514    $ 5,221 
 
Information about capitalized interest is as follows: 
 
  2021  2020 
     
Capitalized interest amount    $ 5,917    $ 594 
Capitalization rate  0.57%-0.58%  0.54%-0.67% 
 

f. Employee benefits expense 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Post-employment benefits (Note 15)     

Defined contribution plan    $ 55,392    $ 43,181 
Share-based payments     

Equity-settled      7,788     6,613 
Other employee benefits     1,988,896     1,782,448 
     
Total employee benefits expense    $ 2,052,076    $ 1,832,242 
     
An analysis of employee benefits expense by function     

Operating costs    $ 1,488,997    $ 1,424,011 
Operating expenses     563,079     408,231 

     
    $ 2,052,076    $ 1,832,242 
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g. Compensation of employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors 
 
The Company accrues compensation of employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors at 
rates of no less than 1% and no higher than 2%, respectively, of net profit before income tax, 
compensation of employees, and remuneration of directors and supervisors. The Company accrues a 
profit sharing bonus for employees and remuneration of directors based on a percentage of net profit 
before income tax (before a profit sharing bonus for employees and remuneration of directors). The 
compensation of employees and the remuneration of directors and supervisors are as follows: 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Compensation of employees    $ 433,056    $ 418,109 
Remuneration of directors and supervisors    $ 2,700    $ - 

 
If there is a change in the proposed amounts after the annual financial statements are authorized for 
issue, the differences are recorded as a change in the accounting estimate. 
 
The appropriations of employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors and supervisors for 2021 
and 2020 that were resolved by the board of directors on February 23, 2022 and March 12, 2021, 
respectively are $433,056 thousand and $418,109, with the amount of $2,674 and nil of remuneration of 
directors and supervisors. 

 
There was no significant difference between the actual amounts of compensation of employees and 
remuneration of directors and supervisors the aforementioned resolutions paid and the expenses 
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Information on the compensation of employees and remuneration of directors and supervisors resolved 
by the Company’s board of directors is available at the Market Observation Post System website of the 
Taiwan Stock Exchange. 
 

h. Gains or losses on foreign currency exchange 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Foreign exchange gains    $ 64,086     $ 49,702 
Foreign exchange losses      (76,067)     (106,807) 
     
    $ (11,981)    $ (57,105) 

 
 
19. INCOME TAX  
 

a. Income tax expense consisted of the following: 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Current income tax      

In respect of the current year    $ 514,879     $ 504,756 
Income tax adjustments on prior years     (2,123)     (46,264) 

Deferred tax      
In respect of the current year     25,910     6,314 

     
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss    $ 538,666    $ 464,806 
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A reconciliation of income before income tax and income tax expense recognized in profit or loss is as 
follows: 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Profit before tax    $ 2,703,946    $ 2,555,351 
     
Income tax expense calculated at the statutory rate    $ 540,789    $ 511,070 
Tax effect of adjusting items:     

Income tax expense adjustments on prior years     (2,123)     (46,264) 
     
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss    $ 538,666    $ 464,806 

. 
 

b. Current tax assets and liabilities  
 

The analysis of deferred income tax assets in the balance sheets is as follows: 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Current tax liabilities     

Income tax payable    $ 365,775    $ 438,674 
 

c. Deferred tax assets  
 

The movements of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows:  
 

For the year ended December 31, 2021 
 

Deferred Tax Assets  
Opening 
Balance  

Recognized in 
Profit or Loss  

Closing  
Balance 

       
Refund liabilities     $ 12,364    $ (4,781)    $ 7,583  
Property, plant and equipment temporary 

differences 
 

   21,449     (10,633)     10,816 
Others     2,950     (335)     2,615 
       

    $ 36,763    $ (15,749)    $ 21,014 
 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
 Opening 

Balance  
Recognized in 
Profit or Loss  

Closing  
Balance 

       
Revenue    $ 9,536    $ 10,841    $ 20,377  
Others     1,863     (680)     1,183 
       

    $ 11,399    $ 10,161    $ 21,560 
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 
 

Deferred Tax Assets  
Opening 
Balance  

Recognized in 
Profit or Loss  

Closing  
Balance 

       
Refund liabilities     $ 8,713    $ 3,651    $ 12,364  
Property, plant and equipment temporary 

differences 
 

   31,759     (10,310)     21,449 
Others     1,994     956     2,950 
       

    $ 42,466    $ (5,703)    $ 36,763 
 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
 Opening 

Balance  
Recognized in 
Profit or Loss  

Closing  
Balance 

       
Revenue    $ 9,157    $ 379     $ 9,536  
Others     1,631     232     1,863 
       

    $ 10,788    $ 611    $ 11,399 
 
d. Income tax examination 
 

The tax authorities have examined income tax returns of the Company through 2019. All differences in 
investment tax credits assessed by the tax authorities have been adjusted accordingly. 

 
 
20. EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Basic earnings per share    $ 7.41    $ 7.18 
Diluted earnings per share    $ 7.24    $ 6.77 
 
Earnings per share is computed as follows: 

 
    Number of   
    Stocks  Earnings 
  Amounts  (Denominator)  Per Share 
  (Numerator)  (In Thousands)  (NT$) 
       
For the year ended December 31, 2021       
       
Basic EPS       

Net income    $ 2,165,280     292,028    $ 7.41 
Effect of potentially dilutive common stock     -     6,968   

       
Diluted EPS       

Net income available to common shareholders 
plus effect of potentially dilutive common 
stock 

 

  $ 2,165,280     298,996    $ 7.24 
(Continued)
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    Stocks  Earnings 
  Amounts  (Denominator)  Per Share 
  (Numerator)  (In Thousands)  (NT$) 
       
For the year ended December 31, 2020       
       
Basic EPS       

Net income    $ 2,090,545     291,153    $ 7.18 
Effect of potentially dilutive common stock     -     17,526   

       
Diluted EPS       

Net income available to common shareholders 
plus effect of potentially dilutive common 
stock 

 

  $ 2,090,545     308,679    $ 6.77 
(Concluded) 

 
If the Company offered to settle the obligation by cash or by issuing stocks, the profit sharing bonus for 
employees will be settled in stocks and the resulting potential stocks were included in the weighted average 
number of stocks outstanding in the calculation of diluted EPS as the stocks have a dilutive effect. Such 
dilutive effect of the potential stocks is included in the calculation of diluted EPS until the profit sharing 
bonus for employees to be settled in the form of common stocks is approved in the following year. 

 
 
21. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

 
Qualified employees were granted 460 options in April 2020, 5,424 options in July 2019 and 72 options in 
December 2019. Each option entitles the holder with the right to subscribe for one thousand ordinary shares 
of the Company. The options granted are valid for 6 years and exercisable at certain percentages after the 
second anniversary from the grant date. The options were granted at an exercise price equal to NT$20. For 
any subsequent changes in the Company’s ordinary shares, the exercise price is adjusted accordingly.  
 
Information on employee share options was as follows: 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 

  

Number of 
Options (In 

Thousands of 
Units)  

Weighted- 
average 
Exercise 

Price 
($)  

Number of 
Options (In 

Thousands of 
Units)  

Weighted- 
average 
Exercise 

Price 
($) 

         
Balance at January 1     5,780    $ 20.00     5,392    $ 20.00 
Options granted     -     -     460     20.00 
Options exercised     (2,146)     19.84     -     - 
Options forfeited     (168)     -     (72)     - 
         
Balance at December 31     3,466       5,780   
         
Options exercisable, end of the year     518       -   
         
Weighted-average fair value of options 

granted ($)    $ -      $ 8.02   
 

The weighted-average share prices on the exercise date of the share options from July 1, 2021 to December 
31, 2021 was $474.58. 
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Information on outstanding options was as follows: 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Range of exercise price ($)    $ 18    $ 20 
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (in years)     3.58     4.56 

 
Options are priced using the Black-Scholes pricing model, and the inputs to the model are as follows: 

 
  April 2020  December 2019  July 2019 
       
Grant-date share price     $ 24.79    $ 17.42    $ 17.42 
Exercise price    $ 20    $ 20    $ 20 
Expected volatility  27.18%-28.74%  28.30%-28.48%  28.30%-28.48% 
Expected life (in years)  4-5  4-5  4-5 
Expected dividend yield  -  -  - 
Risk-free interest rate  0.40%-0.42%  0.58%-0.61%  0.58%-0.61% 

 
Compensation costs recognized were $7,788 thousand and $6,613 thousand for the years ended December 
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

 
 
22. CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

 
a. Non-cash transactions 
 

  Years Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 

     
Additions of property, plant and equipment    $ 4,028,203     $ 6,439,058 
Less: Amounts included in the cost of qualifying assets     (5,917)     (594) 
Changes in payables for purchases of equipment     (64,787)     (402,160) 
     
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment    $ 3,957,499    $ 6,036,304 

 
b. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 
 

      Non-cash changes   

  

Balance as of 
January 1, 

2021  
Financing Cash 

Flow 

 Foreign 
Exchange 
Movement  

Leases 
Modifications  

Other Changes 
(Note)  

Balance as of 
December 31, 

2021 
             

Guarantee deposits    $ 5,069    $ 124    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 5,193 
Lease liabilities     322,540     (80,676 )     -     101     7,434     249,399 
Long-term borrowings     1,967,611     1,510,000     -     -     (1,814 )     3,475,797 
               

Total    $ 2,295,220    $ 1,429,448    $ -    $ 101    $ 5,620     $ 3,730,389 
 

      Non-cash changes   

  

Balance as of 
January 1, 

2020  
Financing Cash 

Flow 

 Foreign 
Exchange 
Movement  

Leases 
Modifications  

Other Changes 
(Note)  

Balance as of 
December 31, 

2020 
             

Guarantee deposits    $ 4,532    $ 537    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 5,069 
Lease liabilities     221,549     (79,727 )     -     -     180,718     322,540 
Long-term borrowings     -     2,000,000     -     -     (32,389 )     1,967,611 
             

Total    $ 226,081    $ 1,920,810    $ -    $ -    $ 148,329     $ 2,295,220 
 

Note: Other changes include financial cost of lease liabilities, right-of-use assets obtained and long-term bank loan interest 
subsidy recognized as deferred revenue. 
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23. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

 
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concerns while 
maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.  
 
The capital structure of the Company consists of equity of the Company (comprising issued capital, 
reserves and retained earnings). 

 
 
24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 

a. Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value 
 

Management believes that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities not carried at 
fair value approximate their fair values or their fair values cannot be reliably measured. 

 
b. Fair value of financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

 
1) Fair value hierarchy 

 
December 31, 2021 
 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
         
Financial assets at FVTPL         

Derivative financial assets    $ -    $ 6,003    $ -    $ 6,003 
         
Financial liabilities at FVTPL         

Derivatives financial liabilities    $ -    $ 86    $ -    $ 86 
 

December 31, 2020 
 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
         
Financial assets at FVTPL         

Derivative financial assets    $ -    $ 9,128    $ -    $ 9,128 
         
Financial liabilities at FVTPL         

Derivatives financial liabilities    $ -    $ 29    $ -    $ 29 
 
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

 
The Company did not acquire or dispose of financial assets measured at fair value in Level 3 for the 
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

 
2) Valuation techniques and inputs applied for Level 2 fair value measurement 

 
Derivative instruments - forward exchange contracts are discounted using the cash flow method. 
Future cash flows are estimated based on observable forward exchange rates at the end of the year 
and contract forward rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various counterparties. 
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c. Categories of financial instruments 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Financial assets     
     
FVTPL     

Held for trading    $ 6,003    $ 9,128 
Amortized cost (1)     4,586,697     3,488,916 
     
Financial liabilities     
     
FVTPL     

Held for trading     86     29 
Amortized cost (2)     4,782,641     2,946,438 

 
1) Including financial assets at amortized cost, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, account 

receivable (including related parties), other receivables (including related parties) and other 
non-current assets.  

 
2) Including accounts payable, payables to contractors and equipment suppliers, accrued expenses and 

other current liabilities, long-term borrowings (including current portion of long-term borrowings) 
and guarantee deposits. 

 
d. Financial risk management objectives and policies 

 
The Company monitors and manages the financial risks associated with its operations, which include 
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 
 
The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to 
hedge risk exposures. The use of derivative financial instruments and significant financial rules and 
plans are regulated by the Company's board of directors and reviewed by the Company’s internal 
control system. The Company does not engage in transactions of financial instruments (including 
derivative financial instruments) for speculative purposes. 
 
1) Market risk 

 
The Company’s activities exposed it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency 
exchange rates (see (a) below) and interest rates (see (b) below). 
 
The Company entered into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to 
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. 

 
There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which these 
risks are managed and measured. 

 
a) Foreign currency risk 

 
A portion of the Company's cash inflows and outflows are denominated in foreign currencies 
and therefore have a natural hedging effect. The Company manages exchange rate risk for 
hedging purposes, not for profit-making. 
 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 
monetary liabilities and of the derivatives exposed to foreign currency risk at the end of the year 
are set out in Note 28. 
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Sensitivity analysis 
 
The Company is mainly exposed to the U.S. dollar and Japanese yen. 
 
The sensitivity analysis of foreign currency exchange rate risk is based on the unfavorable 
impact of foreign currency monetary items, including cash, accounts receivable, other 
receivables, accounts payable and other payables, as of the end of the reporting period. If the 
unfavorable change in foreign currencies reaches 5%, the Company's net income will decrease 
by $76,479 thousand and $54,640 thousand in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 

b) Interest rate risk  
 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Company borrow funds at 
both fixed and floating interest rates.  
 
The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities with exposure 
to interest rates at the end of the year were as follows: 
 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Fair value interest rate risk     

Financial assets    $ 2,405,031    $ 1,327,232 
Cash flow interest rate risk     

Financial assets     847,894     1,230,404 
Financial liabilities     3,475,797     1,967,611 

 
The Company's fixed-rate financial assets are not included in the analysis of interest rate risk 
with fair value because they are measured at amortized cost. 
 
The Company's floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities are not included in the 
analysis of interest rate risk with cash flow because the amounts are not significant. 
 

2) Credit risk  
 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in a financial loss to the Company. At the end of the year, the Company’s maximum exposure to 
credit risk, which would cause a financial loss to the Company due to the failure of the counterparty 
to discharge its obligation and due to the financial guarantees provided by the Company, could be 
equal to the carrying amount of the respective recognized financial assets as stated in the balance 
sheets. 
 
Business-related credit risk 
 

The Company’s accounts receivable are from its five largest customers. The majority of the 
Company’s outstanding accounts receivable are not covered by collaterals or guarantees. While the 
Company has procedures to monitor and manage credit risk exposure on accounts receivable, there 
is no assurance such procedures will effectively eliminate losses resulting from its credit risk. This 
risk is heightened during periods when economic conditions worsen. 
 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s five largest customers accounted for 83 % and 
92% of accounts receivable respectively. 
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3) Liquidity risk 
 
The Company manages liquidity risk by monitoring and maintaining a level of cash and cash 
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Company’s operations and mitigate the effects of 
fluctuations in cash flows. 
 
a) Liquidity and interest rate risk tables 
 

The following table details the analysis of the remaining contractual maturities of the 
Company's non-derivative financial liabilities with contractual repayment periods, which are 
based on the earliest possible date on which the Company can be required to make repayment, 
and is prepared using the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities, which include cash 
flows of interest and principal. 

 
The maturity dates of the Company's other non-derivative financial liabilities were based on the 
agreed upon repayment dates. 

 
December 31, 2021 
 

  

On Demand or 
Less than  
1 Month  1-3 Months  

3 Months to  
1 Year  1+Years 

         
Non-derivative 
  financial liabilities          
         
Non-interest bearing    $ 680,836    $ 203,129    $ 382,129    $ 5,193 
Lease liabilities     6,777     13,554     55,510     200,627 
Long-term borrowings     1,433     2,807     179,431     3,371,012 
         
    $ 689,046    $ 219,490    $ 617,070    $ 3,576,832 
 
December 31, 2020 
 

  

On Demand or 
Less than  
1 Month  1-3 Months  

3 Months to  
1 Year  1+Years 

         
Non-derivative 
  financial liabilities          
         
Non-interest bearing    $ 440,965    $ 143,896    $ 388,897    $ 5,069 
Lease liabilities     6,676     13,352     60,083     274,258 
Long-term borrowings     667     1,333     6,000     2,018,333 
         
    $ 448,308    $ 158,581    $ 454,980    $ 2,297,660 
 
Additional information about the maturity analysis for financial liabilities: 
 
December 31, 2021 
 

  
Less than 5 

Years  5-10 Years  10-15 Years  15-20 Years  20+ Years 
           
Non-interest bearing    $ 1,271,287    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ - 
Lease liabilities    $ 138,166    $ 76,556    $ 48,934    $ 12,812    $ - 
Long-term borrowings    $ 3,554,683    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ - 
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December 31, 2020 
 

  
Less than 5 

Years  5-10 Years  10-15 Years  15-20 Years  20+ Years 
           
Non-interest bearing    $ 978,827    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ - 
Long-term borrowings    $ 200,756    $ 76,556    $ 61,683    $ 12,812    $ 2,562 
Lease liabilities    $ 2,026,333    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ - 

 
The following table details the liquidity analysis of the Company's derivative financial 
instruments. For derivative instruments with gross settlement, the analysis is based on 
undiscounted contractual net cash inflows and outflows. 

 
December 31, 2021 
 

  

On Demand 
or Less than 

1 Month  1-3 Months  
3 Months to 1 

Year  1-5 Years  5+ Years 
           
Gross settled           
           
Foreign exchange 

forward contracts           
Inflows    $ 653,775    $ 915,768    $ -    $ -    $ - 
Outflows     (650,339)     (913,242)     -     -     - 
             
    $ 3,436    $ 2,526    $ -    $ -    $ - 
 
December 31, 2020 
 

  

On Demand 
or Less than 

1 Month  1-3 Months  
3 Months to 1 

Year  1-5 Years  5+ Years 
           
Gross settled           
           
Foreign exchange 

forward contracts           
Inflows    $ 484,835    $ 619,946    $ -    $ -    $ - 
Outflows     (477,649)     (618,134)     -     -     - 
           
    $ 7,186    $ 1,812    $ -    $ -    $ - 
 

 
25. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 
The Company’s parent company is Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, which held 72.83% 
and 86.94% of the ordinary shares of the Company on December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

 
Besides information disclosed elsewhere in the other notes, details of transactions between the Company 
and other related parties are disclosed as follows: 
 
a. Related party name and category 
 

Related Party Name  Related Party Category 
   
TSMC  The Company’s parent company 
Xintec Inc. (Xintec)  Other related party 
Global Unichip Corp. (GUC)  Other related party 
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b. Sales of goods  
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
Xintec    $ 750,808    $ 898,937 
Others     4,466     13,653 
     
    $ 755,274    $ 912,590 

 
c. Purchases of goods 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
For manufacturing     
     
TSMC    $ 3,527    $ 1,152 
     
For researching and developing     
     
TSMC    $ 15,031    $ 19,467 

 
d. Rental income 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
GUC    $ 26,999    $ 26,514 
TSMC     1,565     20,008 
     
    $ 28,564    $ 46,522 

 
e. Manufacturing expense 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
Xintec     $ 14,100    $ 14,100 

 
f. Interest expense 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
Xintec    $ 1,012    $ 583 
Others     23     29 
     
    $ 1,035    $ 612 
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g. Contract assets 
 

  December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
Xintec    $ 2,222    $ 1,964 

 
h. Receivables from related parties 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
Xintec    $ 117,488    $ 187,488 
Others     335     1,028 
     
    $ 117,823    $ 188,516 

 
i. Other Receivables 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
TSMC    $ -    $ 1,643 

 
j. Expenses payable and other current liabilities 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
TSMC    $ 4,046    $ 1,539 
Others     65     - 
     
    $ 4,111    $ 1,539 

 
k. Lease arrangements  

 
Acquisition of Right-of-Use Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property 

 
The Company leases plant and offices from related parties. The lease terms are determined by 
agreement between the parties, and rentals are paid monthly in accordance with the lease agreements, 
and the related rental expenses are recorded as right-of-use assets and manufacturing costs. 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 

Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 
     
Acquisition of right-of-use assets     
     
Xintec    $ -    $ 128,110 
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Line Item  Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

       
Lease liabilities  Xintec    $ 59,099    $ 122,888 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 

Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 
     

Interest expense     
     
Xintec    $ 1,012    $ 583 
     
Lease expense     
     
Xintec     $ 14,100    $ 14,100 

 
l. Deposit guarantee 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
Related Party Category/Name  2021  2020 

     
GUC    $ 2,832    $ 2,832 
Others     6     6 
     
    $ 2,838    $ 2,838 
 
For the sales transactions between the Company and its related parties, the transaction prices and 
collection terms are not materially different from those of non-related parties. For other related party 
transactions, price and terms were determined in accordance with mutual agreements. 
 
The Company rented/leased property, plant and equipment to/from related parties. The lease terms are 
determined in accordance with mutual agreements. The rentals were paid monthly; the related rentals 
were classified under other income and manufacturing expenses. 
 
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, no impairment loss was recognized for contract 
assets from related parties. 
 

m. Remuneration of key management personnel 
 

The compensation of directors and other key management personnel was as follows: 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Short-term employee benefits    $ 94,632    $ 85,293 
Post-employment benefits     680     664 
     
    $ 95,312    $ 85,957 
 
The compensation of directors and other key management personnel was determined in accordance with 
the value of the individual's participation in and contribution to the operations of the Company and is 
determined by reference to the usual industry standards. 
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26. ASSETS PLEDGED AS COLLATERAL OR FOR SECURITY 
 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company provided certificate of deposits amounted to $20,311 
thousand and $20,311 thousand, respectively, which were recorded in other non-current assets as collateral 
mainly for land lease agreements and tariff guarantees. 

 
 

27. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED COMMITMENTS 
 

In addition to those disclosed in other notes, significant contingencies and unrecognized commitments of 
the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows: 
 
a. Unrecognized commitments 

 
  December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment    $ 2,184,568    $ 3,267,400 

 
b. The Company entered into long-term energy purchase agreements with supplier. The relative 

fulfillment period, quantity and price are specified in the agreement. 
 
 
28. EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION OF FOREIGN-CURRENCY DENOMINATED FINANCIAL 

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
 
The significant financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follows: 
 
December 31, 2021 
 

 

 Foreign 
Currencies 

(In Thousands)  
Exchange Rate 

(Note) 
     
Financial assets     

     
Monetary items     

USD    $ 58,883     27.674 
JPY     155,921     0.2414 
EUR     293     31.460 

     
Financial liabilities     

     
Monetary items     

USD     3,604     27.674 
JPY     155,657     0.2414 
EUR     302     31.460 
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December 31, 2020 
 

 

 Foreign 
Currencies 

(In Thousands)  
Exchange Rate 

(Note) 
     
Financial assets     

     
Monetary items     

USD    $ 46,121     28.097 
JPY     370,427     0.2729 
EUR     3,253     34.587 

     
Financial liabilities     

     
Monetary items     

USD     7,062     28.097 
JPY     387,463     0.2729 
EUR     3,286     34.587 

 
 
Note: Please refer to Note 18 for foreign exchange gain and loss for the years ended December 31, 2021 

and 2020. It is impractical to disclose net foreign exchange gains (losses) by each significant 
foreign currency due to the variety of the foreign currency transactions. 

 
 
29. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 

a. Operating segments, segment revenue and operating results 
 

VisEra’s chief operating decision maker periodically reviews operating results, focusing on operating 
income generated by color filter segment. Operating results are used for resource allocation and 
performance assessment. As a result, the Company has only one operating segment, the color filter 
segment. The color filter segment engages mainly in the researching, developing, designing, 
manufacturing and selling, packaging and testing of color filter products. 
 
The basis for the measurement of income from operations is the same as those for the preparation of 
financial statements. Please refer to the statements of comprehensive income for the related segment 
revenue and operating results. 

 
b. Geographical information of operating revenue is as follows: 

 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Asia    $ 7,695,926    $ 5,531,112 
Taiwan     1,252,207     1,359,257 
Europe     55,070     40,490 
United States     25,975     15,490 
     
    $ 9,029,178    $ 6,946,349 
 
The Company’s revenue by geography is computed based on the recipient’s region and its non-current 
assets are all located in Taiwan. Hence, it is not required to disclose information about non-current 
assets. 
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c. Revenue from major products and services 
 

  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
     
Image Sensor    $ 4,947,328    $ 4,226,717 
Micro-Optical Elements     3,936,619     2,602,900 
Others     145,231     116,732 
     
    $ 9,029,178    $ 6,946,349 

 
d. Information about major customers 
 

Major customers representing at least 10% of net revenue: 
 
  For the Year Ended December 31 
  2021  2020 
  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
Customer A    $ 3,187,407     35    $ 3,050,156     44 
Customer C     2,508,073     28     25,392     0.4 
Xintec     750,808     8     898,937     13 
Customer B     506,179     6     1,511,497     22 

 
 
30. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES 

 
a. Significant transactions 

 
1) Financing provided to others. (None) 
 
2) Endorsements/guarantees provided. (None) 
 
3) Marketable securities held. (None) 
 
4) Marketable securities acquired and disposed of at costs or prices of at least NT$300 million or 20% 

of the paid-in capital. (None) 
 
5) Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in 

capital. (None) 
 
6) Disposal of individual real estate at prices of at least NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital. 

(None) 
 
7) Total purchases from or sales to related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the 

paid-in capital. (Table 1) 
 
8) Receivables from related parties amounting to at least NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in 

capital. (Table 2) 
 
9) Information about the derivative instruments transaction. (Note 7) 
 

b. Information on investees. (None) 
 
c. Information on investments in mainland China. (None) 
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d. Information of major shareholders 
 
List of all shareholders with ownership of 5 percent or greater showing the names and the number of 
shares and percentage of ownership held by each shareholder: See Table 3 attached. 
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